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ABOUT US
INuanugTu-ny

After its successful business recognition since
1962, Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public
Company Limited (STECON) to thrive from the outset,
engineering and the construction company, formed
with vision, began to make significant contributions to
implementing the national blueprint for economic
growth and development through five key areas of

activity :

Infrastructure : Mass Transit Systems, Elevated

roads, Expressways, Roads, Bridges
Power & Energy : Power Plants, Oil Refineries

Industrial : Petrochemical Plants, Industrial
Plants

Building
Multipurpose  Buildings,

Office  Buildings, Condominiums,
Air-traffic  Control Towers,
Aircraft Maintenance Centers, Stadiums, Conference

Centers, Museums, Hospitals, Schools, City Air Terminals

Environment : Wastewater Treatment Plants,
Irrigation Systems, Water Supply Plants

Throughout the 55 years of construction
experience and other outstanding records of the
Company are accepted both in the country and the
overseas. The Company strongly emphasizes on best
and high quality construction where its highest goal is to
undertake the engineering and construction business in
every aspect to meet customers’ stringent requirements
regarding quality, on-time delivery, fair price, with high

health, safety and environmental standard.

Sino-Thai

became the leading Engineering and Construction firm

continues to move forward and

in Thailand by handing over quality projects with all
experts and experience to its customers and has earned

a reputation as a respected and trusted throughout.
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201 7 HIGHI-IGHTS Increase in Backlog Order
doyadAny +155%

150

100 Increase in Total Revenue Gross Profit Net Profit Book Value

per Share
() 2016 : Bt 1,565 mn 2016 : Bt 1,396 mn
+14%

2016 Bt 6.94 mn

15 2017 : Bt 1,512 mn 2017 : Bt 603 mn
2017 Bt  6.20 mn
10
[ ]
5 [ ]
0/0 0 — —l B
-5
saciog rcer
-10 2016 : Bt 18,624 mn 2016: Bt 40,726 mn
-15 2017 : Bt 21,159 mn 2017 : Bt 103,985 mn
<572 £ 9T T ° < - - |
-11%
-100 Decrease in Book
Value per Share
-150
o,
-143%
Decrease in Net Profit
-200

-197%

Decrease in Gross Profit

Construction Revenue Structure by Type of Works Construction Revenue Structure by Type of Customers

Industrial 0%

Environment 1.8%

Infrastructure 47.3% Private Sector 40.4%

Power & Energy 30.8%

Public Sector 59.6%
(Including State Enterprise)

Building 20.1%

CG Ranking by Thai Institute of Directors (I0D) 2017 : Excellent ‘

Market Share : 9.65% (3™ Rank)
Comparing to 24 construction companies listed in SET as of 3Q 2017

Company Credit Rating (2017) : “A-" by TRIS Rating Co.,Lid.

usEn Blu-Ine 1BUSITESY IDUA AOUARSATU 1A (UMBU)
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

asUdayannisiiu

v
Juga (Aa1uum)

Balance Sheet (Bt mn)

Fundndvyuieou Current Assets
Funsndsau Total Assets
wilunyuio Current Liabilities
wijausau Total Liabilities
duveutionu Shareholders’ Equity

sumlsvany (Ewum)

Income Statement (Bt mn)

s1elaannisneasia Construction Income
s1elasau Total Revenue
AunuILfeaia Cost of Construction

Algaglunsvenazusms

Selling & Administrative

aeniledng Interest Expense
flstudy Gross Profit
finlsgua Net Profit
BATIAIUNNNITRY Financial Ratio

nsduuanImAged (i)

Current Ratio (Times)

< & o
S2HZLIANLAUNL (AU)

Collection Period (Days)

o g o
328YIA1T15ENU (W)

Payment Period (Days)

v
o

dn31mls (W1av) Tusu (%)

Gross Profit Margin (%) 10.10%

dn31mls (uiavw) ans (%)

Net Profit Margin (%)

L% ! 1 v 4
DRI IHANDULNUA DA IUVBIEDBYU (%)

17.90%

Return on Equities (%)

DRTINANDULNUINNFUNSNE (%)

Return on Asset (%)

dn3INTMUSEuvDFUNING (W)

Total Assets Turnover (Times)

o
()

gnaunildudediuvegiievu (i)

Debt to Equity Ratio (Times)

dnTaEIuANaINIsatinsERan Y (W)

Interest Coverage Ratio (Times)

K%

yarmudydsenu (Um)

q

Book Value per Share (Baht)

lsguidsioviu (umn)

Earning per Share (Baht)

Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited

TN Annual Report 2017



Bt mn Bt mn
12,000
25,000 :
10,585
21,159 10,000 9,508 9,455
20,000
U 18,624 8,000
15,000
6,000
10,000
. 4,000
5.000] 2,000
~ 0 - R -
2015 2016 2017 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
Total Revenue (Bt mn) Shareholder’s Equity (Bt mn)
Bt mn Bt mn
2,500 2,094 Gl 12.00% 2,000 1,741 1530 1,545 10.00%
—o 10.10% 1,688 4 ger = . o, 1,396 —
9.4% ) , 758% 6.97% 8.17% N
2,000 9.25% g 750, 10.00% 500 7.50% 5.00%
8.00% I
1,500 = 6.00%
6.00% 1,000
1,000 4.00%
— 4.00% —
50 2.00% 50 12.00% _
0 0.00% 0 0.00%
- .
(500) -2.00% -2.00%
— = (500) =
(1,000) -4.00% -4.00%
— ——— 0
(1,000) -2.85%
(1,500) -6.00% —— -603
(2,000) 7.55%  |-8.00%
-1,512
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
Gross Profit (Bt mn) and Margin Net Profit (Bt mn) and Margin
o Gross Profit  —@)— Gross Profit Margin (%) = Net Profit  —@)— Net Profit Margin (%)
Bt mn
1.50 1.14
1.00 1.00 0.91
1.00 2.51
. é é é
0.00
' I
(0.50) *
-0.40
o "
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
Earning per Share (Bt) Debt to Equity Ratio (Times)
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MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIRMAN

| would like us

to cooperate together like this

In order to keep our unity for

further reputation and security of

Sino-Thai
b b

One year has gone so fast. Global situations
keep changing all the time. There are continuous
clashes from region to region, causing inevitable and

wide-scale impacts on politics, security and economy.

Accordingly, government in each country has to
turn to each other for discussions and collaboration in
order to reach the prevention against impacts that

might lead to vicious circumstances.

This is similar to economic situations; nowadays,
commercial activities are globally flourishing. There are
lots of transnational investment called borderless
economy. Hence, economic collaboration plays a vital
role and integration has been formed between nations
with a tight bond.

Last year, Thailand’s status was more secured and

stable. It has been recognized by the civilized nations as

a country of promising prosperity in terms of politics and

economy. Therefore, foreign investment has been

increased with mega projects continued to launch.

Sino-Thai £ g & Construction Public Company Limited

Bl Annual Rep

Regardless of the change of global situations,
Sino-Thai has enjoyed constant growth through the
years. Through thick and thin, the Company has
overcome obstacles with the solid foundation that
our forerunners have laid for us. We are thus standing

strong and able to tackle impacts of all sorts.

On behalf of Sino-Thai, | hereby would like to
thank all employees, the management and directors.
Also, | would like us to cooperate together like this in
order to keep our unity for further reputation and

security of Sino-Thai.

With all best wishes,

Rawat Chamechaloon.

Prof. Rawat Chamchalerm

Chairman of the Board




Professor Rawat Chamchalerm
Chairman of the Board
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VISION 3dunfu

] [ r
MISSION Wusn9
vgnsifuusenaranssuiiazioasusutinvadingia:
91139u NdwauwanulfiignAfus-AuuIRSgIuaINa

Vision

The Company continues to move forward and become
the leading Engineering and Construction firm in
Thailand and eventually the region, while delivering
projects that consistently meet international
standards.

s
TR

InnUs:=avA
1UHu19S:9:919

usényvutunisitognasidu
USBnIAaNssulazNaasuIwe

Ao:riwuroadwiuuiBniEade (Turnkey) MluUszinAnazsivUs:InA - g
uasgulus=auanna Tnelannds:audno=midunusiosnulaoniogian
(Loss Time Accident = 0) na:dihnungs:g:=g1alAimsiaulnvavsiels
Us=utu 10% Tus:ndwu 2559 - 2562

Corporate Objective
Long Term Goal

The Company intends to move forward as engineering and a turnkey
construction services of the domestic and international markets that
meet the international standard and our objective is “Safety is our first
priority” (Loss Time Accident = 0) and long term goal is revenue growth
in 2016 — 2019 is approximately 10%
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STRATEGY nagns
CORPORATE VALUES

avAnsagwuAdIazasnils Ing

uitiussnanan — ssfanoadas

dUAUNUATAINIWEY ASJIDAN FOBLASTIU

Ao wUaonnglAnnignAveaus

Huitiulunisidugtinnwausiunu
SNEIAUITIINSYNIIAIUNISINU
Adl5BuALIbwaATunsANGUIIU

-

WruuAaNSogsioItio

ot

Sino-Thai’s strategy is to deliver sustainable and
profitable growth through

ATUAIOVANS

rategy

Focus on core business in construction.
Delivering the best quality services, on time with
high safety standard to our valued customers.
Emphasize on cost leadership.

Maintaining healthy financial strength.
Maintaining an operational excellence.
Developing human capital continuously.
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PROJECT HIGHLIGHTS
lnsunisaAty

MRT-Blue Line (Tha Phra-LakSong) Contract 4 GED-12 SPPs Projects

The Mass Rapid Transit Project which is currently
under construction, elevated structure 10.5 k.m. in
length and 7 elevated stations with two car park
buildings and one depot building.

Phuket International Airport Expansion

STECON is proud to be the contractor for development of Phuket International Airport Expansion, serving
for domestic and international tourists from all over the world to our Thailand’s most famous “Pearl of
Andaman”.

'| 4 Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
Bl Annual Report 2017



Track Doubling for East Coast Line Project
(Chachoengsao-Khlongsipkao-Kaengkhoi)

The SRT Track Doubling project which is currently
under construction is Chachoengsao-Khlongsipkao-
Wiharndaeng and Buiyai-Kaengkhoi Section
including Chord Line 3 in total distance 104 kilometer
including railway stations, railway bridges, roadway
bridges and signaling & telecommunication
systems.

Motorway
(Bang-pa-in-Saraburi-Nakornrachasima)

STECON is one of the contractors for Motorway
Route Bang - pa - in - Saraburi - Nakornrachasrima
from KM 0+0.000 to KM 7+322.494 and KM
71+250 to 74+300, Construction of highway in total
distance 12.202 KM including elevated bridges.

usEn Blu-Ine 1BUSITESY IDUF AOUARSATU $1AA (UMBU) 15
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INVESTMENT
IJuavynu

u3Gn Flu-Tng 1BURITYSY oud AauAnSAFU FI0 (UMIFU)
Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited

usen N
Corporation
Limited

AWAUWLUS
Relationship:

Us:nnssie nuean:Uou | dndoums
Type of Business: (un) fioAu
Registeres Capital | % Share
(Baht): Holding:

FIUSUARU
No. of (un)
Shares:

yaAITUAYNU

Cost (Baht):

dlopeu IW00S  USBngey  wAOWAWIUTWIN 1,000,000 99.97 9,997 999,700
Stecon Power  Sybsidiary  nnus:nn

Company  Power Generations
dinin u-Tng USBNSoU  US:UUANYAVIIA: 8,000,000 35.00 27,997 2,799,700
IBUIITYSY Affiliated InsAuUAL
DKK Sino-Thai Company  Telecommunications
Engineering and Transmission

Lines
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OUR BUSINESS
ssNYYovdlu-ny

B /nfrastructure I Building
Mass Transit, Elevated Road, Office Building, Conven
Road, Highway, Bridge Exhibition Center, Cond

Construction Revenue Structure by Type of Works
L] Building M rover & Energy B Environment

- Infrastructure Industrial

0%

—

'| 8 Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
Bl /Annual Report 2017



I rower & Energy Il Environment
ion Center, Hospital, Power Flant, Refinery

ominium, Special Building

Waste Water Treatment Plant,
Water Supply System,
Irrigation System

Construction Revenue Structure by Type of Customers
B private sector

B public Sector (Including State Enterprise)

usEn Blu-Ing 1BUSITESY IoUA AOUANSATU 1A (UMBU) 10
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW
NMWSIUSSNY

Thailand economy in 2017 is expanding from
2016 with the supporting factors being the growth of
Thai exports and foreign tourists. These were supported
by increasing in the public investment spending,
especially from large scale infrastructure projects e.g.
transportation. Private consumption has not recovered
which caused by the cautious of consumer spending
and high level of household debt. Private investment is
gradually expands in connection with the erowth of
economic and public investment projects.

The overall situation of construction sector in
2017 continued to grow, although the public
investment projects were delayed during the first half
of the year, so there were not many projects opening
for bidding However, the second half of the year, the
public sector released more mega-projects. As for the
private sector, the construction investment remained
stable.

economic recovery, still waiting for development of

Investors are also concerned about the

the public investment which will affect confidence
and investment decision of private sectors.

Even though the economy was slightly erew up
in 2017; the performance of The Company was
gradually grew. At the end of 2017, The Company had
Baht 103,985 million as its backlog where consisted of
construction projects from governmental sectors and
private sectors. The construction projects derived
from governmental sectors were the mass rapid
transit, double track railway, roads and highways
including large buildings. The construction projects
derived from private sectors were power plants and
building projects.

Type of Customer

The Company is a well diverse construction
company capable of acquiring projects in many
different work fields. For this reason, The Company
has a varied customer base, all depending on the

type of project. The Company has the capabilities to

20 Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
B Annual Report 2017

take on projects in the private, government, or state

enterprise sectors.

In 2018, The Company plans to target projects
within the government sector that has an investment
framework for large scale public transportation
projects with the Mass Rapid Transit Authority and
State Railway of Thailand. These large scale
infrastructure projects under government long term
development plan will create a significant foundation
to support the economic growth and increase the
competitiveness of the country.

As for our client base in the private sector for
2018, The Company is still focusing on three key
areas: Power Plants (SPPs and IPPs), Industrial Plants

(petrochemical plants) and Buildings

The Target Customer

1. Public Sector (Government and State Enterprise)
consists of the following: Mass Rapid Transit Authority,
State Railway of Thailand, Bangkok Metropolitan
Authority, Electricity Generating Authority of Thailand,
Expressway Authority of Thailand, The Department of
Rural Road, Department of Irrigation, Department of
Highway, Metropolitan Electricity Authority, etc.

2. Private Sector consists of large foreign multi-
national EPC Contractors in the following areas:
Small and Large Power Plants and Petro chemical

process plants.
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The Company is proud to be a part of Thailand’s
economic growth through infrastructure projects such
as Mass Rapid Transit, the elevated roads, highways,
roads, bridges, dams, and marine works.

In the year 2017, there were the infrastructures
projects open for bidding, especially the public
sector’s mega projects. In the second half of the year,
the government continued to push new investment
in the infrastructure projects, such as mass transit
system, roads, express way projects and double track
railway. In 2017, The Company had its revenue from
construction amounting to Baht 9,463 million, or 47%
of total revenue from construction. The Company
focuses on infrastructure construction continuously
according to long-term infrastructure plan of the
government. The Company shall have a process in
the project selection carefully before bidding in terms
of costs and expected profits.

The projects completed in 2017 were Ban Huag
(Phayao)-Muang Khob-Muang Xiang Hone and Muang
Khob-Ban Pakkob-Ban Koneteun Road Improvement
Bridge
Karnjanapisek), “ 2 ” Road Contract 2 Nakornrachasrima

Project, Flyover (Charansanitwong -

and Central Plaza West Gate Underpass.
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47%

The
projects at the end of year 2017 were MRT Blue Line

infrastructure  on-going  construction
contract 4, By Pass Highway at Lumphun, MRT Green
Line - Contract 3 — 4, Double Track Chachoengsao -
Khlong Sip Kao - Kaeng Khoi No.1, The Intersection of
Highway No.9 and 345 Road, Motorway Bang-pa-in-
Saraburi-Nakornrachasrima, MRT Orange Line, MRT
Pink Line, MRT Yellow Line, Manhole and Underground
Duct Bank with the MRT Pink Line and Yellow Line
Project, Double Track Prajuabkirikhan — Chumphon
contract 2 and Double Track Nakhonpathom -
Huahin contract 2

The direction of infrastructure construction in
2018 is expected to grow. It was driven by the
the

infrastructure and mass transit system construction

investment of eovernment through new
projects following to strategic plan of transport
in  Thailand, which is

expected to result in the bright future for the

infrastructure investment

infrastructure construction.
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BUILDING
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The Company has various services of buildings,
which are office buildings, condominiums, aircraft
maintenance centers, sport centers, school buildings,
hospitals, museum, convention, cargo, air terminals
etc.

The overall growth of building construction
market in the year 2017 was pretty close to that of
the year 2016. There were some, but not many
building construction projects of the government.
Meanwhile, the private sector in residential and
commercial real estate had a limited grow. There is
competition among many developers in the market.

The Company continuously gained construction
projects in buildings both governmental and private
sectors. In 2017, The Company has its revenue from
construction in buildings portion amounting to Baht
4,026 million, or 20% of total revenue from construction.

Construction projects that completed in 2017
were Phuket International Airport Expansion, Design &
Build Works for CAT Head Office, BTS Link Bridge,
DOEE Car Parking Building Bangbua and The Royal

Funeral Pyre Model Project in 19 provinces.
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20.1%

At the end of 2017, The Company had its on-
going projects which were Supreme Court Building,
The New National Parliament House, New Office
Building of the Bureau of the Budget, Phoenix Medical
Center at Bangkok Hospital, DOH Central Lab and New
Head Quarter of Ministry of Finance.

As for the trend of the building construction
projects in 2018, is expected to growth, the expansion
of the economy and the investments of the public
and private sectors, especially residential project

along the mass rapid transit routes.
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POWER AND ENERGY
VIUAUWAWIU
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The power and energy projects are one of the
main construction projects of The Company. The
Company has played in a major role in power and
energy sector especially power plants. There was an
expansion of using power generation in the country so
there will be lot of power plants construction plans
like power plant project of Electricity Generating
Authority of Thailand, Power plants of private sector
including IPP, SPP and VSPP.

Power in 2017 had

continuously erown from the year 2016, especially

and energy market

SPPs projects and renewable energy such as solar
farm, wind farm, biomass energy, and waste energy
etc. In 2017, The Company had its revenue from
construction in power and energy portion amounting
to Baht 6,169 million, or 31% of the total revenue
from construction.

The project completed in 2017 was Vangtapin
Power Plant and Tasit 1-3 Power Plant

26 Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
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30.8%

At the end of 2017, The Company had its on-
going projects which were Tasit 4 Power Plant, Nonsi
Power Plant, Banlane Power Plant, Banpho Power
Plant, Nonglalok Power Plant, Nongplamo Power
Plant and Nongraviang 1-2 Power Plant.

The future trend of construction projects in
power and energy continues to grow steadily driven
by economic growth of the country. Government
currently develop new power development plan
(PDP) which led to increase more power sourcing from

renewable energy.
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INDUSTRIAL
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The Company has wide range of experience in
Industrial construction projects. Sino-Thai as a leader
in construction of industrial plants such as refineries,
petrochemicals, chemical plants, steel mills which
including fabrication and erection of steel structure
and piping works.

The construction market in industrial sector in
2017 was slowdown from the year 2016. There was
few new projects launched.

The trend of industrial construction projects in
2018 is expected to improve. The government plans
to develop the Eastern Economic Corridor (EEC) from
2017 - 2021 in the three eastern provinces including
Chonburi, Rayong and Chachoengsao. It is divided into
sub zones e.g. industrial zones, residential zones and
etc. Infrastructure development and urban
development are expected to generate new projects

of industrial plants and residential.

2017
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The Company becomes a part of environmental
concerns by committing to construct environmental
projects such as waste water treatment project, water
supply project, and piping installation.

The construction in environment sector in 2017
was pretty close to that of the year 2016. The
Company had its revenue from construction in
environment portion amounting from the Drainage
Tunnel from Nongborn to the Chao Praya River.

In 2017, the
Company in the Environmental Sector amounted to
Baht 357 million or 1.8% of the total construction

revenue.

revenue recognized by the

The trend of the construction of environmental
projects still gradually expand. The water management
plan will create more projects e.¢. the resolution for
water shortage projects, the resolution for flooding
projects, the improvement of water quality projects

and water management projects etc.

2017

1.8%
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INDUSTRY AND COMPETITION
N12:N1SOANNNA:NSIIRINIU

Construction Overview in 2017

Growth has been evident in the overall picture
of construction industry in 2017. Thai government has
expanded investments in large-sized infrastructure
projects, which include newly launched and existing
ones. Due to delay in the first half of 2017, investments
of new government projects had been postponed
from the original timeline and thus there were merely
a few number of procurement projects. In the first
half of 2017, government investments in construction
had seen a slight decrease. Successful large-scale
procurement projects in the first half of 2017 included
the Orange Line electric train route (Thailand Cultural
Center-Min Buri), the Pink Line electric train route
(Khae Rai-Min Buri), the Yellow Line electric train route
(Lad Prao-Samrong), the inter-provincial motorway
project and the Bang Pa-in-Saraburi-Nakhon
Ratchasima motorway project.

The overall picture of the latter half of 2017
was trending compared to first half. Government
investments involved new other procurement
projects, such as the double-track rail projects for
Prachuap Khiri Khan-Chumphon, Map Ka Bao-Jira,
Nakhon Pathom-Hua Hin, Lop Buri-Pak Nam Pho and

Hua Hin-Prachuap Khiri Khan routes, etc.
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Private sector investments in 2017 remained
stable. Construction investment in residential projects
along electric train routes have been continuing,
whereas the large-sized industrial and commercial
construction projects, industrial

involving plants

and shopping complex were slightly stagnant.
Entrepreneurs had shown weary in the economy,
which has not fully recovered and made them more
aware in making investment decisions. Entrepreneurs
awaited clear movements of public sector, specifically
for investment projects in infrastructure for which will
strengthen the confidence and promote investment

decisions of private sector investors.

Competitiveness and Market Share
During 2017,
construction projects open for bidding, especially the

there were many new

infrastructure projects of both the public and private
sectors. The Company engaged in the bidding process
regularly for an increasing order backlog. At the end of
2017, the total value of backlog order was Baht
103,985 million. The backlog order on hand assures
our continuing growth of revenue for The Company in
the future. Moreover, we will be able to bid on many

new projects in the upcoming year ahead.
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Trends of the Industry and Competitiveness in the Future

According to the Transport Infrastructure Action
Plan, B.E. 2560 (A.D. 2017), involving 36 projects of
which the investment value totals at Baht 800,000
million, it is set to commence in 2017 and might
encounter some obstacles or difficulties. For example,
the improvement of procurement procedure (TOR)
and loudgetary price. Therefore, certain construction
procurement plans might require amendment and
cause delay. Nevertheless, it is expected that the
proposed projects will further continue. Meanwhile,
there are new government projects set for bidding,

which are:

The Mass Rapid Transit

1. MRT Purple Line -South (Taopoon - Ratburana)
Baht 131,004 million

2. MRT Blue Line (Bang Khae - Phuttha monthon 4)
Baht 21,120 million

3. MRT Orange Line (Talingchan -Cultural center)
Baht 85,289 million

4. SRT Red Line (Talingchan -Sirirat - Salaya)
Baht 19,042 million

5. SRT Red Line (Rangsit-Thammasat)
Baht 7,597 million

6. Airport Rail Link (Phayathai - Bang-sue - Don muang.)
Baht 31,139 million

7. MRT Green Line (Samutprakan-Bang Poo)
Baht 9,530 million

8. MRT Green Line (Khu khot — Lam lukka)
Baht 9,236 million

The Double Track

1. Double Track Paknampho - Denchai
Baht 56,057 million

2. Double Track Chira-Ubonratchathani
Baht 35,836 million

3. Double Track Khonkaen-Nongkhai
Baht 26,058 million

4. Double Track Chumphon-Suratthani
Baht 23,379 million
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5. Double Track Suratthani — Songkhla
Baht 51,819 million

6. Double Track Hatyai — Padangbesar
Baht 7,940 million

7. Double Track Denchai — Chiangmai
Baht 59,917 million

8. Double Track Denchai — Chiangkhong
Baht 76,980 million

9. Double Track Khonkaen — Nakhonphanom
Baht 60,353 million

Competition in the construction industry shall
remain the same as it has always been. On one hand,
the competition for the public sector’s mega projects
should not be too high because of the enormous
scale of the projects, such as mass rapid transit
projects, which require the contractor who are
qualified for the technical qualifications and there are
not so many contractors having such qualifications.
On the other hand, the competition for the small and
medium construction projects should be high due to
the fact that there are many contractors. Although
the growth of the overall construction industry in
2017 is expected to continue into 2018, for contractors
there should be many risk factors to be concerned,;
the major risks can be concluded as follows:

1. Potential shortage of workforce since more
construction workers will be needed in the future.

2. Thailand’s economy continues to expand slowly,
which affects the private sector’s decision-making
in new investment plans.

3. The government’s disbursement of funds is quite
slow.

4. Delay in bidding process for infrastructure projects
of government agencies.

5. Increase in Prices of construction materials due to
an increase in the demand and prices of the raw
materials.

6. Wages may rise due to an increase in the need for

skilled workers.
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Chairman of the Board of Directors
Independent Director
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Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited

Bl Annual Report 2017

Shareholding in The Company: 12,857 shares or 0.00%
Age 73 years

Appointed date as a Director: April 4, 2010

Education:

® The National Defence Course for Joint-State-Private College Class No. 1,
National Defence College (Wor.Por.Ror.Or.)

® LL.M, Chulalongkorn University (First place in the written test)

® Thai Barrister at Law

® LL.B.,, Thammasart University

Experience:

® Adjunct Professor, Faculty of Law, Chulalongkorn University

® Adjunct Professor, Institute of Legal Education of the Thai Barrister

® Adjunct Professor, Faculty of Law, Mahidol University

® Adjunct Professor, Faculty of Law, Mae Fah Luang University

® Lecturer at the Office of Justice Affairs, Ministry of Justice

® Lecturer at the Department of Special Investigation, Ministry of
Justice

® Lecturer at the Institute of Administration, Ministry of Interior

® Lecturer at the Office of The Attorney General

Other position in listed company in SET:

® Vice President, Don Muang Tollway Public Company Limited

® Director, TRUE Corporation Public Company Limited

® Director, Sermsuk Public Company Limited

Other positions in non-listed companies:

® Advisor, Bureau of Academic Affairs and Educational Standards

® Advisor, Bangkok Airways Company Limited

® Advisor, The Office of SMEs Promotion (OSMEP)

® Executive Director, National Science and Technology Development
Agency

® Advisor, Athletic Association of Thailand

® Director, Office of the Council of State

® Director, Ministry of Justice

® Distinguished Director in Law, Office of the Civil Service Commission —
Ministry of Agriculture and Cooperatives

Completed programs by Thai Institute of Directors (IOD):

® 2004 - Director Accreditation Program Class No. 26

Meeting attendance:

® Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2017: 1/1

® Board of Directors’ Meeting in 2017: 7/7

Family relationship

® None
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Mr. Chamni Janchai

US=87UNSSUNISRSIAGIU
NSsSUN1Sods:

Chairman of the Audit Committee
Independent Director

dndunstenuluuiem : ldfinsiioru

21y 61

USRS SUNTUSEM « 21 Wwiew 25642

Usedinsfine

* UsznatleUnstuganisusnsiasygiaanstsazaatunss
Uninan

* YSyguimsgsiaumiudinuviivendusssuaans

* USgadndvadiauming1dusssumans

UsgIRnsvinau

® Us¥sUNTIUNTUSING VXA, Tidud Lﬁuuua?ﬁ

® US¥EIUNTIUNNT VLA, LN Lwiia AasUsLsdu

®* NSIUNIHBIILNNT UTIW Traidu maudan $11n

® NITUNMISKBINILANT VTN T3, wasunu drin

srunvsduussneanzdousu

® NSUNNT ULA. LoaTifl waun Lo

® NSIUNNTDATY LATATIUNITATIVADU UL, 815N

* n3sums una, Tiui Suesd

Fumsluvsenou Nlldussnaanzideu

®* n3sums UsEm guns luletlea 91iin

®* n3suns UsEm was luleniea d1in

® NSIUNNT LUAS AU BT 311A

UsgiRmseusumngnsiidnlasanaudaaiuandunssuns

uislne (10D) ‘

® { 2547 Director Accreditation Program i;‘u‘ﬁ 30

® { 2552 Role of the Chairman Program i:u‘ﬁ 21

Usedanssauseau

* Uszyulnajansiayifieviu Used1l 2560 dhuau 1/1

®* UsgyuAnNITUNIUSEN Usednl 2560 d1uau 7/7

® UspyuAnNIIUNMINTIREe Used1l 2560 F1uu 7/7

ANUANNUEN1IATOUATITYNINGUTINS

o [aif]

Shareholding in The Company: None

Age 61 years

Appointed date as a Director: April 21, 1999
Education:

® Graduate Diploma in Management of Public Economy,
King Prajadhipok’s Institute

® MBA, Thammasat University

® B. Account, Thammasat University

Experience:

® Chairman of Executive Committee, BMP Energy PCL.

® Chairman of the Board, Max Metal Corporation PCL.

® Director, CJM Consult Co, Ltd.

® Director, CJ Morgan Co, Ltd.

Other position in listed company in SET:

® Director, STP & | PCL.

® Independent Director and Audit Committee, RPCG PCL.

® Director, BMP Energy PCL.

Other positions in non-listed companies: None

® Director, Chumphon Biofuel Co, Ltd.

® Director, Betong Biofuel Co, Ltd.

® Director, Betong Green Power Co, Ltd.

Completed programs by Thai Institute of Directors (IOD):
® 2004 - Director Accreditation Program Class No. 30
® 2009 - Role of the Chairman Program Class No. 21
Meeting attendance:

® Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2017: 1/1
® Board of Directors’ Meeting in 2017: 7/7

® Audit Committee Meeting in 2017: 7/7

Family relationship

® None
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Police General Jate Mongkolhutthi
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Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Independent Director, Member of the Audit Committee
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Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
Bl Annual Report 2017

Shareholding in The Company: None

Age 64 years

Appointed date as a Director: April 21, 1999
Education:

® Entrepreneurship and Business Skill Class No. 7, NIDA

® Police Management for Top Executives Class No. 16, Police College

® Justice Management for Top Executives Class No. 6, Office of the
Attorney General

® C(ertificate of The National Defence College Class No. 45

® LL.M., Chulalongkorn University

® LL.B., Ramkhamhaeng University

Experience:

® Advisory to the Board of Directors, National Credit Bureau

Other position in listed company in SET:

® Independent Director and a Member of the Audit Committee,
STP & | Plc.

® Independent Director and Member of the Audit Committee,
Southeast Insurance Plc.

® Independent Director and Member of the Audit Committee,
Southeast Life Plc.

® Independent Director and Member of the Audit Committee,
Lease It Plc.

Other positions in non-listed companies:

® None

Completed programs by Thai Institute of Directors (IOD):

® 2004 - Director Accreditation Program Class No. 8

® 2006 - Audit Committee Program Class No. 14

® 2006 - Finance for Non-Finance Director Class No. 30

® 2009 - Director Certificate Program Class No. 117

Meeting attendance:

® Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2017: 1/1

® Board of Directors’ Meeting in 2017: 7/7

® Audit Committee Meeting in 2017: 7/7

® Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meeting in 2017: 3/3

Family relationship

® None
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NSSUN1Sdds:, NSSUNISNSIFIU
NssUNIsSassKliazNMKuUARINdUINU

Independent Director, Member of the Audit Committee
Member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
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Shareholding in the Company: None

Age 70 years

Appointed date as a Director: March 11, 2008
Education:

® MBA Economics, Texas A&M, Commerce, Texas, U.S.A.

® B.SC. Marketing, Woodbury University, Los Angeles, California,
U.SA.

Experience:

® Director, Inspection and Evaluation Bureau (Level 9), Office of the
Permanent Secretary, Ministry of Finance

Other position in listed company in SET:

® None

Other positions in non-listed companies:

® None

Completed programs by Thai Institute of Directors (IOD):

® 2009 - Director Accreditation Program Class No. 78

® 2009 - Audit Committee Program Class No. 26

® 2011 - Monitoring the System of Internal Class No. 11

Meeting attendance:

® Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2017: 1/1

® Board of Directors’ Meeting in 2017: 7/7

® Audit Committee Meeting in 2017: 7/7

® Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meeting in 2017: 3/3

Family relationship

® None
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Mr. Thanathip Vidhayasirinun

NnsSsSUN1Sdas:
Independent Director
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Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited

Bl Annual Report 2017

Shareholding in The Company: 12,857 shares or 0.00%
Age 51 years
Appointed date as a Director: February 28, 2001

Education:
[ ]

Top Executive Program in Commerce and Trade (TEPCOT 6),
Commerce Academy

® Energy Literacy Class No. 4, Thailand Energy Academy
Training Course on Capital Market for Executives Class No. 15,
Capital Market Academy

Institute of Business and Industrial Development (IBID 2)

® MBA Finance, Cornell University — U.S.A.

M.S. Electrical Engineering, Cornell University — U.S.A.

Bachelor of Science, Electrical Engineering, Computer Engineering,

Industrial Management, Carnegie Institute of Technology,

Carnegie Mellon University, USA

Experience:

® Managing Director, Sage Capital Co., Ltd.

® Executive Director, Forest Industry Organization

Other position in listed company in SET:

® Independent Director and a Member of the Audit Committee,
Thai Paiboon Public Company Limited

Other positions in non-listed companies:

® Director, Alliance of International Corporate Advisors

® Independent Director a Member of the Audit Committee and
Chairman of the Risk Management Committee, TIH

Completed programs by Thai Institute of Directors (IOD):

® 2001 - Director Certificate Program Class No. 7

Meeting attendance:

® Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2017: 1/1

® Board of Directors’ Meeting in 2017: 6/7

Family relationship

® None
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Dr. Chaiyong Satjipanon
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Independent Director
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Shareholding in The Company: None

Age 63 years

Appointed date as a Director: April 22, 2014
Education:

® Diploma of Leadership development program, IMD, Switzerland

® Diploma of Senior Executive Fellows program, Havard Kenedy

School

® Doctor of Philosophy, The Fletcher School of Law and Diplomacy,
Tufts University, U.S.A.

® Master of Arts in Law and Diplomacy, The Fletcher School of
Law and Diplomacy, Tufts University, U.S.A. (Fulbright-Purify
Scholarship)

® Bachelor of Arts (Honors), Faculty of Political Science,
Chulalongkorn University

Experience:

® Director and Chairman of Risk Management Committee,
G Capital Plc.

® Director and Chairman of Risk Management Committee,
Pacific Pipe Plc.

® Ambassador Extraordinary and Plenipotentiary of Thailand
to the USA.

® Ambassador Extraordinary and Plenipotentiary of Thailand
to the Republic of Korea

® Ambassador Extraordinary and Plenipotentiary of Thailand to
Swiss Confederation, Liechtenstein and the Holy See

Other position in listed company in SET:

® None

Other positions in non-listed companies:

® None

Completed programs by Thai Institute of Directors (IOD):

® 2014 - Director Accreditation Program Class No. 112

® 2015 - Directors Certification Program Class No. 212

® 2015 - Risk Management Committee Program Class No. 6

® 2017 - Financial Statements for Directors Program Class No. 32

Meeting attendance:

® Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2017: 1/1

® Board of Directors’ Meeting in 2017: 7/7

Family relationship

® None
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Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
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Shareholding in The Company: None

Age 70 years

Appointed date as a Director: April 22, 2014

Education:

® (Capital Market Academy Leadership Program (CMA9),

Capital Market Academy
® Doctor of Philosophy in Public Administration,

Ramkhamhaeng University
® Master Degree in Public Administration (First Honor),

The National Institute of Development Administration (NIDA)
® Bachelor of Science, Chulachomklao Royal Military Academy
Experience:
® Special Instructor at Faculty of Political Science,

Ramkhamheang University
® Special Instructor at Political Communication College, Krirk University
® Defense Inspector General
Other position in listed company in SET:
® Director, National Power Supply Plc.
® Chairman of the Audit Committee, TWZ Corporation Plc.
Other positions in non-listed companies:
® None
Completed programs by Thai Institute of Directors (IOD):
® 2010 - Director Accreditation Program Class No. 84
Meeting attendance:
® Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2017: 1/1
® Board of Directors’ Meeting in 2017: 6/7
Family relationship
® None
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Mr. Masthawin Charnvirakul
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Director

dnarunistonuluu3dm : 25,457,142 fiu Anlusesas 1.67

91y 45 U

FUNASIFUAUINTTUNITUSEN : 19 Sunan 2539

UsgiRnsAne

* wdngastfuimssedugs ULTRA WEALTH GROUP suil 2/2016

* YsznateUnsndnansiuimsseaugs an1uine1nisnanniu
Uil 11/2010 Tng aantuimenmsnananu

MBA (International Business) University of Southern California USA
* YSn1es Anrdiemaniuazn1siad eunansalimineidy
UszInn1svineu

® NITUNMTUAZNTIUMIHIANTT VLA, Loaiiil waud 1o

® NITUNMTUAZNTIUMIHIANTT VAN, Lod 11 la ¥
fumdsluridneazdoudy

® NIUNMSUALNTINNGHIANS VAR, Loadiil uous o
Fumdsluvsemou nlalvusenannzidou

® NITUNMTHASNITUMIHIANTT VAN, 1od 11 la 7
ﬂix*’ﬁmﬁamwﬁ”ﬂqmﬁﬁmlmaamvma’ﬁLﬁ%mamﬂuﬂﬁumiu‘%ﬁwiwﬂ
(IoD)

® ) 2546 Director Accreditation Program éu‘ﬁ 1
Usgiinssaudssau

* Uszyulvajandiaydfionu Usedd 2560 uau 1/1

®* UsgyuAnugNIINMIUSEN UsednU 2560 S1uau 7/7
ANUANHUEN1IATOUATITENINEUIIS

* fiveaneiadn dRalsa

Shareholding in The Company: 25,457,142 shares or 1.67%

Age 45 years

Appointed date as a Director: December 19, 1996

Education:

® Executive Course ULTRA WEALTH GROUP Program Class No.
2/2016

® (Capital Market Academy Leadership Program (CMA11),
Capital Market Academy

® MBA (International Business) University of Southern California U.S.A.

® B. Business Administration, Chulalongkorn University

Experience:

® Director and Managing Director, STP & | Plc.

® Director and Managing Director, STIT Co., Ltd.

Other position in listed company in SET:

® Director, STP & | Plc.

Other positions in non-listed companies:

® Director, STIT Co., Ltd.

Completed programs by Thai Institute of Directors (IOD):

® 2003 - Director Accreditation Program Class No. 1

Meeting attendance:

® Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2017 : 1/1

® Board of Directors’ Meeting in 2017 : 7/7

Family relationship

® Mrs. Anilrat Nitisaroj’s Brother
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Mrs. Anilrat Nitisaroj
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Director

Executive Director

dndrunistieuluuim : 25,457,142 vu Aaludesas 1.67

21y 411

Jufihseuntangsun1suiey : 23 fuiau 2552

UszdRmsane

® MBA Finance & Strategy Sloan School of Management

Massachusetts Institute of Technology USA

* JpItude NesAloududu 1 pugmdvemanuaznsiyd
PHAINTAUNTIN R

UseiRn1svinnu }

® Director Uan. 0@ wSowneain weud ladannd

® Business Development & Legal Department Manager

UNA. Lol wous 1o

® Commercial Manager U34. Lo@#iil Woun Lo

® Commercial Manager Clough Sino-Thai Co., Ltd.

unisluuismanne Soudu 5

® Director Uan. 0@ NSowneain weun ladannd

® Business Development & Legal Department Manager U39, L@
uous 1o

® Commercial Manager U34. to@#iil Loun Lo

sunidluuiendu Aldldussnannadeou

® Taidl

UsgTRmseusumngnsitdnlnsanaudaaiuantunssumsuisnine

(I0D)

® { 2552 Director Certification Program iﬁ"uﬁ‘ 121

Usgiinmssiudssyu

* Uszyulngjansiayitievu Used1l 2560 dhuau 1/1

®* UszyuanNITUNIUSEN Usednl 2560 S1uau 7/7

® UspyuAnNIIUNMIUIINS Used1l 2560 31uau 17/17

ANUANTUEN1IATOUATITENINEUTINS

* desaninnanAnil ¥193na

Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
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Shareholding in The Company: 25,457,142 shares or 1.67%
Age 41 years

Appointed date as a Director: March 23, 2009

Education:

® MBA Finance & Strategy Sloan School of Management,
Massachusetts Institute of Technology, U.S.A.

® B. Business Administration (1% Honor), Chulalongkorn University

Experience:

® Director, ST Property & Logistics Company Limited

® Business Development & Legal Department Manager, STP & | Plc.

® Commercial Manager, STP & | Plc.

® Commercial Manager, Clough Sino-Thai Co., Ltd.

Other position in listed company in SET

® Director, ST Property & Logistics Company Limited

® Business Development & Legal Department Manager, STP & | Plc.

® Commercial Manager, STP & | Plc.

Other positions in non-listed companies:

® None

Completed programs by Thai Institute of Directors (IOD):

® 2009 - Director Certification Program Class No. 121

Meeting attendance:

® Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2017: 1/1

® Board of Directors’ Meeting in 2017: 7/7

® Board of Executive Directors’ Meeting in 2017: 17/17

Family relationship

® Mr. Masthawin Charnvirakul’s Sister
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Mr. Vallop Rungkijvorasathien

nssuN1s, Us=81unssSUNISUSKIS
NssUNIsSassKliazNMKuUARINdUINU

Director, Chairman of the Board of Executive Directors
Member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
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Shareholding in The Company: None

Age 66 years

Appointed date as a Director: April 3, 1995
Education:

® Energy Literacy Class No. 4, Thailand Energy Academy

® Training Course on Administrative Justice for Executives Class No. 4,

The Administrative Court

® Advanced Security Management Program Class No. 3 (ASMP 3),
The National Defence College Association of Thailand

® (Capital Market for Executives Class No. 8 (CMAB),
Capital Market Academy

® SPP Certificate Class. 2549, National Defence College of Thailand

® Graduate Diploma in Management of Government and Private
Sectors, King Prajadhipok’s Institute Certificate, National Defence
College of Thailand

® Executive MBA, Chulalongkorn University

® B.S. Engineering, Chiang Mai University

Experience:

® President, Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Plc.

Other position in listed company in SET:

® None

Other positions in non-listed companies:

® Chairman of the Board of Directors, DKK Sino-Thai Co., Ltd.

® Director, Thai Contractors Association Under H.M. The King’s

Patronage

Director and Chairman, Chiang Mai University Alumni Association,

Chiang Mai University

® Director, Stecon Power Co., Ltd.

Completed programs by Thai Institute of Directors (IOD):

® 2006 - Director Accreditation Program Class No. 52

® 2014 - Role of the Chairman Program Class No. 34

® 2016 - Director Certification Program Class No. 231

Meeting attendance:

® Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2017: 1/1

® Board of Directors’ Meeting in 2017: 7/7

® Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meeting in 2017: 3/3

® Board of Executive Directors’” Meeting in 2017: 17/17

Family relationship

® None
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Mr. Pakpoom Srichamni
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Director, Executive Director

President and Chairman of the Management Committee
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Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited

Bl Annual Report 2017

Shareholding in The Company: None
Age 56 years
Appointed date as a Director: April 26, 2012

Education:
[

Executive Management with Business Development and Invest-

ment Class No. 3, Institute of Business and Industrial Development

The Program for Senior Executives on Justice Administration Class 19,

National Justice Academy

® (Capital Market for Executives Class No. 18 (CMA18), Capital Market
Academy

® SPP Certificate Class. 2554, National Defence College of Thailand

Certificate, Management of Government and Private Sectors,

King Prajadhipok’s Institute

® MBA Thammasat University

® Bachelor of Engineering (Civil Engineering), Kasetsart University

Experience:

® Director, Senior Executive Vice President Operation Division,
Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Plc.

® Director, Senior Vice President Operation Division,
Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Plc.

Other position in listed company in SET:

® None

Other positions in non-listed companies:

® Director, Stecon Power Co., Ltd.

Completed programs by Thai Institute of Directors (IOD):

® 2006 - Director Accreditation Program Class No. 52

® 2012 - Director Certification Program Class No. 161

Meeting attendance:

® Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2017: 1/1

® Board of Directors’ Meeting in 2017: 7/7

® Board of Executive Directors’ Meeting in 2017: 17/17

Family relationship

® None
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Director, Executive Director, Member of the Management
Committee and SEVP. Financial and Administration Division
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Shareholding in The Company: 1,234,285 shares or 0.08%
Age 63 years

Appointed date as a Director: February 28, 2001
Education:

® Certificate in Management of Public Economy for High-Level
Management, King Prajadhipok’s Institute (Class No. 5)

® MPA. Public Policy & Project Management, NIDA

® BBA. Finance & Banking, Thammasat University

Experience:

® SEVP. Financial and Administrative Division, Sino-Thai Engineering
and Construction Plc.

® SVP. Accounting and Financial Division, Sino-Thai Engineering
and Construction Plc.

® Accounting and Financial Division Manager, Sino-Thai Engineering
and Construction Plc.

Other position in listed company in SET:

® None

Other positions in non-listed companies:

® Director, HTR Co., Ltd.

® Director, DKK Sino-Thai Co., Ltd.

® Director, Chiyoda (Thailand) Co., Ltd.

® Director, Patumwan Real Estate Co., Ltd.

® Director, Kijpracha Tanee Co., Ltd.

® Director, Stecon Power Co., Ltd.

Completed programs by Thai Institute of Directors (IOD):

® 2003 - Director Certification Program Class No. 27

® 2003 - Risk Management Committee Program Class No. 1

® 2007 - DCP Refreshment Class No. 4

Meeting attendance:

® Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2017: 1/1

® Board of Directors’ Meeting in 2017: 7/7

® Board of Executive Directors’ Meeting in 2017: 17/17

® Audit Committee Meeting in 2017: 7/7

Family relationship

® None
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1. ugdaan suieasianys 2. wmgmad AU
Mr. Vallop Rungkijvorasathien Mr. Pakpoom Srichamni
Js:5UNSSUNISUSHIS NSSUNISUSKHIS
Chairman of the Board of Executive Directors Executive Director

3. Uwoswus Faunov 4. uweUaSau Unaseud
Mr. Woraphant Chontong Mrs. Anilrat Nitisaroj
NSSUNISUSKHIS NSSUNISUSKHIS
Executive Director Executive Director

ino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
Ann

ual Report 2017



THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
ADUNSSUNISOSIvADU

1.

ungFld unsang

Mr. Chamni Janchai
Us:s1UNSSUN1ISNSIaaU
Chairman of the Audit Committee

wad1saveninal Uuparnn
Police General Jate
Mongkolhutthi
Us:sunssunNIsassuliaznrnun
AOdUINU

Chairman of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee

2.

2.

wacsavenivau Uunaknn
Police General Jate
Mongkolhutthi
NSsSUNISOSIvaU

Member of the Audit Committee

UNYATY NUINJWIY
Mr. Suchai Poopichayapongs
NSSUNSASSHIA:MHUNAN

nauiinu
Member of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee

3.

THE NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
ANU:NSSUNNSASSHIIA:NKUNAIODUIINU

3.

UN9AdY NUIJWIY

Mr. Suchai Poopichayapongs
NSSUNISNSIVAdU

Member of the Audit Committee

ugdaan SuNeasianus
Mr. Vallop Rungkijvorasathien
NSSUNISASSHIIA:MKUOAT

aaulinu
Member of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee
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ungmAnD  ASHIU

Mr. Pakpoom  Srichamni
Uszsaunssuniseanns,
NSSUNISEINMS

Chairman of Management Committee,
President

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

U1gISWUs Founay

Mr. Woraphant Chontong
NSSUNISYONTS, NSSUNISSOVEIONTS
AYNUNISIUNIA:USKHIS

Member of Management Committee
Senior Executive Vice President
Financial & Administration Division

uN9asy nAauTuly

Mr. Varatt Kusolmanomai
NSSUNISTONTS, SOUNSSUNISPIONTS
aguudpuans

Member of Management Committee
Senior Executive Vice President
Operation Division

UgIYIY  $15SNUS:IASY

Mr. Chanchai Thanrukprasert
NSSUMSIONMS, @gFUNSSUNIS
gdonisasuvudjunns 2

Member of Management Committee
Senior Vice President Operation
Division 2

ugls: uA3UA

Mr. Pheera Nakwimol
NSSUNISYONTS, GFIUNSSUNMS
gromsdounuinAtAiA:weIUY
Member of Management Committee
Senior Vice President Technical and
Development Division

Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
Bl Annual Report 2017

UNYUSIASY AVIASWSSSU

Mr. Prasert Kongkauroptham
NSSUNISYONTS, GFIUNSSUNS
gronmisdouuIuMsSnaln

Member of Management Committee
Senior Vice President Marketing
Division

10. UNYSNY NIAY

Mr. Rakesh Kalia

NSSUNISIONTS, QFIUNSSUNIS
gromsdounul{uans 3

Member of Management Committee
Senior Vice President Operation
Division 3

UYSSWIr  3Fsuun

Mr. Teeraphong Wichiranon
NSSUNISYONTS, GFIuNSSUNIS
@g0MISAIUNIUUSHNS

Member of Management Committee
Senior Vice President Administration
Division



UgaNNY IUU3S:TY

Mr. Somchai Wattanaweerachai
NSSUNISYONTS, SEUNSSUNISEIONTS
VUNYNISWIAY

Member of Management Committee
Senior Executive Vice President -
Special Division

uasans qafu

Mr. Worachat Suwasin
NSSUNISYONTS, GFIUNSSUMS
gronisdouuulIaNS 1

Member of Management Committee
Senior Vice President Operation
Division 1

ASSISITANT TO PRESIDENT
ACU:NUSNWL

1. Mr. Robert L. De Sonier 2. Mr. Robin Mullin
AUSNW AUSNW
Special Assistant to President Assistant to President

COMPANY SECRETARY
IAYIUNISUSLN

unglrows dUNSYNA
Mr.Chaiyaporn Imcharoenkul
IAgIYNISUSEN

Company Secretary

USBN Blu-Ing 1SURITESY llBUA ABUARSABU $IMA (UMIBU)
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MANAGEMENT TEAM
ACU:QUSKHIS

1. UgAEU ASAsAwa 2. We9IsmIy IsShuannm 3. ugdnswa wusunua
Mr. Comsin Srisonkompon Mr. Jarunat Jiraratsatit Mr. Sutthipol Patcharanaruemol
winnsuhaufuanas 1 winnsuhaunuanns 2 winnsuhadfuanns 3
Vice President Operation Department 1 Vice President Operation Department 2 Vice President Operation Department 3

4. UngauAn AsenUur 5. WeUs:ans Us: 6. Ugd7sY d@aaonlw
Mr. Somkid Siriapinun Mr. Prasit Prawang Mr. Vitoon Salilampai
wiANSuhaURuANTS 4 WIANSW8URUANTS 5 WIANISWIEIAINSSY
Vice President Operation Department 4 Vice President Operation Department 5 Vice President Engineering

7. UEINSWUS daws 8. ugInwins Juiu 9. uNMIU Isulsina
Mr. Charkphan Leelaporn Mr. Thepnikorn Junkhun Mrs. Kanchana Varoonchotikul
WIAMSEgUSNISIWNeas I 1 winmsthausnsvunoas 2 wiANSaUs:UItuSIAN
Vice President Construction Service Vice President Construction Service Vice President Estimation Department
Department 1 Department 2

Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
Bl Annual Report 2017



10. welwss gsm=amu 11.

Mr. Pairat Sushatawat
winnsuhedndo
Vice President Procurement Department

13, UMY 1NB:=WBny: 14.

Mrs. Jaikaew Tejapijaya
winnsuhalnys
Vice President Accounting Department

16. Ungaudna navdounau 17.

Mr. Somsak Thongsorngleeb
WIANSLNBWAIUNSSTY

Vice President Business Development
Department

ugwadion AuwIds

Mr. Pong-Aik Tanphanich
winnsuhessms

Vice President Administration
Department

UWWES ggouswus

Mrs. Patcharee Suchewaboripont
winnswhanswensunna

Vice President Human Resources
Department

UNgassIn 19SYWS

Mr. Surachart Owcharoenporn
winmsthainalulagasauina

Vice President Information Technology
Department

12, unams1 Jrurus9ouy

15.

Mrs. Chatra Punnarujawong
winN1swhgMsulaznsadnu

Vice President Financial & Investment
Department

ungdnsy gaRwly

Mr. Wigrom Suwattipanich
winn1swhgnuUaonng

Vice President Safety Department
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SHAREHOLDERS’ STRUCTURE
TnsvaswwahioAu

sgBogiiofuniioRuguan 10 $18 tu UryBsheBotiioriu 3un 6 TuiAu 2560
As of the registration book closing on March 6, 2017, the 10 largest shareholders are:

: usHn B.0. 1PURdS 9NA

(C.T. Venture Company Limited)
2 The Bank of New York Mellon --
3 UBS AG Singapore Branch --
,  U18ouNu InyIsna

(Mr.Anutin Charnvirakul)
- UWWS ASShUanm

(Mrs.Patchara Jiraratsatit)
6  State Street Bank Europe Limited --
, Usan 9A3R waa $1nn

(Equity Plus Company Limited)
8  Chase Nominees Limited --
9 UNCUAUIN aUUnSey

(Mrs.Nitsanart Anantachai)
1o WeuIANdU BInydsna

(Mr.Masthawin Charnvirakul)
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MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE

TasvaswNIsIaNs
The Company’s management structure can 1A59E519N159AN5V9 USEN Blu-Ine Lﬁu%Lﬁ‘a’%‘q
be divided as follows: wous AouansATY $1im (i) fisreaziBeadsoluil
1. The Board of Directors 1. ANZNITUAITUSEN
2. The Board of Executive Directors 2. ANZNTIUNITUIMS
3. The Audit Committee 3. AMZNITUNITNTIAADU
4. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee 4. ANZNIIUNITATIVNILALATNUAAIND UL
5. The Management Committee 5. AMZNIIUNITIANIT
6. The President 6. NITUNITEIANTS
7. The Executive 7. HUIMS

ACU=NSSUNISUSEN

The Board of Director

ADU=NSSUNISASIAIU ADU=NSSUNISASSH
The Audit Committee llazMKXuAAINBUINU

1 The Nomination and

Remuneration Committee
1 AU=NSSUNISUSKHIS
1 The Board of Executive
Directors
|
1 1av1uN1sSusSEn
Company Secretary
|
1 NSSUMSLIIANIS
The President
1
I P v
AfUNUSNINSSUMSEIANTS
1 Assistant to President
IwunasdgoUMeiu

Internal Audit Section . .
AINULUSHISATUNIW

Quality Management
Representative

whgndwlaanny
Safety Department

dunnssuNISEIANIS
Executive Office

[ | I

SOINSSUMSWIANTS S9INSSUMSWINNTS NSSUNNSSAIWIANTS
aeNulnuRMS JUNINISWIAY aN99UNISNUIAzUSKHIS
Senior Executive Vice President Senior Executive Vice President Senior Executive Vice
Operation Division Special Division President Financial &

Administration Division
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1. The Board of Directors

There are 12 Directors in the Board of Directors:

First — Last Name

Title

1. Professor Rawat Chamchalerm Chairman of The Board of Directors and
Independent Director

2. Mr. Chamni Janchai Independent Director

3. Pol. Gen. Jate Mongkolhutthi Independent Director

4. Mr. Suchai Poopichayapongs Independent Director

5. Mr. Thanathip Vidhayasirinun Independent Director

6. Gen. Surapan Poomkaew Independent Director

7. Mr. Chaiyong Satjipanon Independent Director

8.  Mr. Masthawin Charnvirakul Director

9. Mrs. Anilrat Nitisaroj Director

10. Mr. Vallop Rungkijvorasathien Director

11. Mr. Pakpoom Srichamni Director

12. Mr. Woraphant Chontong Director

Term of the Board of Directors

The Company has 7 Independent Directors or 58% of the Board of Directors. The Company has 2
Directors as a representative of shareholders who are Charnvirakuls or 16% of the Board of Directors. The
Company has 3 Directors came from Management team or 25% of the Board of Directors.

For further information about term and qualifications, the appointment of the Board, the authorities and
duties, meetings, nomination, remuneration and evaluation of the Board of Directors are also presented in the

sub item of good corporate governance.

Authorized Directors
Mr. Pakpoom Srichamni, the President, has been authorized to sign and stamp, with The Company’s
seal, or Mr. Vallop Rungkijvorasathien, Mr. Masthawin Charnvirakul, Mr. Woraphant Chontong, 2 of 3 Directors

have been authorized to sign and stamp, with The Company’s seal.

2. The Board of Executive Directors

According to the Board of Directors of Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited,
or The Company, held the Board of Directors Meeting No. 3/2012 on August 28, 2012 and resolved that the
Board of Executive of Directors was consisting of 4 Directors as followed
Title

Chairman of the Board of Executive Directors

First — Last Name

1. Mr. Vallop Rungkijvorasathien

2. Mr. Pakpoom Srichamni Executive Director
3. Mr. Woraphant Chontong Executive Director
4. Mrs. Anilrat Nitisaroj Executive Director

For further information about term and qualification, authorities and duties, evaluation of the Board of

Executive Directors are also presented in the sub item of good corporate governance.
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3. The Audit Committee

The Annual General Meeting of Shareholders No. 6/1999 resolved the appointment of Audit Committee
and three Independent Directors who are qualified under the rules and regulations of the Stock Exchange of
Thailand, to perform as a member of the Audit Committee as the followings:

First — Last Name Title
1. Mr. Chamni  Janchai Chairman of the Audit Committee
2. Pol. Gen. Jate Mongkolhutthi Member of the Audit Committee
3. Mr. Suchai Poopichayapongs Member of the Audit Committee

All of three Audit Committees are Independent Directors. Mr.Chamni Janchai is the Chairman of the
Audit Committee who has good knowledge in Account and Finance, including the great experience in Financial
field. Therefore, Mr.Chamni Janchai has ability to audit The Company’s Financial Statement.

For Further information about term and qualifications, authorities and duties, evaluation of the Audit
Committee are also presented in the sub item of good corporate governance number 1.5 Responsibilities of
The Board of Directors.

4. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee
According to the Board of Directors of Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited,
or The Company, held the Board of Directors Meeting No. 1/2014 on February 27, 2014 and resolved that the

Nomination and Remuneration Committee was consisting of 4 persons as follows:

First - Last Name Title
1. Pol. Gen. Jate Mongkolhutthi Chairman of Nomination and Remuneration Committee
2. Mr. Suchai Poopichayapongs Nomination and Remuneration Committee
3. Mr. Vallop Rungkijvorasathien Nomination and Remuneration Committee

For Further information about term and qualifications, authorities and duties, evaluation of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee are also presented in the sub item of good corporate governance

number 2.3 Responsibilities of The Board of Directors.

Details on the meeting attendance of each Directors of the Board of Directors in 2017

Directors Title The Annual The Board The Board The Audit The Nomination
General of Directors of Executive Committee  and Remuneration
Meeting of Meeting Directors Meeting Committee
Shareholders (Total of 7 (Total of 17 (Total of 7 Meeting
(2017) times) times) times) (Total 3 times)
Professor Rawat Chairman of the Board of 11 717 - - -
Chamchalerm Directors / Independent
Director
Mr. Chamni Janchai Independent Director / 11 777 - 77 -
Chairman of the Audit
Committee
Police General Jate Independent Director / 11 777 - 717 3/3
Mongkolhutthi Chairman of The

Remuneration and
Nomination Committee /
Member of the Audit
Committee
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Directors Title The Annual The Board The Board The Audit The Nomination
General of Directors of Executive Committee  and Remuneration
Meeting of Meeting Directors Meeting Committee
Shareholders (Total of 7 (Total of 17 (Total of 7 Meeting
(2017) times) times) times) (Total 3 times)
Mr.Suchai Independent Director / 11 777 - 717 3/3
Poopichayapongs Member of the Audit
Committee / Member of
The Remuneration and
Nomination Committee
Mr. Thanathip Independent Director 11 6/7 - - -
Vidhayasirinun
Gen. Surapan Poomkaew Independent Director 11 6/7 - - -
Mr. Chaiyong Satjipanon  Independent Director 11 777 - - -
Mr. Masthawin Director 11 777 - - -
Charnvirakul
Mrs. Anilrat Nitisaroj Director/Executive 11 717 1717 - -
Director
Mr. Vallop Director / Chairman of 11 77 1717 - 3/3
Rungkijvorasathien the Board of Executive
Directors / Member of
The Remuneration and
Nomination Committee
Mr. Pakpoom Srichamni  Director / Executive 11 717 1717 - -
Director / President
Mr. Woraphant Chontong  Director / Executive 11 77 1717 717 -

Director

In 2017, the non-executive directors held a meeting among themselves without the management on

November 23, 2017 regarding the management’s effectiveness in profit management and cost control. Revenue

recognition relative to the proportion of jobs. And the management of the procurement department of the

company. It is reliable The adequacy of information provided by the management to the Board of Directors is

accurate and complete

Details on shares holding of each Director as of December 31, 2017

No. Directors Position Number of Number of Increase/ Proportion of
Shares Shares (Decrease) Total Shares
December December
31,2016 31, 2017
1. Professor Rawat Chamchalerm  Chairman of the Board of 12,857 12,857 - 0.00%
Directors / Independent Director
Spouse - - - -
Minor Children - - - -
2. Mr. Chamni Janchai Independent Director / Chairman - - - -

of the Audit Committee

Spouse

Minor Children
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No. Directors Position Number of Number of Increase/ Proportion of
Shares Shares (Decrease) Total Shares
December December
31,2016 31, 2017
3. Pol. Gen. Jate Mongkolhutthi Independent Director / Chairman - - - -
of The Remuneration and
Nomination Committee / Member
of the Audit Committee
Spouse - - - -
Minor Children - - - -
4. Mr.Suchai Poopichayapongs Independent Director / Member - - - -
of the Audit Committee /Member
of The Remuneration and
Nomination Committee
Spouse - - - -
Minor Children - - - -
5. Mr. Thanathip Vidhayasirinun Independent Director 12,857 12,857 - 0.00%
Spouse - - - -
Minor Children - - - -
6. Gen. Surapan Poomkaew Independent Director - - - -
Spouse - - - -
Minor Children - - - -
7. Mr. Chaiyong Satjipanon Independent Director - - - -
Spouse - - - -
Minor Children - - - -
8. Mr. Masthawin Charnvirakul Director 25,457,142 25,457,142 - 1.67%
Spouse - - - -
Minor Children - - - -
9. Mrs. Anilrat Nitisaroj Director / Executive Director 25,457,142 25,457,142 - 1.67%
Spouse - - - -
Minor Children - - - -
10. Mr. Vallop Rungkijvorasathien Director / Chairman of the Board - - - -

of Executive Directors / Member
of The Remuneration and
Nomination Committee

Spouse

Minor Children
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No. Directors Position Number of Number of Increase/ Proportion of

Shares Shares (Decrease) Total Shares
December December
31,2016 31,2017
11. Mr. Pakpoom Srichamni Director / Executive Director / - - - -
President
Spouse - - - -
Minor Children - - - -
12. Mr. Woraphant Chontong Director / Executive Director 1,234,285* 1,234,285 - 0.08%

*acquisition through Mr.
Kittisak Chontong’s Account as
a nominee of the Director

Spouse - - - -

Minor Children - - - -

5. The Management Committee
The Company issued the order Sor Tor-Kor Sor 5/2018 in the topic of Appointment Management
Committee, which is effective on January 17, 2018. The Member of the Management Committee was consisting

of 10 persons as follows:

First — Last Name Title
1. Mr. Pakpoom Srichamni Chairman of the Management Committee
2. Mr. Woraphant Chontong Member of the Management Committee
3. Mr. Varatt Kusolmanomai Member of the Management Committee
4. Mr. Somchai Wattanaweerachai Member of the Management Committee
5. Mr. Chanchai Thanrukprasert Member of the Management Committee
6. Mr. Prasert Kongkauroptham Member of the Management Committee
7. Mr. Teeraphong Wichiranon Member of the Management Committee
8. Mr. Worachat Suwasin Member of the Management Committee
9. Mr. Pheera Nakwimol Member of the Management Committee
10. Mr. Rakesh Kalia Member of the Management Committee

Authorities and Duties of the Management Committee

1. To plan, set up regulations, and manage The Company according to the Board of Directors’ policies;

2. To monitor the performance of all company’s departments by arranging the Executive Committee meeting
at least 1-2 times a month, setting the executive committee secretary to record the minute of meeting, and

proposing the minute of meeting to the Board of Directors meeting.

Details on shares holding of each Management Committee as of December 31, 2017

No. Management Committee Position Number of Number of Increase/ Proportion of
Shares Shares (Decrease) Total Shares
December December
31,2016 31, 2017
1. Mr. Pakpoom Srichamni President - - -
Spouse - - -

Minor Children - - -
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No. Management Committee Position Number of Number of Increase/ Proportion of
Shares Shares (Decrease) Total Shares
December December
31,2016 31,2017
2. Mr. Woraphant Chontong Senior Executive Vice President — 1,234,285 1,234,285 - 0.08%
*acquisition through Mr. Kittisak ~ Financial and Administration
Chontong’s Account as a nominee  Division
of the Director
Spouse - - - -
Minor Children - - - -
3. Mr. Varatt Kusolmanomai Senior Executive Vice President — - - - -
Operation Division
Spouse - - - -
Minor Children - - - -
4. Mr. Somchai Wattanaweerachai Senior Executive Vice President — - - - -
Special Division
Spouse - - - -
Minor Children - - - -
5. Mr.Chanchai Thanrukprasert Senior Vice President — Operation - - - -
Division 2
Spouse - - - -
Minor Children - - - -
6. Mr. Prasert Kongkauroptham Senior Vice President — Marketing - - - -
Division
Spouse - - - -
Minor Children - - - -
7. Mr. Teeraphong Wichiranon Senior Vice President — - - - -
Administration Division
Spouse - - - -
Minor Children - - - -
8. Mr. Worachat Suwasin Senior Vice President — Operation - - - -
Division 1
Spouse - - - -
Minor Children - - - -
9 Mr. Pheera Nakwimol Senior Vice President — Technical - - - -
& Development Division
Spouse - - - -
Minor Children - - - -
10.  Mr. Rakesh Kalia Senior Vice President — Operation 8,500 8,500 - 0.00%

Division 3

Spouse

Minor Children
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6. The President
Mr. Pakpoom Srichamni is the President.

Authorities and Duties of the President

The authorities and duties of the President were defined in Board of Directors meeting no. 3/2002 on
May 10, 2002 which resolved that the President shall be responsible for conducting and supervising The
Company’s business operations in accordance with the policy approved by the Board of Directors. Furthermore,
the President shall fulfill when such actions are required by the laws, rules and regulations of the governing
agencies to get approval from Board of Directors’ meeting and/or Shareholders’ meetings. The President shall
have a power to appoint other person(s) as a proxy to act on his behalf to manage and conduct company’s
business. President and his proxy have no right to approve any business activities with any persons who have
conflicts of interests with The Company and its subsidiary.

7. The Management Committee

President

@ SEVP E SEVP SEVP - Financial and

Operation Division Special Division Administration Division

5] 6] 9]

SVP SVP SVP SVP SVP SVP
Operation Operation Operation Technical & Marketing Administration
Division 1 Division 2 Division 3 Development Division Division

Division

The Management Committee
1. Mr. Pakpoom Srichamni President
2. Mr. Woraphant Chontong Senior Executive Vice President - Financial and

Administration Division

3. Mr. Varatt Kusolmanomai Senior Executive Vice President — Operation Division

4.  Mr. Somchai Wattanaweerachai Senior Executive Vice President — Special Division

5. Mr. Worachat Suwasin Senior Vice President — Operation Division 1

6. Mr. Chanchai Thanrukprasert Senior Vice President — Operation Division 2

7. Mr. Rakesh Kalia Senior Vice President — Operation Division 3

8. Mr. Pheera Nakwimol Senior Vice President — Technical & Development Division
9. Mr. Prasert Kongkauroptham Senior Vice President — Marketing Division

10. Mr. Teeraphong Wichiranon Senior Vice President — Administration Division

Remark : Number 1-10 are the Executives who are qualified under the rules and regulations of the

Securities and Exchange Commission
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8. The Corporate Secretary

The Board of Directors Meeting No. 1/2007 dated March 4, 2008 resolved that the Board of Directors
appointed Mr. Chaiyaporn Imcharoenkul as a Company Secretary, please find for further information about
qualifications, authorities and duties of the Corporate Secretary in sub item of good corporate governance-

Corporate Secretary

9. The Auditor
The Company Independent Auditor : EY Company Limited
Other relationship towards The Company: None

Number of years of being the Auditor for The Company: 17 years

10. Independent Director

The list of Independent Directors is as follows:

1. Professor Rawat Chamchalerm Independent Director
2. Mr. Chamni Janchai Independent Director
3. Pol. Gen. Jate Mongkolhutthi Independent Director
4. Mr. Suchai Poopichayapongs Independent Director
5. Mr. Thanathip Vidhayasirinun Independent Director
6. Gen. Surapan Poomkaew Independent Director
7. Mr. Chaiyong Satjipanon Independent Director

The Definition and Qualification of Independent Director

The Board of Directors reviews the definition and qualifications of Independent Directors, the regulations
of which are more stringent than those of the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and Stock Exchange
of Thailand (SET), as committed to good corporate governance as follows:

1. Holding shares no more than 0.5% of the total voting shares of The Company, its parent company,
its subsidiaries, its associated companies, or a related juristic entity with potential conflicts, including
of shares held by related persons'.

2. Not being an executive director’, an employee, or a company consultant who receives a regular
salary or a controlling person of The Company, its parent company, its subsidiaries, its associated
companies, its same-level subsidiaries’, or a related juristic entity with potential conflict of interest
during the period of 2 years before the appointment.

3. Not being a person who has a blood or a legal relationship of a parent, spouse, sibling, and child
including a child’ spouse, to any executive management, major shareholder, a controlling person,
or a person whom has been proposed to be an executive management or a controlling person of

The Company or its subsidiaries.

Footnote:

" “Related Person” means a person defined under the Section 258 of Securities and Exchange Act B.E. 2535.

* “Executive director” means any director who holds an executive position, or any director who is in charge of any actions
deemed to be taken by executives, and shall include any authorized director except where it can be demonstrated that such
authorized director, jointly with other directors, signs on transactions which have already passed board’s approval.

* “same-level subsidiary” means any two or more subsidiaries under the same parent company.

Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
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4. Not having a business relationship and a vested interest , whether directly or indirectly, financially
or administratively, including not being a professional advisor to The Company such as an auditor, a
client, partner, supplier, creditor, or debtor of the parent company, its subsidiaries, its associated
companies, its same-level subsidiaries, or a related juristic entity with potential conflict of interest
during the period of 2 years before the appointment.

5. Not being a director who has been appointed as the representative of The Company’s director,
major shareholder, or shareholder who is related to a major shareholder of The Company.

Not having any other characteristics that may potentially prevent from giving independent opinions.
An independent director, with qualification under Clauses 1- 6, may be assigned by the Board of
Directors to make the collective decisions on the operation of The Company, its parent company,
its subsidiaries, its associated companies, its same-level subsidiaries®, or a related juristic entity with

potential conflicts

11. The remuneration of the Directors and the Executives

The remuneration of the Directors was transparent defined by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and it was considered on the authorities and duties of the committee along with the circumstances
at the present basis. The remuneration of the Directors was set in comparison with other business in the same
industry, including the expansion of its business and developing of The Company’s earning.

According to the resolution of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders No. 23/2017, held on April
12, 2017 had approved the remuneration of the Board of Directors, Audit Committee, Nomination and

Remuneration Committee of the year 2017 as the following;

o Directors’ Meeting Fee
1. The Board of Directors Meeting
For the Chairman of the Board of Directors amounted to 40,000 Baht/meeting
For each Director amounted to 20,000 Baht/meeting
2. The Audit Committee Meeting
For the Chairman of the Audit Committee amounted to 40,000 Baht/meeting

For each Audit Committee amounted to 20,000 Baht/meeting
3. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee

For the Chairman of the Nomination and amounted to 40,000 Baht/meeting

Remuneration Committee

For each Nomination and Remuneration amounted to 20,000 Baht/meeting

Committee

e Annual Remuneration

1.  The Chairman of the Board of Directors amounted to 500,000 Baht/year
2. The Chairman of the Audit Committee amounted to 500,000 Baht/year
3. The Chairman of the Nomination and amounted to 400,000 Baht/year

e Remuneration Committee
1. For each Director amounted to 300,000 Baht/year
2 For each of the other Directors amounted to 300,000 Baht/year
The remuneration of the Board of Directors, Executive Directors, and top Executives of The Company
and its subsidiary companies are consisted of;
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11.1 Money Remuneration;
1. Aggregated remuneration for 12 directors in 2017
The amount of 6,680,000 Baht was the meeting allowance and remuneration
2. Aggregated remuneration for 11 executives in 2017
The amount of 51,975,000 Baht was the salary and bonus

11.2 Other Remuneration;
1. Other remuneration for Directors: None
2. Other remuneration for Executives of The Company: The Company provided and contributed
the provident fund to the Executive Directors and the management for 10 persons in the
amount of 2,310,000 Baht in 2017.

Details on Money Remuneration for each Director in 2017 Unit : Baht
Directors Title Meeting Meeting Meeting Emoluments Aggregated
Allowance  Allowance  Allowance for Remuneration

for Board for Audit Nomination &
of Directors  Committee ~ Remuneration

Meeting Meeting Committee
Meeting
Professor Rawat Chamchalerm Chairman of the Board of 280,000 - - 500,000 780,000
Directors / Independent
Director
Mr. Chamni Janchai Independent Director / 140,000 280,000 - 500,000 920,000
Chairman of the Audit
Committee
Police General Jate Independent Director / 140,000 140,000 120,000 400,000 800,000
Mongkolhutthi Chairman of The
Remuneration and
Nomination Committee /
Member of the Audit
Committee
Mr.Suchai Poopichayapongs Independent Director / 140,000 140,000 60,000 300,000 640,000
Member of the Audit
Committee / Member of
The Remuneration and
Nomination Committee
Mr. Thanathip Vidhayasirinun Independent Director 120,000 - - 300,000 420,000
Gen. Surapan Poomkaew Independent Director 120,000 - - 300,000 420,000
Mr. Chaiyong Satjipanon Independent Director 140,000 - - 300,000 440,000
Mr. Masthawin Charnvirakul Director 140,000 - - 300,000 440,000
Mrs. Anilrat Nitisaroj Director / Executive 140,000 - - 300,000 440,000
Director
Mr. Vallop Rungkijvorasathien Director / Chairman of 140,000 - 60,000 300,000 500,000

the Board of Executive
Directors / Member of
The Remuneration and
Nomination Committee
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Directors Title Meeting Meeting Meeting Emoluments Aggregated
Allowance  Allowance  Allowance for Remuneration
for Board for Audit Nomination &

of Directors  Committee ~ Remuneration

Meeting Meeting Committee
Meeting
Mr. Pakpoom Srichamni Director / Executive 140,000 - - 300,000 440,000
Director / President
Mr. Woraphant Chontong Director / Executive 140,000 - - 300,000 440,000
Director
Total 1,780,000 560,000 240,000 4,100,000 6,680,000

Details on the meeting attendance of the Board of The Company’s Subsidiaries in 2017

Directors Title The Board of Subsidiaries Meeting
(Total of 1 times)

Mr.Woraphant Chontong Director 11

Notice: the subsidiary is HTR Company Limited where The Company holds 80.90% of its shares.

Money Remuneration of Subsidiaries;
Aggregated remuneration for 1 Executives of The Company’s subsidiary in 2017. The amount of 5,000

Baht was the meeting allowance

Details on Money Remuneration for Executives of The Company’s Subsidiaries in 2017 Unit : Baht
Directors Title Meeting Allowance for Subsidiaries
Mr. Woraphant Chontong Director 5,000
Total 5,000

Notice: the subsidiary is HTR Company Limited where The Company holds 80.90% of its shares.

12. Employee Structure

The Company has 1,377 employee as of December 31, 2017 and it can be divided into 2 groups, which
are the operation division 1,103 people and the administration division 274 people

The Company concerns about human resources management, therefore, it has its plans to manage
human resources in case of the adequate manpower in compliance with workload and project that added up

every year.

Employee Structure

In 2017, The Company pay the compensation to employees in the amount of 655,792,564 Baht, which
composed of salary and bonus equal 630,876,089 Baht and provident fund equal 24,916,475 Baht.

A change in the number of employees with significant implication or labor dispute (during the past 3
years)

During the past 3 years there was neither a change in the number of The Company employees with

significant implication nor labor dispute.

Human Resources Management Policy

The Company policy focused on encouraging all levels of personnel working under the knowledge and
full potential of the individual. Management system of fairly and reasonable wages compensation. The welfare
requirements of the law are social security fund and the labor compensation fund. To further enhance the
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welfare and quality of life strengthening the morale of employees, such as provident fund, life insurance,
health and fitness center offers, scholarships to children of employees. All levels from primary education to
higher education including the award thanks to the interaction with The Company’s ongoing and long-term
welfare, etc. The Company has continued to improve welfare in line with the economic and social conditions

always present.

Personnel Planning
Each year, The Company shall estimate the required quantity of employees for supporting current
projects and other projects that might occur in the future. The main purpose of this is to obtain potential

qualified personnel in the appropriate time.

Personnel Recruitment and Selection

Recruiting knowledgeable, capable, and qualified people to join with The Company is the goal of
personnel recruitment. The Company has various channels of recruiting, such as newspapers, Internet, and
government organization like the Department of Employment, Department of Manpower and Human Resources,
and job opportunities’ booths arranged by Universities. The Company recruits people by conducting
examinations and having Competency Board interview candidates in order to have a qualified people whom

have the positive personality traits that we require. Traits that include vision, teamwork, and creative thinking.

Performance Evaluation and Remuneration Management.

The Company creates the performance evaluation system by combining the individual performance
along with team working performance to be in accordance with The Company performance, and it is also the
combination of The Company performance and the appropriate and fair salary. This management shall always
be developed since the Labor Market and other competitors are usually change by the time by using human
resources tools like competency and KPI etc. The Company managed the salary payment to employees
appropriately including welfares by mainly focus on the situation at the present, short-term and long term

company performance, and other information from the same business industry basis.

Employees Welfare
The Company has many beneficial welfare programs for its employees as follows;
1. Welfare programs complying with Labor Law such as Social Security Fund, Workmen’s Compensation Fund.
2. Voluntary Welfare programs such as Provident Fund, Life, and Accident Insurance, Loyalty Reward,
Sino-Thai Scholarship, Annual Health Check-Up, Uniforms, Funeral Assistance Fund, Leaves i.e,;
holiday leave and personal leave, and Performance bonus. Additionally, The Company provides free

drinking water, Fitness Center, restrooms, and basic over the counter medication.

Learning and Personnel Development Policy

The Company has always concerned about training roadmap and supported the employee in every
level on providing the training course in which they are interest or the most useful for their career. Therefore,
the employee will have skill, knowledge and expertise to perform their potential as the aim of The Company
business plan. With learning and personnel development policy, it will perform us well in both at the present
and lasting in the future. The development emphasized on 3 categories as followed,

1. Individual and Group Training & Development

2. Career Path

3. Organizational Development

Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
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Training & Development

Human resource development policy is to continue development potential of the employees, including
increase visibility of the work to be effective, by means of developing a variety of seminars to maximize views
of learning and self-development, training workshops to enhance the skills and expertise as professional jobs,
further reducing unnecessary procedures to be fast and accurate. Each year The Company has organized more
than 50 training courses covering all positions. Each course has been designed by experts from both inside and
outside of which connected to performance and consistency of each position, details as following;

«  Mini MBA courses incorporated with Chulalongkorn University in order to develop and training for

basic knowledge of management and business administration.

«  Course on safety in work.

«  Course on Construction Technology and Knowledge.

« Course on Positive Thinking & Proactive Working.

+  Course on Time Management and Priority Programs.

« Group activities, etc.

In addition to the training mentioned above. The Company has also established a training and skill
development. The objective is to train, prepare for work and training to improve the skill of the migrant

workers including labor standards in accordance with the standards of the public sector.

Employee Training in 2017

Training No. of Employee No. of hours No. of hours / No. of Employee

Staff 4,083 41,280 10.11

For the Executive, The Company has a clear policy to support the knowledge development and skills
of the Executives in various fields, such as, training course, seminar, education in Business Management. Thus,
the Executive can apply this knowledge to develop the organization and achieve the knowledge has been set.

In 2017, there was a Director taken courses for Director — Mr. Chaiyong Satjipanon in Financial Statement
for Directors Class N0.32/2017 accordingly that arranged by Thai Institute of Directors (IOD).
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The name list of the Directors passing training program from Thai Institute of Director (I0D):

Directors Programs
1 Professor Rawat Chamchalerm - DAP 26/2004
2 Mr. Chamni Janchai - DAP 30/2004
- RCP 21/2009
3 Police General Jate Mongkolhutthi - DAP 8/2004

- ACP 14/2006
- FND 30/2006
- DCP 117/2009

4 Mr.Suchai Poopichayapongs - DAP 78/2009
- ACP 26/2009
- MIR 11/2011

5 Mr. Thanathip Vidhayasirinun - DCP 7/2001

6  Gen. Surapan Poomkaew - DAP 84/2010

7 Mr. Chaiyong Satjipanon - DAP 112/2014
- DCP 212/2015
- FSD 32/2017

8  Mr. Masthawin Charnvirakul - DAP 1/2003

9 Mrs. Anilrat Nitisaroj - DCP 121/2009

10 Mr. Vallop Rungkijvorasathien - DAP 52/2006
- RCP 34/2014
- DCP 231/2016

11 Mr.Pakpoom Srichamni - DAP 52/2006
- DCP 161/2012

12 Mr.Woraphant Chontong - DCP 27/2003
- DCP Refreshment 4/2007
- RMP 1/2013
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HEALTH, SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENTAL CONCERNS

Health, Safety and Environmental Concerns

The Company always holds to policy for work
achievements go along with the safety of the
employees and the surrounding communities. Our
safety awareness is about virtue and humanity, not
just followed by law and regulation and all workers
have equally right in safety policy. Therefore, safety is
continuously one of The Company’s values.
Management and employees have mission to be
responsible for the safety of their subordinates level,
which is not the adding work but safety is the first
priority work to be accomplished and always concern.

Safety Policy:

1. The Company will promote and create safety and
environmental awareness at work.

2. The Company recognizes that all workers are
valuable resources of The Company. Thus safety
for worker is one of our most important policies.

3. The Company will support the creation of safety
at work by providing safe tools and a safe work
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environment, by promoting safety knowledge
among workers and motivating them to practice
safety at work.

The Company has appointed the committee for
safety, occupational health, and surrounding
condition in work performance to create plans
and projects about safety, as well as administer
and develop these projects in order to bring
about efficient results.

The Company requires all supervisors to be
responsible for the safety of their subordinates at
work, ensuring that they strictly follow the
procedures and rules of safety established by The
Company.

The Company requires all workers to be
responsible for creating safety for themselves and
their colleagues; and to follow all safety rules
established by The Company.

7. The Company requires all employees to be
responsible for preventing damage and protection
for the environment. In addition, all employees
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must stay alert and identify any hazardous acts that
could possibly effect the environment as stated in
the relative laws. The Company will be responsible
for creating environmental awareness in accordance

with the National Environmental Policy.
Key elements of safety plan

Safety, health and Environmental Standard (Company

HSE manual)

1. Safety training programs for all staff position

2. New employee orientation and training program

3. Safety promotion and incentive program

4. Job safety analysis (JSA) program for all major and
high risk work

5. Accident investigation and reporting system with
follow up corrective measures

6. Accident statistic and analysis

7. Preparing work method statement and accident
prevention method

8. Safety audit and inspection

The Company has many solutions and
regulations on safety and environmental concerns

besides the safety management can be divided into 2

groups as followed:

1. Safety Plan represents how Sino-Thai manages
safety. It is consisting of safety orientation for the
new safety officers, training course for chief
officers / foreman, appointment of Safety
Committee, tool and equipment verification,
machinery verification, indicate hazardous and
risk evaluation, make a safety regulations manual,
safety talk/toolbox talk, operating area verification,
emergency plan and firefighting plan, and safety
activities etc.

2. Safety Procedure controls safety operating system
to perform as defined by The Company. It
consisting of making the construction area, making
the warning board and signal alarm, wearing
individual safety suit, working in the high area,
falling down prevention, working with scaffolding,

working with excavating / a deep hole, working

8 8 Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
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with machinery, working in an unventilated area,
operating with electrical, working with the hard
trafic  management,

tools, work  permission

system, and housekeeping etc.

However, The Company has always verified and
evaluated safety procedures in order to develop such
results and the safety procedures to become more
potential and safe, so The Company can deliver all
projects with care and safety that meet the customers’
needs.

Safety Execution in 2017

The Company continued on activities named
“Safety by Leaders” from the previous year. There
were Project Managers, Project Engineers, and Senior
Engineers attended in monthly meeting of safety,
health and environmental committee to review safety
policy of each jobsite.

Safety Award in 2017 was annually arranged in
order to create safety awareness to all levels of
workers and create safety enthusiastic to every
jobsite. The safety committee will evaluate safety
management of the jobsite in every month and finally
best safety score shown in whose jobsite, they will
deserve to won the prize.

In addition, The Company continues supporting
its motto of safety is the first priority by eranting
awards for employees both temporary and
permanent in case of working without fatal accident
by arranging a celebrating 20,000,000 work hours
without fatal accident at Nontri power plant project
and another celebrating 1,000,000 work hours without
fatal accident of Banlane power plant project. The
celebration would bring encouragement and
motivation to our employees and also create safety

awareness as well.

Safety Training Program

1. The Company focuses on safety laws and
regulation, especially on the Ministerial Regulation
for the standard of management of health, safety

and environmental B.E.2549, The Company
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provides 2 safety training programs; “safety officer

for engineer, supervisor and foreman”, 4 classes

for 197 persons, and “The committee for health,

safety and environmental program”  for
representatives from employees and employers,
2 classes for 75 persons.

2. The Company focuses on to the Ministerial
Regulations for the standard of management of
health, safety and environmental related to fire
protection B.E.2555. The Company set up fire
fighting training and emergency evacuation
program for job sites.

3. The Company has featured on the accidents from
working at height, by organizing 29 training courses
on “basic for scaffolding level 1 and level 2
program” In addition, setting “scaffolding
inspection program” for foreman, supervisor,
engineer and safety officer, total 11 classes.

4. The Company has featured on risk associated
with crane by providing a training course to make
a good understanding of using crane as set by
related law and regulation for example, “Safety
on Working with Crane Using” for workers who
have to use crane in 2 classes for Crane Operator,
Signalman, Rigger, and Lifting Supervisor.

5. The Company provided a training course named,
“Working Safely in Confined Space” in 45 classes
(total 1,233 persons) for Supervisors, Assistants,
and Operators.

The Company concerns about safety by
supporting safety programs that especially adhere to
the narcotics control policy of the Office of the
Narcotics Control Board by creating a project named,
“White Plant” at Precast Concrete Complex in
Nonthaburi province and Fabrication Plant in Rayong
province. In addition, The Company arranged the
urine test strip of the workers to find the narcotics like
amphetamine and to prevent all behaviors that might
harm to our workers’ life. Furthermore, some jobsites
random its workers for the alcohol breathe before

getting into the working area. The Company is also

QO Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
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provided health check program for all workers before

going to work in the confined space.

Environment Concern

All projects of The Company may adversely
affect the environment, however, The Company is
The
Company has prepared the following solutions for

significantly concentrate on environment.
environmental impact, which may occur as a result of

the operations:

Solutions on the environmental impact and the primary
environmental quality check during the course of
construction:

Air quality

1. Sweeping and cleaning the construction area to
prevent dust from construction as well as placing
various tool and equipment in order.

2. Spraying the areas which may spread the dust
with water; such as, the area where the ground
surface is dug opened or drilled.

3. Safety nets must be used to curtain off the
construction area from the adjoining neighboring
community. The nets must be thick enough to
strain the dust derived from the construction
under the acceptable quantity.

the

construction areas in order to prevent the

4. Inspecting engines and machineries for
releasing of soot and dust and cleaning vehicles,
specifically, the areas underneath the body and
the wheels when they have to be moved from
the construction areas.

5. The Company will provide construction signs for
the purpose of versatility and safety of the traffic
regarding to traffic management.

6. Check and maintenance of the public traffic
routes in the originally sood or better condition
as well as strictly compiling with the Transport
Rules.

7. Prescribing a speed limitation of trucks operated
in the construction areas not to exceed 40

kilometers per hour.
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Noises

1. Fixing the time for driving in the pilings not to be
correspondingly coincided with the bed time of
the people, particularly, the construction area
located near the community and schools during
the day time.

2. Using engines or machineries that have regular
maintenances to prevent excessive noise.

3. Using block fence line to prevent noises in the
case when machineries are near to the

community.

Adjoining Community

1. Having company representative(s) to participate
in every Village Committee or Tambon
Administration Council (Or. Bor.Tor.) to listen to
the explanation or their opinions.

board to the

announcements on the details of names and

2. FErecting bulletin post
contacting places for receiving complaints and
recommendations as well as the reports on the
follow up of environmental condition and traffic
accidents.

3. Providing reasonable assistance to the

community accordance with The Company policy

by eiving educational scholarships and schools
supplies and constructing school and library
buildings for various schools indeed located near

the job site.

The Company has taken steps in accordance
with the solutions to reduce environmental impact
and primary solutions to strict environmental quality
check during the course of construction. To decrease
such impact as much as possible to the environment
and community. The established solutions are merely
the primary solutions and there may be additional
solutions coming up in concordance with the
recommendations of the experts and related official

organizations.
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BUSINESS POLICY ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
ulgurgmisatiussNA9NIUSUENIOUNDAIAL

The Company operates business by recognizing
the business responsibility towards society, economy,
environment and good governance; based on the fact
that if society is strengthened, it will lead to a
sustainable business growth. To support the vision
and mission, The Company has to set a policy to
conduct business with corporate social responsibility,
according to international guidelines and accordance
with the Office of The Securities and Exchange
Commission and the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

To conduct the business policy on corporate
social responsibility, The Company begins to identify
the stakeholders of The Company, including the
assessment of expectation and need of stakeholders
each company through the agency involved both
direct and indirect to each stakeholders group. After
gathering all data, it was evaluated as the following

guidelines.

Economy

The Company is committed to be the leading
engineering and construction company which can
deliver their work to clients internationally. The
Company’s portfolio is a part of country development

and brings prosperity to the area around the nation.

Community

The Company focuses on education and
supports it through the “Sino - Thai Payback Program”
and “Sino — Thai return freshness to Charnvirakul
buildings” to encourage people in the community
who lack of education opportunities can help
themselves. In addition, The Company supports
society in order to alleviate the suffering of the victims
and supports social development in various fields

continuously.

Q4 Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
B Annual Report 2017

Environment

The Company recognizes the performance
regarding to safety and environment. The Company
has set policy, guideline, follow up and improvement
for the safety and environment strictly. Moreover, The
Company provides knowledge and trainings in order
to perform the process according to working standard
which related to the safety and environment, including
support the environment protection in the area of

each project.

Corporate governance practices

The Company gives importance to the way to
operate business with fair and verifiability. It concerns
all stakeholders of The Company through the good
corporate governance policy and practices relating to
guidelines of the Securities and Exchange Commission
and the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

From the practices, The Company pushes and
supports the operation involved in order to conduct
business on corporate social responsibility which

leads to sustainable development.

[dentify and analyze the stakeholders

The Company has undertaken to determine
and analyze the stakeholders of The Company
by gathering data from each department and
Communication Relation section, which is responsible
for communicating and building good relationship
with community around the company’s construction
project area, both primary stakeholders and secondary
stakeholders as follows;

« Shareholders

o Clients
o Staff
o Partners

« Creditors
« Competitors
«  Governmental Organizations

«  Community and Society
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It would be good to know about the needs of
each stakeholder group and bring it to be as guidelines
in order to set the policies, strategies and management
needs

which  meet their more effectively and

sustainably.
The implementation of corporate social responsibility

1. Good Corporate Governance

Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public
Company Limited has realized the significance of the
good corporate governance policies, which will
improve the excellence of work and management
processes, as well as The Company’s performance
and its reliabilities among investors and the related
parties in 5 categories; Shareholders’ Rights, Equitable
Treatment of Shareholders, Role of Stakeholders,
Disclosure and Transparency, and Board
it will
maximum value to shareholders; The Company has

Responsibilities  moreover, increase the
thus determined the principle of good corporate
governance policy in accordance with the guidelines
of the Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET). In addition,
The Company has its con of conduct for Directors,
Executives and employees to be their guidelines for
best practices toward stakeholders and improve its
management to be transparent and efficient. Please
find more in details in good corporate governance

section and code of conduct section.

2. Business implementation with fairness

The Company runs business in accordance with
laws, regulation and conditions related to business
implementation strictly and define business ethics to
determine the direction of business based on the
principles of morality and justice and do the right
thing, including bidding construction projects, business
procurement in order to have competition fairly.
Moreover, we ensure that there is transparency in
business, accurately disclosure and appropriate
information, non-infringement of intellectual property.
Furthermore, The Company encourages all employees
to have responsibility for their duties by defining code

of conducts clearly for the Board of Directors,

Qé Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
Bl Annual Report 2017

Executive Directors and employees, including
operating the business with good sense of corporate
social responsibility and environment. In addition, it
should be concerned the stakeholders whom The
Company has set a clear policy and communicate to
employees to have a better understanding in this
matter with the operation regarding safety, health and
working environment and organizes various social
activities. The Company believes that the way to be
truly sustainable is to take into account the economy,
society, and environment and respect human right

and treat labor fairly.

3. Anti-Corruption

The Company recognizes the importance of
anti-corruption by launching the written policy of
anti-corruption and corruption with giving an
explanation, knowledge and support the Board of
Directors, Executives Directors and employees
understand and recognize the importance of anti-
corruption and corruption together with the practice
involved, such as receiving or giving gifts or other
benefits, giving the donation or subsidize money for
governmental and private sectors, risk assessment of
corruption, creating awareness against corruption and
giving explanation about the policies to those
involved.

Please find more in details in Anti-Corruption

Policy

4. Respect for human rights and treat employees fairly
The Company recognizes the importance of all

employees who is a crucial resource which can bring

The Company meets the goal. Therefore, the policies

and working direction have been defined as follows;

o Human resources management policy

The Company has determined a clear human
resources management policy which defined how to
treat employees with fairness, equality and respect
the right of employees under the regulatory
framework of employees, labor legislation, tradition
in society and human rights. The Company provides

compensation and benefits appropriately, the practice



Fevesitm  shuulouiemsmifuguaiansfiduasiin
UfTATLAg T eI muIInIavesdinuAnEnTTINTS
MAUNSNNSNIULAZAAIANGNNSNE  LATAAIANANNINE
wisUszinalnefivualy

PNULINNTALTLNUAINETT USTnlRnanauLay
afuayunsiiiunuigifetes tielvinisdiiiugsia
PIYANUSURATDURDEIAL ﬁﬂlﬂﬁmsﬁwuwasjwﬁﬁumw

n1ss=ulia:dinsn:KENdoulAIde

UsEnlaniiunisimvuauasdnsevigddiulody
YDIUTEN 1R8N ITIUTINTOYAIINYNANE/UNUNVBIUTEN
yufedeyannmbenunoainsinusarud LYY
duiug Gelivihiidomsuazaiuanuduiussufsening
MhenURDE AU B SEUMRENURES A [ilensu
feamusosmauasteyavesdulddousazngy egidu
Isdevdnuasiiidlsidoses Feldun

S LY

< anem

o WUNU
.M

. Ewi
SGIIEIN

o WIBUIIVNT

o PUYULATHIAY

wazihunduswimislunisnsulevie  nagns
ASEUIUNNT HAZMSUTINTNUTIEINsanaUauedsanIy
Foansldednsdiussansamwazdadu  saillunisimun
Wlgueanusuiinveusedeny fiseazidon fal

NSANTUNIUAUAIIUSUTIABOUFDEIAL

1. shumsiiugianonisni
Uinasentinfisnnnudrfyvesnsmiuguananis
fid Taglgrmumduilsuiomatifuguafamsiia s 5
iy loun @ndvewiieniu msufiRdedtevusgiami
Wendu  niseilafadlduliids  nsliamedeyauas
AulUsala war ANUSURAYOUTDIANENTIUNIT WBNIN
ﬁiﬁﬁmﬁﬁasiSWUiimqsﬁa Benanufeasseussudmiy
NFIUNITUTEN HUIMs wazndnauuiem suwdaleung
nsquanazyftRsediidnldids Welszuutimsdans
fuszansnm Wisla avaeuls droadenuilasios
foviu dildnlfide wasdfiRendemniie seduienlide
ulsurenisiifuguafanisiauazasserussagsnaidu
ulsuiendnueauitn - dnsimundunnufoaidaeu

WiheuazununiiiAedesldfiimuogianinin niou
AamunanisufoRiiedniauaz U uUTIn Al
sfieatosioly

swazduaUsngmaulsunensiiuguaionisiia
WAZATIYIUTIUGIND

2. mumsus:naussnasiognuidusssy

US¥ndnden1saniugsianiungvuie  ngunad
wagdafvuaiifeadosiunisdiiussisedunsanin
wagldfvuavdnassoussussie  Lileldimuaiianig
mssfugshvlifeoguuiugiuvesausssudadulundn
nsiinnuiessssunaznsesinludsigndes lidnesdy
nsUstyalasenIsrioadne nsdndedndneineg ielsd
mswdstutusgnadusssn Snfisdintsiiugualviina
Lsdlalunisaniugsia dn1silamedoyasg1agnees
Weananavvinzay nshiasdianinddumedyay 8n
dsdaasuliminnuynaudienusuiiateudensufin
vihilveamues Taefinsimunasserussadmsunssunis
U3HN {UIms wasndnauuievbiegnatany siudianis
AiugsNIseANudindonusuinteudediALLaY
duandon Afafefdmlids Tnouddmlsmmuady
ulsueiidaiou wienduadulminauiamianudle
Tudesdsnamegasaiiion fidludunissuiuauiisis
rulaendy enTiewnly anmuindedlun1sviiy uag
dunden wieudnfanssuarsisaussloninazfans
fewdedsny  Ineuiemianudefiinitmsgaudaiu
othawinie desenildmuiuisreudeiuasugiv e
LazAanndounisinsnansuyvovunaznsUidRde
uaupgdusTIN

3. mumssiofusnasAa:MsaassUs
USEnasemindanud1Atyreen1snenun1sase
uaznsreiuiu tnglddinmaivuaulsuenisdedunis
yasnuazmanessUiudundy nieutias Wenud wos
atfuauulvingsunsusen Juims wasniina wWhlawae
ASENUNDIAIUAIAYVDINITADAIUNITNITAUALNT
ADSSUTU maemIuMNURTRMeRates lihandu ms
Sunsel vewty wesith AvSUselewidug msliiu
USAvIBRuATUaYuLNMINENUNIATIVTaN AN
MIATUAYUNTIANITIEIRY  N1TT0UTUNITNULUNBLANTS
YR3ALATNIADSUTU MIUssiumuEssInn1yIde
yuifssandndinlunsreshumaainuasnsnesiuiu
suddiuaeiiifetoddmnuinlonedndgn

usEn Blu-Ing 1BUSITESY loUF AoUANSABU 1A (UMBU) 07
$19vIuYs=1U 2560 I



in employment and fair employment contract. There
is knowledge development and ability in working with
multi-tasks. Moreover, The Company provides the
department of skill development to determine the
career path and evaluate the performance clearly. In
addition, employees can participate and give their
opinion through channels provided and company’s
activities in order to support the communication with
each other.

o Do not violate the rights of employees

The Company realizes how to treat
employees by respecting for fundamental the human
rights as required by the laws. It should not do or
operate business to violate the human rights and do
not discriminate against any person because of the
similarities or difference in race, religion, gender, age,
education, or any other matter. The Company defines
the policies about not violating human rights clearly
and explicates the code of conduct for directors,

management and employees.

o Policy on Safety, Health and Work Place

Safety policy is a crucial policy of company.
The policy of entire success must go along with the
safety of staff and involved people. The Company
established the Commission of Safety, Health and
Environment to make the project safety plan. There is
project development and follow up the results
substantially which is launched the standard of safety,
health and environment. There are assessment and
prevention,

including investigation and accident

reports for improvement, regulatory and safety
inspection. In addition, The Company provides training
to educate the good attitude on safety project named
“Safety By Leaders” in order that the manager of the
project can take part in the safety operation and the
project of Outstanding Office in Safety which has been
contested monthly and annually to encourage
everyone concern about safety, health and working

environment.

98 Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
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From the statistical data on safety, it can be

found the injuries due to The Company’s work as

follows;
2015 0.53
2016 0.60
2017 0.17

5. Client Responsibility

o Provide and deliver the quality with international
standard

To provide and delivery projects to client, The
Company is committed to work with quality along
with the international standard and take into account
the implementation of the principles of engineering
and construction, including the usage of equipment,
mechanical machine and modern technology. The
effective management is also essential to sustainable
business operation which realize to society and
environment. In addition, The Company gives client
confidence in the operation and performance of
company. It’s also developed its competitiveness and

sustainable growth.

o Disclosure of information relating to clients

In engineering and construction services of
company, The Company discloses related information
properly, accurately and adequately in accordance
with guidelines of owners/clients defined strictly in
each projects including the process of bidding, during

construction process, delivery and warranty work.

o Agreement between a company and client fairly

An agreement between The Company and
owner / client should process clearly and fairly and
do not commit any act to limit the right of clients and
carry out the agreement strictly. If The Company is
unable to comply with the agreement or condition,
The Company will discuss with clients to find the way

to solve the problem.
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e Maintain client confidentiality

The Company will maintain the confidentiality
of client information, not published for business or
marketing, if clients are not allowed to disclose
unless it’s the disclosure laws or regulation governing
The Company. The Company has to explain to all
staff / relating department to understand the way to

keep confidentiality and privacy of clients.
6. Environmental Care

o Measure of construction project environment
conservation

The Company recognizes the importance of
environment conservation in order that the project
construction of company affects environment the
least or stays in the acceptable standard by organizing
the prevention measure and follow up the effect on
environment regarding rules, regulations, and related
law strictly. This should g¢o along with the owners or
the Office of Natural Resources and Environmental
Policy and Planning suggest depending on the details
of each projects. The Company provides the clear
guidelines to conserve both physical biological
environments, for example, the construction area
should have boundary fence in the section area,
ensure tidiness, show the details of the construction
with the owner’s contact to receive complaints or
suggestions from residents nearby. Moreover, there
are a management to reduce pollution of air, water,
noise, and other relevant matters. It also should be
scheduled the construction period causing noise and
must inform the residents nearby in advance. In

addition, it’s better to use the resources worthily and

'| 00 Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
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check engine and machinery used in good condition
in order to reduce the pollution. Also, The Company
provides the legal liability insurance to life and
property of the third party by showing a copy of

insurance policy in the construction area, etc.

7. Innovation from the implementation of corporate
social responsibility

o Development of the construction process to minimize
the impact on the community

The construction process, such as a train or a
bridge or road construction projects, may work on
road surface which makes the community and the
traffic may be inconvenient to travel. To reduce such
effects, The Company presents the way in the
construction process named “Prefabrication and
Precast Concrete”, which are created and assembled
equipment from The Company’s plant and be
installed in the field. In addition, it can decrease the
working time on a job site and decrease impact on
the community and residences nearby. Moreover,
The Company can use less labors and increases

working efficiency.
8. Social and Community Development

e Sino-Thai Payback Program

The Company recognizes the importance of
education and youth development which is important
foundation to develop society and economy of the
country. The Company starts the project “Sino-Thai
payback to Society” since 2002 by constructing school
buildings, library building, multi-purpose building,
scholarships and educational materials giving for
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schools and educational institutions in poor areas. At
the beginning of this project, The Company selected
schools near the construction site of The Company,
and then the projects are expanded to other areas of
the country by launching policies and suidelines of
selection for schools indeed. This is to encourage
people in the community who lack of educational
opportunities to help and take care of themselves.
Apart from giving school buildings, library
buildings, multi-purpose buildings, scholarships and
educational materials for schools and educational
institutions, The Company has initiative to preserve
the buildings which have been constructed and given
to schools. It will focus on repairing the damage;
painting buildings so that the buildings can be
brighten, valuable and usable for the next several
years. Those buildings remain keep the title
“Charnvirakul Building” in the project of “Sino-Thai
return freshness to Charnvirakul Building”
Since the program has begun from now, The
Company has donated the school buildings, library
buildings and multi-purpose buildings more than 60
schools which The Company continues to subsidize
education and youth development through this
program every year.
By the year 2017, The Company constructed
and delivered building for 4 schools as follows;
» Charnvirakul Building 66, Ban Plai Khlong 22
School, Nakhon Nayok.

 Charnvirakul Building 67, Ban Bo Nam Ron
School, Surat Thani.

 Charnvirakul Building 68, Ban Non Sai Kham
School, Sakon Nakhon.

» Charnvirakul Building 69, Ban Sub Noi School,
Phetchabun.

Furthermore, in 2017 The Company carries
“Happy Lunch for children” project, to provide a
nutritious lunch and snacks for children in poor areas,
in connection with the community service to support
sustainability education. In 2017 The Company
provided Lunch for 7 schools as follows;

'| 02 Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
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» Sakae Ton Prachasan School, Chachoensao
 Charoenrath Upatham School, Nonthaburi.

« Wat Pho School, Ayuttaya.

« Wat Uthaitharam School, Bangkok.

« Ban Sab Bon School, Saraburi.

« Ban Map Tong School, Rayons.

« Wat Bang Kajowklang School, Samut Prakarn.

Social Activities

In addition to the education and development
of young people, The Company has contributed to
society in a variety of forms including a donation or
support the team with equipment and machinery or
vehicles in order to alleviate the suffering of the
victims and support social development as follows:

+ To help victims of natural disasters, such as
floods, earthquakes, tsunamis, etc.

« To help the victims of accidents such as the
towers collapsed.

« Support religious and temple community
development

To subsidize and help in various matters, The

Company has a policy in practice and consider the
approval clearly

In 2017, the Company has undertaken the

following activities ;

« The Company cooperated with Yan Nawa
District Office as well as representatives from
private and public sectors in the activity of
“the growing marigolds to commemorate the
reign of His Majesty the late King Bhumibol
Adulyadej “ through the provision of land to
support the holding of event. Moreover, the
Company also supported the purchase of
marigold seeds.

« The Company supported drinking water and
public toilets for people who joined to pay
respect to His Majesty the late King Bhumibol
Adulyadej at the Supreme Court of Thailand.

« Donation of 12,000 bottles of drinking water
through Channel 3 to help flood victims in
the northeast of Thailand.
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ANTI-CORRUPTION .
N1Sa9AIUNISNYSANlA:NNISADSSUTU

Anti-Corruption

Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public
Company Limited commit to operate with fair,
abide by

business

related laws and
realize that The

Company should pay attention to its stakeholders as

transparent, and

regulations for and
well. The Company defined a business principle for
countering bribery against corruption as a best practice
for Directors, Executives and employees. The
Company disseminated such principles to its

stakeholders.

Anti-Corruption Policy

The Board of Directors, the Executives and
employees must do their duties with integrity and
without any act of bribery; moreover The Company
shall prohibit in any form whether direct or indirect,
and must adhere to The Company’s policies and
code of conduct.

'| 04 Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
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Procedures

Receiving or Offering Customary Gifts, or other Benefits

To operate The Company’s business that
related to biddings other projects, procurement,
communicating business, or any other related
company’s business transaction in both public and
private sectors must do with fair, transparent and
verification. The Company realized the importance of
any act that might result in improper influence
including receive or offer customary gifts or other
benefits that might cause any corruption.

In 2017, The Company has announced that no
new year gifts giving and receiving to/from customers,
business partners, government sectors, financial
institutions, and other related organizations, to assure
the commitments in operating with transparency,

justice , fair and equal with moral principal basis.
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Offering Sponsorships or Charitable Contributions to
Public or Private Sectors

Offering sponsorships or charitable contributions
to both public and private sectors must strictly do
with transparent that did not contrary to the morality,
code of conduct, and abide by laws and regulations
of The Company. The offering sponsorships or
charitable contributions as the foresaid can be done
after the approval of the original affiliation.

The charitable

contributions to public or private sectors must not be

offering  sponsorships  or
used as a subterfuge or route for conflict of interest in
both individual benefits and company’s benefits and
must not be used as a subterfuge for bribery.

The approvals of offering sponsorships or
charitable contributions to public or private sectors
must strictly adhere to the regulations by writing the
report attached with the offering sponsorships or
charitable contributions payment for approvals and
submit all related papers to the Executives for

considering process.

Political Participation

The Company is a politically neutral
organization and does not support any political
parties or politicians including enabling the Board
of Directors, Executives and employees not to
participate in any act under the name of The Company.

The Company realizes that it is righteous of its
people according to the liberty and rights in
participating the political activities; therefore The
Company encourages its people to exercise their
political rights in compliance with laws but prohibit
using employees’ status or using any company’s
assets as a subterfuge or route for any form to political
participation or political contributions in the name of
The Company.

To express and giving political opinion in The
Company’s office or job site area is penalty to The

Company’s association.
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Whistleblowing for Business countering Bribery

The Company supports its personnel to report
any misconduct or non-compliance or any form of
action that might result bribery by sending their
enquiries to managers or other channel that open for
this matter. The Company has whistleblowing and
whistleblower protection policy as stated in the good
The additional
channel for whistleblowing as follows;

governance chapter. complaints

Corporate Secretary Office
Address: Sino-Thai Engineering and
Construction Public Company Limited
29 FL, Sino-Thai Tower,

32/59 Asok Road, Bangkok 10110
corporatesecretary@stecon.co.th

02-610-4994

E-mail address:

Telephone:

Whistleblowing, complaints, and suggestions
will be taken into consideration or implementation
appropriately on a case by case basis. The
whistleblowing procedure and whistleblower

protection policy are as follows;

Whistleblowing Procedure

« The company secretary will compile and verify
the accuracy and adequacy of the complaint.
If there are reasonable grounds to suspect that
such acts indicate fraud, corruption, bribery or
against the laws or ethics or company policy or
cause any encroachment, the company secretary
will provide preliminary handling plan to the
President.

« The President will examine the compliant and
preliminary handling and appoint and authorize
person or working group to handle as appropriate
on a case by case basis.

« The authorized person or working group will
consider investigation process and suppress the
acts that evolve fraud, corruption, bribery or
violate applicable laws or ethics or company
policy or cause any encroachment. Appropriate
remedy will be provided to affected persons,
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taking the overall damage into account. The
authorized person or working group will be
reported directly to the President.

«  Once the investigation is over, the results will be
reported to the President and company secretary,
as well as the complainant, in case complainant
can be identified. The related information will be
treated in strict confidence.

« In case the issue affects the Company’s public
image or involves the top management or
significantly affects the Company’s business

operations, the President will report the results

to the Audit Committee.

Whistleblower protection policy

»  Whistleblower, complainants or those who provide
cooperation in the investigation can decide not to
disclose their identities, in case such disclosure
may jeopardize their safety or cause damage. In
case their identities are disclosed, the Company
will notify the result or provide the appropriate
remedies in a convenient and timely manner.

e« The Company will treat the personal data of
whistleblowers, complainants, or those who

provide cooperation in the investigation, as well

as the related information in strict confidence.

Any disclosure will be done with discretion and

as necessary, basing on the safety and damage

concerns of the whistleblowers, complainants,

in the

investigation, the source of information, and other

or those who provide cooperation

related persons.

e« In case the whistleblowers, complainants,

in the

investigation might feel unsafe or suffer from

or those who provide cooperation

the investigation process, they can request the
suitable whistleblower protection. Meanwhile,
the Company might determine the whistleblower
protection measures without the request if the
Company notices that there are chances of

damage, suffering or unsafe.

'I 08 Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
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« Those who are affected or suffered by the case
will be provided with the appropriate and fair

remedies.

Evaluation for risk from countering bribery

The Internal Audit of The Company has
responsible for doing the evaluation of risk from
countering bribery by evaluate, analyze, follow, and
control risk that might result bribery to be acceptable
and report the evaluation result to the Audit
Committee including follow up the procedures to
prevent risk from countering bribery with the

Principles for Countering Bribery.

Countering Bribery Awareness
The Company creates countering bribery
awareness by communicating to the Board of
Directors, Executives and employees in order to
create the cognitive of countering bribery in The
Company. The Company enables its people who
might relate to the stakeholders to understand and
aware of countering bribery by providing course
trainings, seminars, and through other related media
of The Company and disseminate to The Company’s

stakeholders as well.

Sanction Procedures for Breaches of the Principles
To whom it may breach of the Principles for
Countering Bribery must be penalized according to

The Company’s regulations and/or related laws.
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RISK FACTOR
UV9NNUIAUY

1. Risk in Business

1.1 Risk associated with Mega Projects and

Impact of company’s performance

The Company may submit the bidding document
to mega projects and the contract has to be signed
with the related organization including the government
sectors or even the private sectors who has been
received the concession from the government. Many
people are interested in such projects and it can
be easily verified by the public and other related
organizations of the government. These projects
may cause delay and changes, which affect to The
Company’s performance. Hence, The Company tries
to reduce these risks by revenue managing — balancing
the governmental and private projects also improves
the moniboring of project management in every unit
closely and to solve problems in time.

1.2  Risk associated with duration of new project
acquisition

The Company had to face with risk associated
with duration of new project acquisition because
the circle of new project acquisition cannot be
controlled and most of our income was came from
the revenue from construction where we won the
bidding. In addition, bidding process of some projects
are complicated and it takes time which depends on
source of fund and investment policy announced
by the c¢overnment, therefore, The Company’s
performance is fluctuated by new project acquisition.
To prevent the risk, The Company tried to bid
construction projects in many categories cover both
government and private sectors and keep remaining

its backlog that suitable for its revenue.

1.3  Risk associated with fluctuation in the economy
and politic
Sometimes, an economic fluctuation and
political instability in country may affect the

Management and Development Policy, especially,

'| '| O Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
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the policy regarding the construction of infrastructure,

transportation services and governmental
disbursement. That could affect the construction
volume decreased and competition in auction. The
Company tries to reduce the fluctuation from risks
which may arise from the mentioned cases. The
Company income structure management should be
appropriate for both governmental and private sectors
and go abroad for bidding. The Company accumulated
backlog order worth Baht 103,985 million which can
accommodate more than two years. The Company
expects to accumulate new work order in the future
due to the government’s policy to launch new projects

based on the investment stimulus packages.

1.4  Risk associated with competition

Construction business is a business with high
competition. Sometimes, there is a limited amount of
work in the market while there are many construction
companies as a result of high competition. The
Company may confront with the competition from
domestic and foreign competitors which may affect
The Company’s income some times. However, The
Company can control the risk by selecting the bid
with expert and competitive companies. Moreover,

The Company may bid for projects in foreign countries.
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1.5  Risk associated with Joint Venture Liabilities

To increase the potential of winning high value
projects, The Company may enter into joint venture
agreements with appropriate and qualified partner(s).
With this strategy, The Company will be able to
reduce its financial and project execution risks.
However, the concern will be whether these partners
can actually deliver what is promised and stipulated
under the contract. The project owner has the right
to claim damages from breach of the contract. The
Company may be liable in respect of the partners in
the joint venture. To weaken this risk, The Company
will effectively analyze each partners’ business profile
including their reliability before making any decision

to join together.
2. Risk in Production

2.1. Risk associated with Construction Materials Prices

The changes of material prices may affect to
the cost of construction. The Company also aware to
this subject, therefore it keeps closely inspecting the
material prices. If The Company realized that material
prices trend will be in the uptrend The Company will buy
the necessary material in order to limit the price risk. In
addition, The Company has good relationship with the

suppliers, which makes the negotiation go well.

2.2 Risk associated with labour cost raising

Labour cost is one of the important costs in
construction business. According to the policy of
raising labour costs from the government, it affects to
company cost increase. However, The Company has
measures to reduce the impact from raising cost of
labour, for example, arrange construction system for
labour, use new technology, equipment, and machine

instead of labour and control expense costs strictly.

2.3 Risk associated with liability claims.

The construction process may result in a third
party to be harmed, the property to be damaged, or
environment impact and pollution which may occur
during construction. This may lead to an accusation

from those events. However, The Company tries to

'I '| 2 Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
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reduce the risks. If there is damage, The Company will
investigate the matter and resolve the problem as soon
as possible. In addition, The Company has insurance

coverage for the risks with insurance companies.
3. Risk in Management

3.1 Risk associated with Workforce Shortage

The Company has experienced and specialized
workforce who are a significant important resources to
The Company. Personnel such as project managers,
project engineers, supervisors, and foremen’s. All are
integral parts of the management of a construction
project from its beginning to its completion. Therefore,
The Company has risks regarding the shortage of the
said workforce. Particularly important are the expert,
experienced engineers that The Company has employed
and well trained to be its permanent employees. The
Company, therefore, has its measures to reduce the risk
of workforce shortage by motivating these personnel to
work for The Company on a long-term basis, promoting
their career advancement, and giving all employees

with proper remuneration and welfare.

3.2  Risk associated with labour shortage

Labour is one of the most important factors in
construction. The Company has the suitable workforce
management about labour income, safety and
occupational health. When the domestic economy
grows, the construction investment also rises. This
can generate the problem of labour shortage; some
construction projects might be delayed. However, The
Company has measure to reduce the mention risks;
that is The Company gives motivation for workers in
order to stay with The Company as long as they can,
provides migrant workers adequately and increases

the proportion of sub-contractors.

3.3  Risk associated with Unbilled Receivables

Although The Company completes many
projects or delivers work progress on schedule, in
some cases it cannot issue invoice or collect money
as stated in the contract due to the delayed work

certification from the client. In addition, The Company,
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sometimes, has to operate its projects with variation/
change orders from the client without confirmation
or approval of the cost estimation of the variation.
The client shall eventually accept all new costs and
conditions that were caused by the variation order
but The Company has to face some delay payment
until such order will finally be approved. Therefore,
The Company will always be prudent in closely
monitoring and to keep in close contact with the

client or their representatives.

3.4 Risk associated with delayed work project

The Company receives the large infrastructure
construction project of the government which has
more details and complicated procedure. Sometimes,
the project may impact with some group of people
which result in the protestation towards the projects
or some projects were late submitted. It may cause
construction working process cannot follow the
schedule plan, so The Company cannot deliver the
projects on time. The Company has to pay fine for
the damage occurred which lead to revenue and
profit of The Company. Thus, The Company tries to
reduce the risks and accept to get work by estimating
working duration according with the reality, inspection
and control working closely Moreover, The Company
has to solve the problem instantly. This could make
management more effectively and reduce the risks
from delayed work project.

3.5  Risks of investments in subsidiaries and associates.
The risk of investments in subsidiaries and
associates companies may occur if the subsidiaries
and associated companies cannot deliver net profit as
The Company expected. The Company minimize the
risk by providing its directors to become the directors
of the subsidiaries and associates companies in order
to safeguard the interests of the shareholders of The
Company at any time. However, in the past, The
Company received reasonable return on investments

in its subsidiaries and associates companies.
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4. Risk in Finance

4.1  Risk associated with Financial Liquidity

In the construction business, adequate working
capital is required for the purposes of procurement of
raw materials and wage payments. For example, if the
liquidity management is not efficient, The Company
may not be able to handle new construction projects
or carry out the existing construction project to
completion. However, The Company has realized this
risk and has therefore created its policy for careful
management of liquidity. Before The Company will
handle any construction project, an advance payment
must be received. Despite critical situations that has
affected the construction industry, The Company
still has financial resources to support its business

operations, with proper cost.

4.2  Riskassociated with Fluctuation of Exchange Rates
In some construction projects, The Company
may have to import construction materials and
equipment in foreign currencies; and the fluctuation
of exchange rates may affect the cost of The Company.
Therefore, The Company has reduced the risk of
fluctuation of exchange rates by means of financial
management such as purchasing through domestic
suppliers or hedging with financial instruments, as

may be necessary.
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GOOD CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
nsMAuUQIANYNIS

The Board of Directors had resolved that the
good corporate governance was appropriate and in
compliance with the international standard as defined
by The Securities and Exchange Commission, The
Stock Exchange of Thailand, and Thai Institute of
Director etc.

By the year 2017, the Board reviewed the good
corporate governance in specific sessions as follows;

1. Consider, review and improve the

Company’s Good Corporate Governance
practices and policy to comply with
Corporate Governance Code 2017.

2. Disclose the whistle blowing or complain
making process and the protection of
whistle blowers and complainants.

3. Disclose the additional process of the
nomination of the Board of Directors by
considering Director Pool and Professional

Search Firm on a case by case basis.

'| '| 6 Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
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1. The Principle of Good Corporate Governance Policy

Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public
Company Limited has realized the significance of the
good corporate governance policies, which will
improve the excellence of work and management
processes, as well as The Company’s performance
and its reliabilities among investors and the related
parties; moreover, it will increase the maximum value
to shareholders; The Company has thus determined
the principle of good corporate governance policy in
accordance with the guidelines of the Stock Exchange
of Thailand (SET) and rely on 4 items:

1. “Transparency” is the basement for trust

amongst stakeholders and The Company.
Creates

Transparency The Company’s

effectiveness and the capital market
procedures; it also helps the Board of

Directors solve problems effectively and
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gives shareholders and the related parties
an opportunity to scrutinize The Company
more thoroughly.

2. “Integrity” is the way of undertaking business
with straightforwardly beyond g¢ood morale.
The

information have been disseminated to

financial statements and other
public and other investors should fairly and
accurate prepared in compliance with The
Company’s financial status.

is essential toward the
The
the

accountability and have a crucial role in

3. “Accountability”
Board of Directors and shareholders.
Board of Directors must express

proposing the reports on The Company’s

The

accountability of the Board of Directors

performance to shareholders.
must be based on suitable rules and
regulations; and the disclosure of The
Company’s performance must be accurate
due to The Company’s success.

4. “Competitiveness” aims for creating progress
and  increasing  shareholders’  value.

Corporate governance shall enhance the

initiation without hinder, efficiency and the

ability of leadership and vision. Therefore,

this will cause The Company advantages in

competitiveness amongst the others.
1.1 Shareholders’ Rights

Principle

The Board of Directors is aware of the
shareholders’ rights to any of The Company’s
operations and will encourage the shareholders to
exercise their rights. The Board of Directors will refrain
from any actions that may violate or limit the

shareholders’ rights.
Best Practices

o Shareholders’ Meeting
The Board of Directors shall be obliged to
supervise the organization of shareholders’” meetings

'I '| 8 Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
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to ensure strict compliance with applicable laws,
rules and regulations without any prejudice to the
shareholders’ rights. The Board of Directors shall
refrain from any actions, which may limit the rights of
all shareholders, including institutional investors, as
follows:

- Notice of shareholders’ meeting with
details on date and time of the meeting,
agenda of the meeting, and complete and
sufficient information on each agenda for
the shareholders to study in advance of the
meeting

- Disclosure of and access to accurate,
complete, appropriate and sufficient
information for the shareholders

- The Company should give the shareholders
clear explanations on how to vote and
prepare a person to verify correctness of
vote counting during the shareholders’
meeting for transparency of the votes.

- Giving shareholders the right to cast vote to
elect an individual director

- The Company allocates appropriate time

the
encourages the shareholders to express

for shareholders’ meeting and
their opinions and raise questions.

- The shareholders should be given an
opportunity to attend the shareholders’

meeting any time during the meeting.

o Chairman of the Board, Directors and Top
Management’s Attendance at Shareholders’
Meeting
Chairman of the Board, all directors, company

secretary and top management of The Company shall
attend all shareholders’ meetings unless they have
necessary issues must be cleared. This is to allow
them to listen to suggestions and answer questions

from the shareholders.

o Minutes of the Shareholders’ Meeting
The minutes of the shareholders’ meeting are
disclosed to shareholders in accordance with
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applicable laws, rules and regulations. Data are

accurately and completely recorded, including
methods of how to vote and count the votes, names
of directors attending the meeting, questions and
answers, and the resolutions on each agenda of the
meeting. The minutes of the shareholders’ meeting
both in Thai and English languages will be disclosed

on The Company’s website (www.stecon.co.th).

o Equitable Rights of Shareholders to Dividend
Payment and Repurchasing Stock

The Company has given all shareholders an

equitable right to dividends and/or other benefits and

the right to repurchase stock. In this regard, The

Company has established a clear dividend payment

policy.

1.2 Equitable Treatment of Shareholders

Principle

The Board of Directors realizes its duty to
protect the rights of shareholders, place importance
on fair and equal treatment of all shareholders, and
encourage the shareholders to exercise their rights.
The Board of Directors has also developed certain
measures to prevent the directors and management
of The Company from using internal information for
their personal unlawfully benefits, which may cause

damages to the shareholders.
Best Practices

e Notice of Shareholders’ Meeting

For equitable treatment of all shareholders, in
sending the Notice of Shareholders’ Meeting, Proxy
Form A, B, and C, and instructions on how to appoint
authorized representatives for shareholders who
cannot attend the meeting in person, the Board of
Directors requires that the letter of invitation to
meeting must be disseminated both in Thai and
English languages at least 30 days prior to the meeting
date on The Company’s website (www.stecon.co.th)
and that the notice of shareholder’s meeting must be
sent to the shareholders at least 21 days before the
date scheduled for the shareholders’ meeting. In case

'| 20 Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
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of a foreign shareholder, the notice of shareholders’
meeting and supporting documents in the English

language must be sent.

o Voting Right
For equitable treatment, a shareholder shall

have one vote per share.

o Agenda Proposition and Nomination of Directors
and Submission of Questions for the Annual
General Meeting in Advance.

The Company adheres to the principle of
equitable treatment of all shareholders and in order
to give all shareholders an opportunity to propose
matters to the Board of Directors as meeting agenda
or nominate qualified persons as the Company’s
directors, the Company has established the criteria for
agenda proposition and director nomination. Such
criteria consist of qualifications of the shareholders to
propose the meeting agenda or nominate a director,
procedures for proposition of the agenda and director
nomination, matters not to be included as an agenda,
consideration and  selection procedures, and
announcement of the consideration results. Details of
such criteria are shown on The Company’s website
(www.stecon.co.th).

Moreover, the Company allows the shareholders
to submit questions for the Annual General Meeting
in advance in order to inquire information of each
meeting agenda or any important issues of the
Company. The Company has clearly determined the
qualification of shareholders to submit questions in
advance, as well as the criteria and consideration

procedures.

o Internal Information Usage Policy
Please see details in Item 4 : Use of Internal

Information.

o Policy on Securities Trading of Directors and Top
Management of The Company

The Board of Directors has determined a policy

on securities trading of The Company’s directors and
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top management to prevent their use of insider
information that is nonpublic and essential to change
in the prices of securities (Insider Trading), which is
considered an unfair trading.

e Policy on Connected Transactions, Related Party
Transactions, and Conflict of Interest
The the

shareholders and fair treatment of all shareholders.

Company realizes benefits  of
To prevent conflict of interests and to achieve
transparent and accountable business operations,
The Company has a clear policy on disclosure of
connected transactions, related party transactions
and conflict of interests in order to enhance the
confidence  of  shareholders, investors and
stakeholders. The significant connected transactions,
related party transactions and conflict of interests
must be reviewed and approved by the Audit
Committee and the Board of Directors. The Company
will be in strict compliance with criteria, conditions
and procedures set forth in the Notification of the
Stock Exchange of Thailand regarding Disclosure of
Information and Practices of Listed Companies in
Connected Transactions B.E. 2546 (A.D. 2003) or

amendments thereof.

o Report on interests of directors and executives

The Board of Directors and The Board of
Executive Directors will act as a director in accordance
with the Fiduciary Duties by especially focus on
making decision to both direct and indirect of The
Company’s transaction with cautious and honesty in
order to prevent any conflict of interest that might
happen in the connected transaction between The
Company and its subsidiaries. The Board of Directors
defined the best practices for avoiding any conflict of
interest by providing the policy that every Directors,
and Executives from Senior Vice President and/or
upper levels including Executives whose position
were related to accounting and financial in Managers
or division level must report any conflict of interest
that had been made by themselves, spouses, and
minor child to The Company for the acknowledgement
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as accordance with The Securities and Exchange Act
B.E. 2535 and other additional regulations.

1.3 Role of Stakeholders

Principle

The Board of Directors realizes the importance
of all groups of stakeholders and promotes a process
aimed at improving cooperation between The
Company and all groups of stakeholders in contributing to
wealth, financial stability, and business sustainability.
Moreover, the Board of Directors is aware of the
importance of corporate social and environmental

responsibility for sustainable development.
Best Practices

o Human Resources Management Policy
The Company has a clear policy on human
resources management, looks after its personnel,
provides remunerations and benefits in response to
the
employees fairly and equitably under The Company’s

competitiveness and labor market, treats
work regulations, labor laws and local traditions,
ensures that the employees have good quality of life
and health and enjoy safe working environment,
creates a facilitating atmosphere, and promotes
teamwork. Moreover, there is a policy to enhance
employees’ knowledge and competency with the
objective to increase work efficiency and effectiveness.
The Company is determined to become an

organization of learning.

o Occupational Health, Safety and Environment

Policy

The Company is aware that occupational
health, safety and environment are an integral part
and a key success factor of business operations. All
employees and personnel of The Company shall be
provided with safety, health and good working
environment. Human resources are the most valuable
resources of an organization so The Company has
established the occupational health, safety and
environment policy for all of its employees and

personnel to acknowledge and observe as follows:



o S1gvUMsdoulAide
ieliuieniidoyauszneumsdniunsniude
fmuaiiAgatunsvhsensiiisalestu Sadusenisi
p1aneliinAutaudmaUseleriuareatilugnis
femrausylevivesusvnuazusindesld uenani
nsuNsUIENLaUInIsAesU§URmMINAda8A1N
suiinszfauaziledndansn (Fidudiary Duties) Bsfosindla
Tngliifdmlddeliimmsndensdouludesidadula
AZNITUNTTUIENTsTulourefimualinIsunIsuIen
wazfudmsReusiuiiensunsEamstuly T
;ﬁ@?nsafﬁ’]Lmﬂqaxé’uﬁ%mﬂummmﬁ’@%uazmsﬁuﬁﬂu
sEAURAnn1sevTeisumtfessnuliuTEmsuis
nsfidnldidvvesmunnisgausanazynsndslaivesg
fhny  delmduluaunseswlygivdnninduay
AANANENNING W.A.2535 wariudludfiafia

1.3 msAtivivununvedyidoulside

hanms : msAvtivunuInvevgijdouleide

AENTIUNITUTENATEMNTeANd Aol Tl
dndlfiddeusdnynngy  warduaduliingzuiunisi
afaasuaNuTNiiesenisusEniudiialadennngy
Tumsa¥emnusisds anufunmnansiunaganudadu
103iaN1s  uenIINHuLEIANENTIINUSEEmsmiln
famsdndugsiefidilefisanuiuinveusedanuuas
Aawandeu ionsanegnadaiuy

'
—_—————

«  ulgungnisusHIsNSwgINsuAna

vitmiuleuglunmsuimamineinsyanaiidniou
fnsquayaainsegneinds  Trnameuunulunisieny
LaEINATAANITUANTNIIUNNAUADAAR DI 1UNIENT
wistulaznaInusssy UdRasendneudieninudy
sysuanena  meldinseussileudedsdunsyihnuuigm
nMNeussNY uazUsindifinanaludany quantnanulii
AuAMTInuazquAINOUITERA  Dan1ma15vingIud
Uaondy  afuusseniansinuifuarduaiunisya
uty sadsdinsianminonulsieruimmsainsars
TeyARALATLUUNGUA AW el ingUseasdLile
Waurdneninvesndnauiiieifinlszdnininuas
Usgdvdralumsvhau sdeuiunmsaduayuliduesdinsu
MIFEU3

o ulsngmunaaulasnng 91590UN0Y lIAzanw
19AdoulunIsiwIU
UsEnianuaszutinuazdoinanuvasndy 01T

owlly  waranmwadeulunsieu  Hudiumilsves
audsalunsdifiugsiaiildaiunsousnoonaine
UfuRnasle
adadldumnuasndy Tguameudend meldanm

ninaukazdUiRnunnaureuIen

MhauLazAundenils ileanszminenuyedio
Dunsnensfifiaueigianvosesdng vienIsimuely
Wuwlewe enudasnds 91@ewdy wazanmuinday
lunisviey lindnaunazguiianulunuvesusen
nﬂﬂu%’umwmmzﬁaﬂﬁﬂaﬁaﬁ
- UTEmarduaSunaraiieasA iiinasvinau
ot1sUaenuazinw lifsdanndeon
- UitneduiiRauynauduninensidl
AMANYBIUTE ﬁaﬂ?ummﬂaaﬂﬁwmﬁﬂﬁﬁa
udadunlovefiddyvecuion
- Uddmaglinmsatuayuiileneliiinaiy
Uasndtlumsian  daedesdendodldii
anwUaoaferuadalifaninnisinay
waziREnsvhuiivaendy naenaudaaal
ANUSUARUTROY  wargdlalmAnnisvienu
lnegneuannd
- vstwivuaduulevglifinauznssunisainy
e
NuruulasIMsAgIfuaNIaonfoenda

Uaeniue1diaunivuasan nninaeu

audnazanIngeuluMYnnu Aaenau
UImsuagimuunuaulasanslidugvdua
pg19ilUsEANSAMN

- Ustnimuaduuleung i didudysnnau
Fesiniiguasuinveuluiesnrudasndy
Tunsiauvesladadudysiiduluaiy
seifyunaznguvienitulaendefiuiem
fuatuegiaduan

- viEndmuaduwleuneliguidRauynag
FossininAfuiinveulun1sufiRaulsiiae
mnuUaendouinuemaifiousy  uay

Julumuszdeunguisaudasnieiiuiem

fuatulaeiadenin

usEn Blu-Ing 1BUSITESY loUF AoUANSABU 1A (UMBU) 123
S1gvIuds=1U 2560 I



- The Company will promote and create safety
and environmental awareness at work.

- The Company recognizes that all workers
are valuable resources of The Company.
Thus safety for workers is our first priority.

- The Company will support the creation of
safety at work by providing safe tools and a
safe work environment, by promoting
safety knowledge among workers and
motivating them to practice safety at work.

- It is The Company’s policy to appoint an
occupational health, safety and environment
committee to develop occupational health,
safety and environment plans and effectively
implement and manage the occupational
health, safety and environment plans and
projects.

- The Company will require all supervisors to
be responsible for the safety of their
subordinates at work, ensuring that they
strictly follow the safety procedures and
rules established by The Company.

- The Company will require all workers to be
responsible for their own safety and that of
their colleagues at work and to act in full
compliance with the safety rules established
by The Company.

- The Company requires the employees at
all levels to be responsible for and
participate in maintaining the environment
and control or prevent any impacts on the
environment in accordance with provisions
of laws as well as to promote conservation
of environment in accordance with the

National Environmental Policy.

e Environmental Policy
Realizing the impacts on environment, The
Company has set up the environmental policy and
requires its employees to comply strictly with such
policy. A number of measures have been established
to prevent and mitigate the impacts of business

operations on the environment as well as to monitor
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the environmental quality in compliance with related
to environmental regulations and other related
standards defined by the environmental organization
such as The Enhancement and Conservation of
National Environmental Quality Act 2535.

The Company has strictly taken initial measures
to reduce the impacts on environment and monitor
the quality of environment during the construction
process with an objective to minimize any impacts on
the environment and community. There also are
additional measures recommended by specialists and
relevant government agencies to ensure that The
Company’s operation is truly effective.

The Company is aware of the importance of
environment and has carried out a variety of activities
to encourage the employees and relevant parties to
be aware of the impacts of business operations on
the environment through meetings, training sessions,
seminars and media of The Company.

By the year 2017, The Company provided the
training of “Integrating environment and developing
construction process” program for engineers to
encourage the working with environmental concerns
and to transfer knowledge to all workers. There were

188 engineers attending the training.

o Anti-corruption Policy

Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public
Company Limited commit to operate with fair,
transparent, and abide by related laws and regulations
for business and realize that The Company should
pay attention to its stakeholders as well. The Company
defined a business principle for countering bribery
against corruption as a best practice for Directors,
Executives and

employees. The Company

disseminated such principles to its stakeholders.

Anti-Corruption Policy

The Board of Directors, the Executives and
employees must do their duties with integrity and
without any act of bribery; moreover The Company
shall prohibit in any form whether direct or indirect,
and must adhere to The Company’s policies and

code of conduct.
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Procedures

- Receiving or Offering Customary Gifts, or other

Benefits

To operate The Company’s business that
related to biddings other projects, procurement,
communicating business, or any other related
company’s business transaction in both public and
private sectors must do with fair, transparent and
verification. The Company realized the importance of
any act that might result in improper influence
including receive or offer customary gifts or other
benefits that might cause any corruption.

In 2017, The Company has announced that no
new year gifts giving and receiving to/from customers,
business partners, government sectors, financial
institutions, and other related organizations, to assure
the commitments in operating with transparency,

justice, fair and equal with moral principal basis.

- Offering Sponsorships or Charitable Contributions
to Public or Private Sectors

Offering sponsorships or charitable contributions
to both public and private sectors must strictly do
with transparent that did not contrary to the morality,
code of conduct, and abide by laws and regulations
of The Company. The offering sponsorships or
charitable contributions as the foresaid can be done
after the approval of the original affiliation.

The offering sponsorships or charitable
contributions to public or private sectors must not be
used as a subterfuge or route for conflict of interest in
both individual benefits and company’s benefits and
must not be used as a subterfuge for bribery.

The approvals of offering sponsorships or charitable
contributions to public or private sectors must strictly
adhere to the regulations by writing the report attached
with the offering sponsorships or charitable contributions
payment for approvals and submit all related papers to

the Executives for considering process.

o Political Participation
The Company is a politically neutral organization
and does not support any political parties or politicians
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including enabling the Board of Directors, Executives
and employees not to participate in any act under
the name of The Company.

The Company realizes that it is righteous of its
people according to the liberty and rights in
participating the political activities; therefore The
Company encourages its people to exercise their
political rights in compliance with laws but prohibit
using employees’ status or using any company’s
assets as a subterfuge or route for any form to political
participation or political contributions in the name of
The Company.

To express and giving political opinion in The
Company’s office or job site area is penalty to The

Company’s association.

- Whistleblowing for Business countering Bribery

The Company supports its personnel to report
any misconduct or non-compliance or any form of
action that might result bribery by sending their
enquiries to managers or other channel that open for
this matter. The Company has whistleblowing and
whistleblower protection policy as stated in the good
The additional

channel for whistleblowing as follows;

governance chapter. complaints

Corporate Secretary Office
Address: Sino-Thai Engineering and
Construction Public Company Limited
29 FL, Sino-Thai Tower,

32/59 Asoke Road, Bangkok 10110
corporatesecretary@stecon.co.th
+66(0)2 610 4994

Whistleblowing, complaints, and suggestions

E-mail address:
Telephone:

will be taken into consideration or implementation
appropriately on a case by case basis. The
whistleblowing procedure and whistleblower
protection policy are as follows;

Whistleblowing Procedure
+ The company secretary will compile and
verify the accuracy and adequacy of the
complaint. If there are reasonable grounds

to suspect that such acts indicate fraud,
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corruption, bribery or against the laws or
ethics or company policy or cause any
encroachment, the company secretary will
provide preliminary handling plan to the
President.

The President will examine the compliant
and preliminary handling and appoint and
authorize person or working group to handle
as appropriate on a case by case basis.

The authorized person or working group
will consider investigation process and
suppress the acts that evolve fraud,
corruption, bribery or violate applicable
laws or ethics or company policy or cause
any encroachment. Appropriate remedy
will be provided to affected persons, taking
the overall damage into account. The
authorized person or working group will be
reported directly to the President.

Once the investigation is over, the results
will be reported to the President and
company secretary, as well as the
complainant, in case complainant can be
identified. The related information will be
treated in strict confidence.

In case the issue affects the Company’s
public image or involves the top
management or significantly affects the
the
President will report the results to the Audit

Company’s  business  operations,

Committee.

Whistleblower protection policy

Whistleblower, complainants or those who
provide cooperation in the investigation
can decide not to disclose their identities,
in case such disclosure may jeopardize
their safety or cause damage. In case their
identities are disclosed, the Company will
notify the result or provide the appropriate
remedies in a convenient and timely

manner.
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«  The Company will treat the personal data

of whistleblowers, complainants, or those
the
investigation, as well as the related

who provide cooperation in
information in strict confidence. Any
disclosure will be done with discretion and
as necessary, basing on the safety and
damage concerns of the whistleblowers,
complainants, or those who provide
cooperation in the investigation, the source
of information, and other related persons.

« In case the whistleblowers, complainants,
or those who provide cooperation in the
investigation might feel unsafe or suffer
from the investigation process, they can
request the suitable whistleblower
protection. Meanwhile, the Company might
determine the whistleblower protection
measures without the request if the
Company notices that there are chances of
damage, suffering or unsafe.

« Those who are affected or suffered by the
case will be provided with the appropriate

and fair remedies.

- Evaluation for risk from countering bribery

The Internal Audit of The Company has
responsible for doing the evaluation of risk from
countering bribery by evaluate, analyze, follow, and
control risk that might result bribery to be acceptable
and report the evaluation result to the Audit
Committee including follow up the procedures to
prevent risk from countering bribery with the Principles

for Countering Bribery.

- Countering Bribery Awareness

The Company creates countering bribery
awareness by communicating to the Board of
Directors, Executives and employees in order to
create the cognitive of countering bribery in The
Company. The Company enables its people who

might relate to the stakeholders to understand and
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aware of countering bribery by providing course
trainings, seminars, and through other related media
of The Company and disseminate to The Company’s
stakeholders as well.

- Sanction Procedures for Breaches of the Principles
To whom it may breach of the Principles for
Countering Bribery must be penalized according to

The Company’s regulations and/or related laws.

o Non-infringement of Intellectual Property
The Board of Directors

importance of non-infringement  of

is aware of the
intellectual
property and conformity with laws governing
intellectual property or copyrights; therefore, a policy
has been established and clearly disseminated the
requirement to the management and employees to
carefully consider the products, services, equipment,
tools or information technology to be used for
business operations of The Company to ensure that
the use of such items is not an infringement of
third-party intellectual property.

The Company set the best practices for
property by
monitoring and preventing the downloadable pirated

non-infringement of intellectual

hardware and software.

e Non-violation of Human Rights

The Company is aware of the importance of
human rights of the personnel and related parties and
respects personal rights in accordance with applicable
laws. The Company shall refrain from any acts that
are considered a violation of human rights. Policies for
non-violation of human rights have been established
and specify important issues on occupational health,
safety and environment, fair and equitable treatment
of employees, and work-related rights and freedom
of the employees.

In 2016, The Company provided the knowledge
of the human rights principle and concept in the
annual employees meeting and there was no

complaint of the human rights.
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e Code of Conduct

The Board of Directors provided code of
conduct for Directors, Executives and employees for
being the guidelines for Directors, Executives and
employees to abide, furthermore, the transaction will
be transparent, righteous and integrity for stakeholders.
The best practices as stated in The Company’s code
of conduct will lead us to sustainability firm and it
was presented in The Company’s website at

www.stecon.co.th

o Policy and Best practices for Stakeholders

The Company has established best practices
toward its stakeholders, including customers, business
partners, competitors, government agencies,
employees, society and creditors. It is the duties and
responsibilities of the directors, management and all
employees to be aware of and strictly comply with
the established best practices, which are available in

the Work Regulations and Intranet of The Company.

Best Practices toward Clients

1. The Company’s businesses are engineering

services and construction services with an
acceptable international standard at a fair price.
The Company aimed to deliver construction
projects with quantity, quality, and price as agreed
upon dealing and to be responsible for its own
commitment.

2. The Company must provide an adequate
company’s information and company’s services
to clients.

3. The Company must treat and provide services
equally to all clients with kindness and hospitality.

4. The Company must omit to perform any acts to

control the decisions of the clients.

Best Practices toward the Affiliates
1. The Company must strictly abide to laws,
regulations and other related guidelines of bidding

and proposals.
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2. The Company must fairly compete with other

affiliates by omit an act of persecution to cause
rivals to lose opportunity unfairly.

The Company must not violate other affiliates’
privacy of information.

Board of Directors, Executives, and employees of
The Company must beware of the communication
between affiliates and the affiliates’ people by
omit to reveal the confidential information of The

Company.

Best Practices toward Government Organizations

1.

The Company must abide by laws, regulations,
and guidelines that related to the business.

Any acts that The Company coordinates with the
governmental organizations must be transparent,
honest, and fair including the omission of receiving
and offering customary gifts, assets or other
benefits to the officers.

The Company encourages its employees to
support and exercise their political rights with the

governmental organizations.

Best Practices toward Employees

1.

The Company must treat its personnel regarding
to the human rights by must not act any acts that
violate the human rights including human dignity
and personal information as stated in the laws.
The Company must treat its people equally by
providing rights and creativity in working abides by
laws and policy of The Company.

The Company must provide the reasonable
compensation like salaries, bonuses, welfares,
and provident funds including the training courses
for improving their abilities to work like seminars,
university education, and trainings.

The Company must provide the channel for
advisory or sharing any obstacles from working for
example, working atmosphere, any acts that
against the rules and regulations of The Company,
or any act that leads to corrupt and criminal. The
employees can appeal and be advised freely
directly to the supervisors, executives or through

the providing channel.
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5. The Company must adhere to the succession
policy along with the safety of its people then
defined best practices and policies on safety and
communicate to its people by arranging training
courses and acknowledge good practices for
operation.

6. The Company supports its people to perform
their duties to the best of their abilities with
integrity and fairness in accordance with the
policy, code of conduct and The Company’s

regulations.

Best Practices toward Society and Environment

1. The Company must operates by having social and
responsibility awareness and adhere to the laws,
guidelines and regulations of the business. The
Company coordinates with other related
organizations to create creativities for communities.

2. The Company must concern with the job hiring
and improving skilled labor to people who lives in
the communities where jobsites of The Company
is located.

3. The Company must support any operations that
violate human rights.

4. The Company must strictly concern not to violate
any intellectual properties or any patents of other
people or other businesses.

5. The Company concerns to the importance of
natural resources and environment, therefore,
announced to every jobsites to seriously adhere
to the laws, rules and regulations that related to
the natural resources and environment in order
to prevent making an effect to society,
environment, and community. The Company also
aware of natural resources and energy usage by
providing the policy and guidelines of natural
resources and energy usage for employees to
adhere strictly.

6. The Company must force every jobsites to
operate in compliance with health, safety, and
environmental policy to ensure the employees to

have the best and safety workplace.
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Best practices toward Partners

1. The procurement process of The Company must
be fair, righteous and transparent. The procurement
process must be acted in accordance with the
procurement policy and all vendors must be
treated equally and accurately.

2. The Company must keep the information of its
partners confidentially and must not reveal such
information to others for benefits.

3. When contracting with trading partners, The
Company must retain document relevant to
fairness without any act that limit the rights of
partners and relevant to contract making between
The Company and partners.

4. Partners selection guidelines are considered

through 5 major terms as follows;

1) Financial standards to operate.

2) Expertise, experiences, and quality of
engineering and construction work (in case
of hiring).

3) Product specifications and quality (in case
of procurement).

4) Machine and construction tools’ efficiency
for operating/services.

5) Profile that related to claimants and legal
cases of manpower or human rights

violation.

The Company regards toward partners

selection in order to operate the business with

professionally and efficiently including risk reduction.

Best practices toward Creditors

1. The Company must stringently to the contract or
the terms of guarantee between creditors and
The Company both in terms of payment, loans,
interests, and other conditions.

2. The Company must report The Company’s
financial position with accuracy, adequate and
punctual to creditors.

3. The Company will inform creditors in advance if terms
and conditions in the contracts/agreements cannot be
observed. Any actions to improve the process are
reasonable and made for a proper purpose.
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1.4 Disclosure and Transparency

Principle

The Board of Directors supervises The
Company’s proper, complete, accurate, timely and
transparent disclosure of financial and non-financial
information through channels that can be easily
accessed in an equitable and reliable manner.
Moreover, the Board of Directors shall require the
investor relations unit to communicate the disclosure
and transparency policy to third parties, such as
shareholders, institutional investors, general investors,
analysts and

relevant government agencies

appropriately, equitably, and fairly.
Best Practices

o Disclosure of Data and Information of The Company
The Board of Directors has defined the policy
regarding disclosure of information on business and
operating results of The Company, both financial and
non-financial information, in an accurate, adequate,
appropriate, timely and transparent manner, to
general public, investors and stakeholders. Regarding
with
provisions of the Public Limited Company Act, the

such disclosure, The Company complies
Securities and Stock Exchange Act, relevant regulations
and notifications of the Securities and Exchange
Commission, the Stock Exchange of Thailand, and
other related authorities.

Furthermore, The Company has disseminated
disclosure of information on its business and operating
results, both financial and non-financial information,
such as Good Corporate Governance Policy, code of
conduct, management structure, mission and vision,
annual report, financial statements and press release,
through The Company’s website at www.stecon.co.th
in both Thai and English languages as another way of
communications between The Company and related
parties.

The Company discloses annual report both in
Thai and English languages on to company’s website

within 120 days after the end of fiscal year.
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Investor Relations Office

The Company has set up the Investor Relations
Office to communicate with investors, shareholders,
analysts, relevant government agencies, and the
general public in an appropriate and equal manner.

The Investor Relations Office can be reached at

Investor Relations Office
Address: Sino-Thai Engineering and
Construction Public Company Limited
30" Floor, Sino-Thai Tower,

32/60, Asoke Road,

Klongtoey-Nua, Wattana,

Bangkok 10110, Thailand.
ir@stecon.co.th

+66 (0) 2 610 4900 ext. 364

In 2017, the following investor relations

E-mail:
Tel:

activities were carried out:
e 7 Press Conferences
« 4 Roadshows
« 55 Company visits
+ 11 Conference calls

The Company’s Executives attended at all the

invest relation activities as usual.

e Dividend Payment Policy

It is The Company’s policy to pay dividend in
an amount of not less than 40% of its net profit
before its interest in subsidiary companies. The
dividend payment shall be made only if The Company
has no accumulated loss or does not plan to make

additional investment in mega projects.

o  Whistleblowing and Whistleblower Protection
Measures

To promote corporate good governance and
encourage all employees and stakeholders to report
or disclose potential corruption or violation of laws,
code of ethics or policies of The Company, to file
complaints regarding violation of rights, or to express
their opinions regarding business operations, The
Company has provided a channel for the employees
and stakeholders to report to:
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Corporate Secretary Office
Address: Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction
Public Company Limited

29" Floor, Sino-Thai Tower,

32/59 Asoke Road, Klongtoey-Nua,
Wattana, Bangkok 10110, Thailand.
E-mail address: corporatesecretary@stecon.co.th

Tel: +66 (0) 2 610 4944

Information, complaints and recommendations
submitted will be considered and actions will be
taken appropriately on a case by case basis. Names of
the whistleblowers will be kept unrevealed and all
information will be treated confidentially. There are
whistleblower protection measures to assure the
whistleblowers or complainants that they will not be
affected by providing such information.

Whistleblowing, complaints, and suggestions
will be taken into consideration or implementation
The
whistleblower

appropriately on a case by case basis.

whistleblowing  procedure  and

protection policy are as follows;

Whistleblower protection policy
«  Whistleblower,

provide cooperation in the investigation can

complainants or those who

decide not to disclose their identities, in case

such disclosure may jeopardize their safety or

cause damage. In case their identities are
disclosed, the Company will notify the result or
provide the appropriate remedies in a convenient
and timely manner.

+  The Company will treat the personal data of
whistleblowers, complainants, or those who
provide cooperation in the investigation, as well
as the related information in strict confidence.
Any disclosure will be done with discretion and as
necessary, basing on the safety and damage
concerns of the whistleblowers, complainants, or
those who provide cooperationin the investigation,
the source of information, and other related

persons.
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+ In case the whistleblowers, complainants, or
those who provide cooperation in the investigation
might feel unsafe or suffer from the investigation
process, they can request the suitable
whistleblower protection. Meanwhile, the
Company might determine the whistleblower
protection measures without the request if the
Company notices that there are chances of
damage, suffering or unsafe.

+  Those who are affected or suffered by the case
will be provided with the appropriate and fair

remedies.

o Communicate with the Board of Directors

The Company provides additional channel for
stakeholders to communicate with the Board of
(without the
acknowledgement of The Company’s executives) in

Directors directly to the Board

order to receive any suggestions or opinions including
claimants such as the operation of the Executives, the
unfair practices and any other acts that against the
code of conduct.

Stakeholders can submit the document that
clearly specified name, address, the convenient

telephone number and e-mail address (if any) to:

The Audit Committee
Address: Sino-Thai Engineering and
Construction Public Company Limited
26" Floor, Sino-Thai Tower,

32/56, Asoke Road, Klongton-Nua,

Wattana, Bangkok 10110, Thailand.

The Audit Committee will consider and manage
such matters by directly report to the Board of
Directors (without the acknowledgement of The
Company’s executives) case by case. The Company
assures that whistle blowers must not be harmed

according to the whistleblowing policy.
1.5 Responsibilities of the Board of Directors

Principle
The Board of Directors realizes that Corporate
Good Governance plays an essential role to business
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operations of The Company. The Board is responsible
to the shareholders and independent from the
management. The directors shall perform their duties
honestly and carefully, develop themselves all the
time, and devote enough time to perform their duties
and responsibilities to the fullest extent of their

competency.
Best Practices

e Composition and Qualifications of the Board of
Directors

1. The Board of Directors shall consist of at least five
directors.

2. Not less than half of the total number of directors
shall domicile in the Kingdom of Thailand and
possess all qualifications required by laws.

3. TheBoard of Directors shall consist of independent
directors in a number of more than 50% of the
total directors and more than 66% of the members
of the Board shall not be executives of The
Company.

4. Chairman of the Board shall be an independent
director and not the same person with the
President.

5. The Board of Directors shall consist of directors
who are competent, experienced, and skilled in
different areas necessary for management of The
Company’s affairs. The directors shall perform
their duties in full conformity with laws and
objectives and regulations of The Company as
well as resolutions of the shareholders’ meeting
and in good faith for utmost interests of The
Company.

6. Each Directors should be a Director in other listed
companies not exceeding 5 companies.

7. Directors who are one of the Executives can be
seated as a Director in listed companies not

exceeding 2 companies.

The Authorities and Duties of the Board of Directors

1. To perform their duties by utilizing their
knowledge, skills, and experiences in order to

benefit The Company’s business operation. Their
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duties must be in compliance with The Company’s
the Public Limited
Companies Act B.E.2535, Securities and Exchange
Commission B.E.2535.

Consider and approve The Company’s vision

objectives, regulations,

mission trends and strategy for operating business
that had been proposed by the Board of
Executives Directors and review it every year.
Monitor the implementation of the business
strategies to ensure that have been implemented
efficiently, as well as the communication of
objectives and goals through business strategies
across the Company.

Supervise The Company to have its best practices
toward nominating qualified person to be a
director with transparency according to good
corporate governance.

Supervise The Company to have its best practices
toward remuneration of the Board of Directors
and other Board Committees to be appropriate
reliance with good corporate governance.
Supervise The Company to have its best practices
toward the evaluation of the Board of Directors
and other Board Committees including the
evaluation for the President in accordance with
the good corporate governance to stimulate the
efficiency in working as a Director.

To
Committees to effectively conduct the business

supervise the management and Board

under The Company’s policies and request the
management to report the issues that has
significant affects to The Company’s operation.
The Board of Directors shall assure that all related
parties’ transactions are conducted in accordance
with the regulations of the Office of the Securities
and Exchange Commission and the Stock Exchange
of Thailand. In case of necessity, the Board of
Directors will require the management to hire
advisors in order to give opinions for the
management’s decision in specialized issues
which have significant effect on The Company’s

operation.
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8.

10.

To supervise The Company and to set up effective

internal control, and Internal Audit system.
Internal Audit manager shall report directly to the
Audit Committee.

Independent shall

consider company’s matters related to strategies,

Directors independently
management, appointing directors, and issues
that have significant affects to The Company for
the benefit of the shareholders and shall have an
access to adequate financial and business
information to perform their duties.

Review the authorities and duties of the Board of
Directors and the President at least once a year to
assure compliance with applicable laws, relevant
regulations and good corporate governance
principles and to comply with the Company’s

business direction.

The Board of Directors’ Approval

1.

detach, the Board

Committees and President to act under the Board

Appoint, empower to
of Directors.

Consult other expertise or the Assistant to
President (if any) or outsource the Advisory Board
if necessary and all expenses shall be borne by
The Company.

Approve any establishment, merger and
acquisition, or cease any subsidiaries.

Propose the increasing and decreasing capital or
changing par value including amendment of The
Company’s associate, the article of association
and/or the purpose of its business to shareholders.
Empower the Management team, Top Executives
of The Company or other people to act under the
authorization of the Board of Directors.

The Board members have rights to call
Management team or other related employees of
The Company to clarify, give opinion, or submit
the document to the Board if necessary.

Appoint and detach Corporate Secretary
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Authorization and duties of Chairman of The Board of

Directors

1. The Chairman of the Board of Directors shall
abide by duties as stated in The Company’s article
of associate and the resolution of the annual
general meeting of shareholders including laws
and regulations, the Public Company Act B.E.
2535 and the Securities and Exchange Act B.E.
2535 and other related regulations for Chairman
of the Board of Directors.

2. Act as the Chairman at the Board of Directors
meeting and ensure that The Company shall
convene the Board of Directors meeting in
accordance with the Article of Association, laws
and good corporate governance policy, including
allocating sufficient time for management to
propose topics and for directors to debate
important thoroughly. The Chairman should
encourage directors to exercise independent
judgment in the best interest of the Company.

3. Act as the Chairman of the annual general meeting
of shareholders and ensure that The Company
shall convene the annual general meeting of
shareholders in accordance with the Article of
Association, laws and good corporate governance
policy.

4. Support, improve and ensure that the Board of
Directors shall perform their duties with integrity
according to good corporate governance and
code of conduct, including promote a culture of
openness and debate  through  ensuring
constructive relations between directors, and
between the Board and management.

5. Monitor and ensure that the Board of Directors
efficiently carries out its duties to achieve the

Company’s objectives.

The Definition and qualification of Independent Director
The Board of Directors reviews the definition

and qualifications of Independent Directors, the

regulations of which are more stringent than those of

the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and
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Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET), as committed to

good corporate governance as follows:

1.

2.

4.

I

Holding shares no more than 0.5 % of the total
voting shares of The Company, its parent
company, its subsidiaries, its associated companies,
or a related juristic entity with potential conflicts,
including of shares held by related persons'.

Not being an executive director’, an employee, or
a company consultant who receives a regular
salary or a controlling person of The Company, its
parent company, its subsidiaries, its associated
companies, its same-level subsidiaries®, or a
related juristic entity with potential conflict of
interest during the period of 2 years before the
appointment.

Not being a person who has a blood or a legal
relationship of a parent, spouse, sibling, and child
including a child” spouse, to any executive
management, major shareholder, a controlling
person, or a person whom has been proposed to
be an executive management or a controlling
person of The Company or its subsidiaries.

Not having a business relationship and a vested
interest, whether directly or indirectly, financially
or administratively, including not being a
professional advisor to The Company such as an
auditor, a client, partner, supplier, creditor, or
debtor of the parent company, its subsidiaries, its
associated companies, its same-level subsidiaries’,
or a related juristic entity with potential conflict
of interest during the period of 2 years before the
appointment.

Not being a director who has been appointed as
the representative of The Company’s director,
major shareholder, or shareholder who is related
to a major shareholder of The Company.

Not having any other characteristics that may
potentially prevent from giving independent
opinions.

An independent director, with qualification under
Clauses 1- 6, may be assigned by the Board of

Directors to make the collective decisions on the
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operation of The Company, its parent company,
its subsidiaries, its associated companies, its same-
level subsidiaries®, or a related juristic entity with
potential conflicts

The Nomination of the Board of Directors

To nominate a director, the nomination and
remuneration committee shall ensure that the
nomination would be preceded transparently before
proposing to the Board of Directors. The nomination
and remuneration committee must propose qualified
person, especially with the missing skills and
qualifications for the prevailing Board’s components
and structure under the Company business strategies
by establishing Board Skill Matrix and considering the
performance assessment of the Board of Directors, as
well as Director Pool or Professional Search Firm. The
qualified persons’ biography and other personal
information will be proposed to the Board of Directors
in order to provide adequate information to the Board
of Directors and then can be submitted to the annual
general meeting of shareholders to approve
eventually.

The directors of The Company shall be
appointed by the shareholders’” meeting pursuant to
the following criteria and procedures:

1. In voting for the election of each director, each
shareholder shall have one vote per share held
by him/her.

2. At the election of directors, it is required that one

shall Each

shareholder must exercise all of his/her votes in

director be elected at a time.
electing one person nominated as a director.
3. The candidates who have the most votes shall be

elected as directors equivalent to the number of

Footnote:

directors required. If two candidates have equal
votes, the Chairman of the meeting shall have a
casting vote.

In the case of any vacancy on the Board of
Directors for any reason other than retirement by
rotation, the Board of Directors shall elect a person
who is qualified and not prohibited by laws to fill the
vacancy at the next Board of Directors’ meeting,
unless the remaining term of the former director is
less than two months. The replacement director shall
retain his/her office only for the remaining tenure of
his/her predecessor. The resolution of the Board of
Directors in respect of appointment of the replacement
director shall represent the votes of no less than

three-quarters fourth of the remaining directors.

Term of Office
1. At every annual general shareholders meeting,
one-third of the directors shall retire from office.
If the number of directors to retire from office is
not a multiple of three, then the number of
directors closest to one-third shall retire. A
director who retires by rotation shall be eligible
for re-election. In addition to the retirement by
rotation, the directors shall be vacated upon:
(1) Death
(2) Resignation
(3) Disqualification or being of a forbidden
nature under Section 68 of the Public
Limited Company Act B.E. 2535 (A.D. 1992)
(4) Removal by resolution of the shareholders’
meeting in accordance with Section 76 of
the Public Limited Company Act B.E. 2535
(A.D. 1992)
(5) Removal by order of the court

' “Related Person” means a person defined under the Section 258 of Securities and Exchange Act B.E. 2535.

2«

Executive director” means any director who holds an executive position, or any director who is in charge of any actions deemed to be

taken by executives, and shall include any authorized director except where it can be demonstrated that such authorized director,

jointly with other directors, signs on transactions which have already passed board’s approval.

* “same-level subsidiary” means any two or more subsidiaries under the same parent company.
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Directors’ Remuneration

A member of the Board of Directors and other
subcommittees is entitled to remuneration from The
Company, namely meeting allowances, annual
benefits
shareholders’ meeting. The Board of Director has
the

Committee to establish the remuneration structure of

gratuity and other approved by the

assigned Nomination and Remuneration
the Board of Directors and submit the same to the
Board of Directors for approval and presentation to

the shareholders’ meeting for final approval.

The President and Senior Management Remuneration
The remuneration of the President and

policy

established by the Board of Executive Directors, which

senior management and guidelines is
based on, such as, key performance indicators, the
remuneration of executive in the industry, and the
performance assessment in order to provide the
appropriate remuneration which relates to the short-
term and long-term of The Company’s operating
result, to attract the qualified executives, to retain
quality management within The Company, and to be

more competitive in the industry.

The performance assessment of the Board of Directors
and Board Committees

The performance assessment of the Board of Directors
The performance assessment of the Board of
Directors shall be evaluated both as in group and

individual (self-assessment) with the details as follows:

e The performance Board assessment

The procedure to evaluate the performance of
the Board of Directors as in group has been divided
into 6 major sessions as suggested by the Stock
Exchange of Thailand, which are (1) Qualifications and
Structure of the Board (2) Roles and Responsibilities
of the Board (3) The Board’s meetings (4) The Board’s
fiduciary (5) The relationship between the Board and
the Management (6) Self-improvement of the Board
and the Management
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The performance assessment procedures are
as follows;

1. The performance assessment of the Board

of Directors as in group at least once a
year.
2. Corporate Secretary summarizes and
reports the result of the performance
Board assessment to the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee in order to
consider any guidelines to improve the
performance of the Board of Directors
efficiently.

3. The Nomination and Remuneration reports
the result and other additional guidelines
to improve the efficiency of the Board of

Directors’ performance to the Board.

o« The
directors (Self-assessment)

performance assessment of individual
The procedure to evaluate the performance
assessment of individual directors (self-assessment)
has been divided into 6 major sessions as suggested
by the Stock Exchange of Thailand, which are (1)
Qualifications and Structure of the Board (2) Roles
and Responsibilities of the Board (3) The Board’s
meetings (4) The Board’s fiduciary (5) The relationship
between the Board and the Management (6) Self-
improvement of the Board and the Management

The performance assessment procedures are

as follows;

1. The Board of Directors has to do self-

assessment at least once a year.

2. Corporate Secretary summarizes and
reports the result of the performance
assessment of individual directors to the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee
in order to consider any guidelines to
improve the performance of the Board of
Directors efficiently.

3. The Nomination and Remuneration reports
the result and other additional guidelines
to improve the efficiency of the Board of

Directors’ performance to the Board.
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The Performance assessment of the Board Committees
The performance assessment of the Board
Committees, which is the Board of Executive Directors,
the Audit Committee, and the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, shall be evaluated both as
The

evaluation form is included with the performance of

in group and individual (self-assessment).
the Board Committees that based on the authorities
and duties of each Board Committees and other

related guidelines.

o The performance Board Committees’ assessment
The performance assessment procedures are
as follows;

1. The performance assessment of the Board
Committees as in group at least once a year.
2. Corporate Secretary summarizes and
reports the result of the assessment of
every Board Committees to the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee in order to
consider any sguidelines to improve the
performance of the Board of Directors

efficiently.
3. The Nomination and Remuneration reports
the result and other additional guidelines
to improve the efficiency of the Board

Committees’ performance to the Board.

o The performance assessment of the individual

Directors (Self-assessment)

The performance assessment procedures are

as follows;

1. Every Board Committees has to do self-

assessment at least once a year.

2. Corporate Secretary summarizes and
reports the result of the assessment of
every Board Committees to the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee in order to
consider any sguidelines to improve the
performance of the Board of Directors
efficiently.

3. The Nomination and Remuneration reports

the result and other additional guidelines
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to improve the efficiency of the Board

Committees’ performance to the Board.

The results of the performance assessment of the Board
of Directors and Board Committees
In 2017, the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee evaluated the performance Board as
followed;
«  The performance assessment of the Board
of Directors (in group)
« The performance assessment of individual
directors (Self-assessment)
« The performance assessment of the Board
Committees (in group)
« The performance assessment of the
individual directors (Self-assessment)
The assessment criteria are presented in the

table below.

90% — 100% Excellent
80% — 89% Very Good
70% — 79% Good
60% — 69% Satisfactory
50% — 59% Pass

Lower 50 % Need improvement

The Board of Directors and Board Committees
assessment in group and individual (self-assessment)
in details are as the following;

1. The performance assessment of the Board of
Directors (in group) and the performance assessment
of individual directors (self-assessment)

The performance assessment of the Board of
Directors in group had 100.00% score, its description
is “Excellent” and the performance assessment of
had 85.00%

score, its description is “Very Good”, the evaluation

individual directors (self-assessment)
presented that the Board of Directors has capabilities
and different areas of expertise that cover all aspects
of the Company’s operations. The Board of Directors
performed their duty with efficiency as monitoring
and supervising the management team to achieve the
Company strategies, goals, policies.
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2. The performance assessment of the Board of
Executive Directors (in group) and the performance
assessment of individual directors (self-assessment)

The performance assessment of the Board of

Executive Directors in group had 98.16% score, its
description is “Excellent” and the performance
assessment of individual directors (self-assessment)
had 80.00% score, its description is “Very Good”, the
evaluation presented the Board of Executive Directors
have capabilities, expertise and professional
experiences that cover all aspects of the Company’s
operations. The Executives Directors performed their
duty with efficiency as the performance of board
members has been compliant with regulations and
applicable laws, and the good corporate governance
principles, allowing the Company’s operations to
achieve target profits.

3. The performance assessment of the Audit
Committee (in group) and the performance
assessment of individual directors (self-assessment)

The performance assessment of the Audit

Committee in group had 100.00% score, its description

is “Excellent” and the performance assessment of

had 90.00%

score, its description is “Very Good”, the evaluation

individual directors (self-assessment)

presented that the Audit Committee has capabilities
and different areas of expertise that cover all aspects
of the Company’s operations, specifically in finance,
accounting and laws. The Audit Committee performed
their duty with efficiency as the efficiency of the
internal control and the internal audit system and the
practical suggestions that support the Company’s
operations, along with a close monitoring of
improvement. Therefore, the Company has continued
to perform efficiency with transparency, accuracy and
adequate information disclosure for all stakeholders.
4. The performance assessment of the Nomination

and Remuneration Committee (in group) and the

performance assessment of individual directors

(self-assessment)
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The performance assessment of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee in group had 94.44%
score, its description is “Excellent” and the
performance assessment of individual directors (self-
assessment) had 80.00% score, its description is “Very
Good”, the evaluation presented that the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee has capabilities and
different areas of expertise that cover all aspects of
the

members of nomination and remuneration committee

Company’s operations. Moreover, certain
joined in the “Nomination Committee Best Practice
Guideline” seminar in order to ensure that the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee performed
their duties with appropriateness and adequacy. As a
result, the remuneration of the Board is appropriate
to the nature and size of the business with the
concerns of the changes of business situations and
good corporate governance principles.

The Board of Directors had its opinion towards
the Board of Directors’ performance and other Board
Committees that had continually improved by courses
training for Board members, therefore, the Board of
Directors and also to the other Board Committees
had an effective performance that complied with
international standards and comfortable to best
practices of the Stock Exchange of Thailand and other

related organizations.

Meeting of the Board of Directors

1. The Company requires the Board of Directors to
meet on a regular basis at least once every three
months to consider the financial statements,
develop policies, and monitor performance of
The Company. The Board of Directors shall be
ready to hold a meeting in case of a special
circumstance.

2. The Board of Directors manages the meeting
schedule annually at the beginning of the year,
then inform to the Board of Directors to be
acknowledged except other extraordinary

meetings.






The meeting schedule of the Board of Directors and the Board Committees for the year 2018, setting

in advance, excluding other extraordinary meetings, as follows;

1 February 28, 2018 February 14, 2018 January 24, 2018

2 May 25, 2018 May 11, 2018 November 14, 2018
3 August 24, 2018 August 8, 2018

4 November 28, 2018 November 14, 2018

For the Board of Executive Directors meetings,
settingin advance, will be held on the third Wednesday
of each month, excluding other extraordinary meetings
3. Each meeting of the Board of Directors shall be

attended by more than half of the total number
of directors who are in office at the moment.

4. To cast votes on a motion, the Board of Directors’
meeting shall consist of not less than two-thirds
of the total number of directors of The Company.

5. Prior to the Board of Directors’ meeting, Chairman
of the Board and the President will jointly fix the
meeting agendas and allow the directors to
propose any matters to be discussed at the
meeting. Members of the Board of Directors shall
be notified of the meeting in advance so they will
be able to manage time and attend the meeting.
Appropriate and sufficient meeting documents
shall be sent to the directors at least 5 days prior
to the meeting to enable them to make informed
decisions.

6. The Board of Directors shall have access to
additional data and information through the
Corporate Secretary and President.

7. During the Board of Directors’ meeting, the
Chairman of the Board shall allocate sufficient
time for the meeting in order to enable the
attendants to consider each agenda thoroughly.

8. The President may invite top management to
attend the meeting in order to give more details
or explanations on related agenda and allow the
directors to ask questions or request any additional

information.
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New Director Orientation

The Board of Directors requires every new
director to have an orientation in order to enable
them to be aware of and understand The Company’s
business, industry, procedures, and policies as well as
the roles, duties and responsibilities of the Board of
Directors. The orientation for new directors will be
composed of documentations, training, and tour of
various construction sites of The Company to allow
the directors to experience the actual operations of

The Company.

Directors , President , and Top Management’s Training
and Development

The Board of Directors supports and promotes
consistent enhancement of the directors’ knowledge
and skills in relation to duties and responsibilities of
the directors or new management procedures. This is
to enable the directors to improve their competency
and performance and appropriately use the knowledge
skills
effectiveness and efficiency. It is required that at least

and obtained to maximize management
one director shall attend the skill enhancement
training or seminar each year.

The Board of Directors encourages and
promotes continuous development and education of
the President and top management that is relevant to
their roles in order to achieve the Company’s
objectives and goals.

Succession Plan of President and Chief Executive Officer

The Board of Directors realizes the importance
of key management like President and top
management Positions, then they have to assure that

the President and Chief Executive Officer’s nomination
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process is appropriate. To prevent the discontinuous
operation due to vacancy positions, the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee made the succession
plan of President and Chief Executive Officer. In this
regard, the qualified person(s) will be recruited to be
a successor by considering knowledge, potentiality,
and performance evaluation. Thereafter, the individual
development plans, for both short-term and long-
term development plans, which emphasizes on
crucial knowledge and skills will be provided to
ensure the successors will be ready and qualified for

the positions that they will assume.
2. The Board Committees
The Board of Executive Directors

Composition and Qualifications of the Board of Executive

Directors

1. The Board of Directors shall be responsible for
appointment and/or removal of the Board of
Executive Directors.

2. The Board of Executive Directors shall consist of
at least three directors. At a minimum, the Board
of Executive Directors shall comprise the Managing
Director and the Senior Executive Vice-President

of Financial and Administration Division.

Authorities and Duties of the Board of Executive Directors

1. Determine vision, mission, policies, and business
strategy under the supervision of the Board of
Directors including review and approve it as least
every year.

2. Supervise and consider business plan, financial
plan, budget and other management manners
proposed by the management in order to comply
with good corporate governance.

3. Monitor and examine the operations according to
policies, business strategies and othermanagement
manners of The Company and report the results
to The Company’s Board of Directors.

4. Consider
management policies and any other businesses

and determine rules, regulations,

which will be bind to The Company.
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10.

11.

12.

Provide recommendation, suggestion and
determine the scope of authorities and duties of
the President including to determine whether the
President or his proxy is prohibited from approving
any business activities with any persons who have
conflict of interests with The Company or its
subsidiaries.

Study feasibility, providing advice and suggestion
for entering into tender offer or investment in
new projects.

Approve the usage of The Company’s credit
facilities maintained with all banks or financial
institutions. To approve the opening and closure
of any bank accounts or apply for credit facilities
in any form with all banks or financial institutions
and report the same to the Audit Committee for
acknowledgement, except for the mortgage or
pledge of The Company’s properties which have
to be approved by the Board of Directors.
Evaluate the performance and determine the
remuneration of the high level executives from
the Senior Vice President and above.

Evaluate the performance of the President at
least one time a year.

Limit a number of taking position as a Director at
other companies of President and top
management. President and top management
can take position as a Director in other listed
companies and other non-listed companies less
than 3 places.

Ensure that The Company must operate under
the good corporate governance in accordance
with the announcement or related guidelines
derived from The Securities and Exchange
Commission and The Stock Exchange of Thailand.
The Board of Executive Directors must support
and ensure that Directors and Management team
will responsible for doing as a company’s Directors
in compliance with good corporate governance.
Ensure that management regularly monitors,
evaluates and reports on the Company’s
performance.



AU #315191nAN3 Anenn Uszaunisel wasna
msufiRnuduidunensunis (Successor) laefinas
fvuauuimuIANg AuaEanse wasinweisdy
pusuisuaTz ey duLagTrezen el Eunen
fuvialamiesiazduneadumield

2. ANU=NSSUNSEATDY
ANU=NSSUNISUSKHAS

ovAUs:nauNa:AUaUR

1. ﬂmzmsmmiu‘%ﬁ’mﬁu;&”ﬂawm%m’ﬁumx/w‘%a
NOANBUAMENITTUNITUIINS

2. ANENIINNITUSMISUTENBUMEY NITUNITUTENREN
ey 3 AU WALADIUTENBUAILNTINNITHIANIT WAL
nssuMIIRIdanIsEeuNITiukasUIns Wy
RERNYRH

VOUIVAIIA:6IUNIMINAVOUATUNSSUNISUSHIS

1. Amue Fdevial Wusia wleuie iene wasnagns
n1sanfiugsianiglanisiiuguavesanenssunig
U3EN wieununmiuwazeyiannd

2. MAUYUA NUMIY UNUNNTALTIUGIND UNUATTIEY $U
Uszana uaznsuimsaudug daauslaeihedans
T dulumamdnnisiiuguaiansiia

3. @ned Asddeu nsanduau aiuuleuisuas
NANSNITANTUTIAT LUINNNITUINITIANTT T4
feannsdnassndnennsenag vesussnanufismunly
Tiduldegnafivsednsninuassieaunanisnniy
nuspTIUTEYNAAIENTINANTUTIN

4. fsaunuazivun suileu Jetedu wleuienis
UImsnuuaznsaliugsialag suilnaynituuiem

5. Tiduugih dusnen wagdmunsnnantiives
NITUNITHINNT  MaoaummUA T linssunsy
Fansudeynnaiinssunisgannisueunanglivi
wihfunueysfAanmsvhsenslag  sewinssunss
Jannsnsoyanaildsuneunuefnaiifuynaad
gnadianudaudadidulddderionnatinnutauds
manavszloviludnvazdulafuuidnieidndos

6. Anwianudululd Widusne Widaausuuzlunis
Wnsmdszyanu vsensamululasenisive

7. T wneydAliaudedisuinsvieandunisiunn
wsTuSeileg ﬁuﬁy’ﬁmiawﬁﬁLﬂmLLazﬂﬂﬁzy%m6]
vieveldaudeluguuuuding  Ausuimsvideanty

NTRUNNRYY  waglis18UADAMENTTUNITATIA
aounsiu (mungisdeuiiduuslviiesssam) 1
uan15nswEAUTsUSENIUT 91U AveTeu
ABANENITUNITATIVFOULALABILA SUBLLAIINARLY
NITUNITUTEN

8. fgunalunsiiansa Useilunan1saiiuau AMvum
AMDULNLTBIUIMTIEAUgIRILA FwT s g e
ﬂsimms;:iﬂ”mms%ulﬂ

9. anflunmsuszliunanisufiRaureenssun1sEInnis
agatesta 1 ads

10. ArvuauleuIenNISAISIRILALINSSUNISTIUSENEY
YBINTTUNIHIANTUALHUIMTTEAUGE  Ieivun
TinsIuNSHANNSWAEHUSMTIEAUAY a1130An5e
mwnanssunsluvsenaanziounazuiong ol
lalgusenaangifoulalainiu 3 vsem

1. iiugualidihileuneiiuguaiansin suuums
wardetifuvemiieruiiientos Wy ddhau
AMYATIUAITANAURANNSNE LATAATANANNTNE
panavdnnsndusialseinelne Judu wieuduasy
wagHanFulnENTTINTUSENLaEHN g UTINSUL UR
wiirfkazauiuRaveunsuleuvienisiiiugua
RansTirweudem

12. Miugualthedanisiinisinay Useiduwa  uay
FreuMIALunuYeIU e EiaLe

13. f8welunisiansan dudunisidesduy Anuey
NIIUNITUSITIIUAITINT AT AULAZ AR IlY
Juulevrglunsaiiiufianisvesusom

16, fufiumsdug auuleuedldsuneununeainam
NITUNITUTEN

91$=N1SANSIFIIKLY
1. NIIUNTUTMTENTENMIASWIMLIATIRE 3 U
UDNAINATTWUAILNUIAININTZUAINTTUAITUINNS
funduniaile
(1) oy
(2) an@en
(3) vInAMaNTR YiToNaNYMEADIIUAILLINT
68 NIV YAUMIVUING W.A.2535
(@) Mszyuiievuasilieenmumsysvdayda
PIUNINTT 76 WIETWUYAUNIIUIIAA WA,
2535
(5) madmddvieen

usEn Blu-Ing 1BUSITESY loUF AoUANSABU 1A (UMBU) 155
S19vIuYs=1U 2560 I



13. Have the power to consider and perform other
affairs that the Board of Directors deems fit and
that should be used as policy for business
operations of The Company.

14. To conduct other activities according to the

policies assigned by the Board of Directors.

Term of Office
1. Each executive director shall hold office for a
term of three years. Apart from retirement by
rotation, the executive directors shall be vacated
upon:
(1) Death
(2) Resignation
(3) Disqualification or being of a forbidden
nature under Section 68 of the Public
Limited Company Act B.E. 2535 (A.D. 1992)
(4) Removal by resolution of the shareholders’
meeting in accordance with Section 76 of
the Public Limited Company Act B.E. 2535
(A.D. 1992)
(5) Removal by order of the court
2. A member of the Board of Executive Directors
who retires by rotation may be re-elected as the

Board of Directors deems fit.
The Audit Committee

Composition and Qualifications

1. The Board of Directors shall consider appointing
and/or removing the Audit Committee.

2. The Audit Committee shall consist of at least
three members all of which shall be independent

directors.

Authorities and Duties of the Audit Committee

1. Review the accuracy and sufficiency of The
Company’s financial report.

2. Review the appropriateness and efficiency of the
internal control and the internal audit system;
consider the independence of the Internal Audit
Section  including  appointment,  rotation,
termination for the head of the Internal Audit
Section, and any other works related to the

internal audit.
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3. Review The Company’s operation to comply with

the Securities and Exchange Acts, Regulations of
the Stock Exchange of Thailand, and any relevant
laws.

Consider, select, and nominate an independent
person to act as The Company’s Independent
Auditor, including remuneration recommendation
and arrange a meeting for the Audit Committee to
meet with the Independent Auditor without the
presence of executive management at least once
a year.

Attend the Audit Committee meeting with the
Auditors except the Executives at least once a
year.

Consider connected transactions, and the
transactions involving conflict of interest, to
ensure that they are in compliance with the
related laws and Regulations of the Stock
Exchange of Thailand, reasonably, to maximize
The Company’s benefits.

Prepare and disclose the “Reports of Audit
Committee” approved by the Chairman of the
Audit Committee in the annual report as follows:

(1) Comments on the accuracy, completeness,
and credibility of The Company’s financial
report.

(2) Comments on the sufficiency of The
Company’s internal control system.

(3) Comments on The Company’s business
operations in compliance with the
Securities and Exchange Commission Act,
Regulations of the Stock Exchange of
Thailand, and other laws relevant to The
Company’s business.

(4) Comments on the suitability of the
Independent Auditor.

(5) Comments of the transactions involving
conflicts of interest.

(6) The disclosure of the number of Audit
Committee meetings and the individual

meeting attendance of the Audit Committee.
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8.

(7) Comments or notices that have arisen as
the Audit Committee performed its duties
as defined in its charter.

(8) Other concerns that should be made
available to shareholders and the investors
within the scope of duties and responsibilities
assigned by the Board of Directors.

Ensure that The Company has risk management
policy and continually follow-up the efficiency of

the policy.

To undertake other assignments for the Board of
Directors, with the approval of the Audit
Committee.

Term of Office

1.

Each member of the Audit Committee shall hold
office for a term of three years. Apart from
retirement by rotation, the committee member
shall be vacated upon:
(1) Death
(2) Resignation
(3) Disqualification or being of a forbidden
nature under Section 68 of the Public
Limited Company Act, B.E. 2535 (A.D. 1992)
(4) Removal by resolution of the shareholders’
meeting in accordance with Section 76 of
the Public Limited Company Act, B.E. 2535
(A.D. 1992)
(5) Removal by order of the court
A member of the Audit Committee who retires by
rotation may be re-elected as the Board of

Directors deems fit.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Composition and Qualifications

1.

The Board of Directors shall consider appointing
and/or removing the Board of Executive Directors
and determining their remuneration.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee
shall consist of at least three directors and more
than 50% of the committee members shall be

independent directors.
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3.

Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration

Committee shall be an independent director.

Authoritiesand Duties ofthe Nominationand Remuneration

Committee

1.

Define policies, criteria and procedures for
recruiting new directors to substitute the retired
and/or  fill

appointing additional directors and propose the

directors the vacancies and/or
new or additional directors to the Board of
Directors for approval.

Recruit, select and nominate qualified persons to
the Board of Directors to further present to the
shareholders’ meeting for appointment as
directors of The Company.

Define policies, criteria and procedures for
recruiting qualified persons to substitute the
retired members of supporting committees and/
or fill the vacancies and/or appointing additional
members of the supporting committees and/or
fulfill the other Board Committees and propose
to the Board of Directors for approval.

Recruit, select and nominate qualified persons to
the Board of Directors’ meeting to consider
approving them as members of the supporting
committees.

Oversee the process to select members of the
Board of Directors and supporting committees to
ensure transparency.

Establish the policies and criteria for determining
remuneration of the Board of Directors and
different

meeting allowances, annual gratuity and other

supporting committees to include
benefits. Then, submit the said remuneration plan
to the Board of Directors for endorsement and
submission to the shareholders’ meeting for
approval.

Clarify all questions due to the annual general
meeting of shareholders about the remuneration
of the Board of Directors and the Board

Committees.
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8. Consider the best practices, regulations, and
procedures of evaluation of the Board of Directors,
and other Board Committees by evaluating the
performance in group and individual to improve
the efficiency of the Board.

9. Establish the criteria and procedures for selection
and appointment of the President and propose to
the Board of Directors for approval.

10. Select and propose the qualified person for the
President position to the Board of Directors for
approval.

11. Prepare a succession plan for the President
position.

12. Ensure that the President appoints knowledgeable,
skilled, and experienced key executives

13. Perform any other duties as assigned by the Board

of Directors.

Term of Office
1. Each the

Remuneration Committee shall hold office for a

member  of Nomination and
term of three years. Apart from retirement by
rotation, the committee members shall be
vacated upon:
(1) Death
(2) Resignation
(3) The chairman of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee is not the
independent director.
(4) Disqualification or being of a forbidden
nature under Section 68 of the Public
Limited Company Act, B.E. 2535 (A.D. 1992)
(5) Removal from The Company’s Director by
resolution of the shareholders’” meeting in
accordance with Section 76 of the Public
Limited Company Act, B.E. 2535 (A.D. 1992)
(6) Removal by order of the court
2. A member of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee who retires by rotation may be

re-elected as the Board of Directors deems fit.
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President

Authorities and Duties of the President

The authorities and duties of the President
were defined in Board of Directors meeting no. 3/2002
on May 10, 2002, which resolved that the President
shall be responsible for conducting and supervising
The Company’s business operations in accordance
with the policy approved by the Board of Directors.
Furthermore, the President shall fulfill when such
actions are required by the laws, rules and regulations
of the governing agencies to get approval from Board
of Directors” meeting and/or Shareholders’ meetings.
The President shall have a power to appoint other
person(s) as a proxy to act on his behalf to manage
and conduct company’s business. President and his
proxy have no right to approve any business activities
with any persons who have conflicts of interests with
The Company and its subsidiary.

Selection of the President

In selecting the President, the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee will initially consider
persons who have all qualifications required by the
Articles of Association of The Company, possess the
knowledge, skills, competence, and experiences
beneficial for business operations of The Company,
truly understand the Company’s business, and are
capable of managing the Company’s affairs to achieve
the objectives and goals set by the Board of Directors.
Then, a list of potential candidates will be presented

to the Board of Directors for approval.

The Performance assessment of President

The performance assessment of the President will
be taken once a year according to the regulations of The
Stock Exchange of Thailand (CEO Self-assessment) and
it can be divided into (1) Leadership (2) Strategy Plan (3)
Action comparison to the Strategy Plan (4) Financial
Plan and Financial performance (5) Relationship
between the Board (6) Relationship with outsiders (7)
Management and Relationship with Employees (8)
Succession Plan (9) Business Acknowledgement (10)

Personal trait (11) President improvement



MSAsSMINSSUNSEINNNS
TUMIAsINERNFN SN TSI SERANS - Aosy
NISIMIATIUAETMIUAAPEUWL WA S aNaNnae
TumsassmiifauasiBimnzaumssiuminssunsy
N5 warslunsasTRRAEIURASUNIUAMe TRy
Yot fanuipnueunsn vinwe  Ussaumsaiidu
Usrlevdsionisanfiuauvesusvniasitnlalugsiaves
Ustiduetned anansafiazuimsauliussginguszasd
wazimnefinaenssunsuisnimualild wasiiauesie
AzNTIINMIUT e sanoiRely

n1sUs:zIuwan1sUfuRAvIuveINsSsSuNISWIANIS
anfiun1sdnvinsuseiliuyseaniainnisaniu
NuvssnsIIMIEians egnetioetay 1 afs s
mMeUszfiuinaandnninduisuszimalneimun (W
Uszlluwanuues CEO) tngldiwtsmsuszdiudu (1) Ay
Juin (2) msvuanagns (3) msufiRenunaens (@)
NsNKLLasNauf UAn1aMstu (5) anuduiusivmne
N33UN3 (6) Anuduiusiunguen (7) Msusmsnuuay
Amdiusivyrans (8) Msduneasuvus (9) a3
AUGINAVBILTEN (10) AndNwavaduid (11) MIaL
NIIUNMILIANT
Tnefinszuaunislunisuseidiu @il
1 AMgAsTIUNITUIUITAHUNITUSELEu
UseAnSamn1sAduaureInssunIsy
ams oghatioslay 1 ads
2. @vunsuTEnasUlLasiauenan1suseiiiy
UsgAndamlunisaniiuanuenssunise
IANIARANLNTIUNTUTING
3. AMEATINNITUSMSIaUBNan1sUSTIuLaY
LuIMaNeNNsUTuUgaiuUsEanamnng
ANTUNUABAENTIUANTUTEN
ito| HANMIUsERIUNSUH TROUTeNTIUNTEINNTT
fodutoyaenziyana  lisunsadameld Tawans
Usniufasilufinsantmussnaeneuununsuiutu
Ruikouveanssunsgannseell

lavaunIsusen

iieliidulumunganeuazuuimensiiugua
Aam97 AniznssunsUElaTmuslfiianynnsuisn
wionivuaguaNTRLasunU T TiuasNsuRavey
YOUAVIYATUTN Fedl

AUAUURAVOJIAVIUNISUSEN

1. fanufiferiungmneuazngssideuremiisnui
Mfuguaiiisddos 1wy ngmneuITamaue
NOVUETIMENENNSNELAEAAAVENTITNE Wagngyie
Anedestumsiiiusiiaveaidn fiail  msdon
AN Ry vie TUSnwngne Wi
rduasuALg Anudilasananitiesiu

2. flanuieasunisiifuguaionisfia muuumg
youhonuiriiuguaiieidos
faudiiuguAsifugsiuesui
firuannsalunsdoansia

unUINKAI:AUSUEABOUVaVIAVIUNISUSEN
1. davhuasfuenansdellil
« edeunITUNITUTEN
« nisFelnUsEYuANENIIUNITUTEN 1897

N1TUTEYUANENTTUNITUTEN  UagII891U
Usga1Uv99Usen

«  wildednUszyugieniu warsneanunisuseyy
ALY

- senumsidnladelaenssunisuienvsey
UINT

2. dafiuteya (Mude 1) egnamnzan midamedeya
Hulumunguane suideu detduilieades naenau
TafinuaretsdinamuanenssUNIsMAUnannsng
wazmaravannIng (na.n) uaz eannanningue
Ussnelng (man.)

3. WAuuzilasaduayuaIuYeInNeNITUNITUTEY
Rerfunguane ngunasiuazssidevujuaniaetes
msmfuguaiansfiduazmsauilenudsdu

4. Afun15INUTEYNANENITUNITUSYNLAY ALY
NIIUNTYALREAUNYUINY  Seidey  paenlule
AnuavesdItnaunssunIsAIfunannIng waz
pAANANNING  (n.8.91.)
Usznelne (man.)

5. ATINABUTILNUNNTUTLYUAMENTTUNITUAL S84
nMsUsyyuanenIIUNSYRgeelvigndes Asudiu Lax
auysal

6. ATRARUTIENUMIUsTYIRhovulrigndes  ATUIU
wazanysel weuddunisidamesiordevfumud

LAY AANAVENNSWELIA

ngvane seldey TevsAuiieddesninunliodng
LA39ATA
7. Weuns ouilAvng aNTAUYAYEIUTEN Aungviing

usEn Blu-Ing 1BUSITESY loUF AoUANSABU 1A (UMBU) 161
$19vIuYs=1U 2560 I



The performance assessment procedures are
as follows;

1. The Board of Executive Directors evaluates the
performance of President at least once a year.

2. Corporate Secretary summarizes and reports the
result to the Board of Executive Directors.

3. The Board of Executive Directors reports the result
of the performance assessment of President to
the Board of Directors and advise best practices
to improve the performance.

The result of the performance assessment of
the President is considered as confidential information
and cannot be disclosed. The result of the President
performance assessment will be reviewed in annual

compensation.

Corporate Secretary

According to the regulations and good

corporate governance, the Board of Directors
appointed Corporate Secretary and determined the
qualifications and duties of Corporate Secretary as

follows;

Corporate Secretary Qualifications

1. Expert in laws and other related regulations for
example Public Company Limited Act, the
Securities and Exchange Act, and other laws
related to the business operation. Corporate
Secretary shall find various opinions from another
expertise or legal advisors to support his/her
performance as a Corporate Secretary.

2. Understanding the good corporate governance in
compliance with other related companies.

3. Basically having knowledge and understanding
The Company’s business.

4. Good communication skills.

Corporate Secretary’s Roles and Responsibilities
1. Preparing and keeping the following documents:
« Avregistration of directors;
« A notice calling director’s
the Board of

Directors and the annual report of The

meetings,

minutes of meeting for

Company;
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« Anotice calling shareholder’s meeting and
the minutes of shareholders’ meetings;
» Acquisition/Disposition Form reported by
Directors or Executives
2. Filing document (as stated in item 1) properly,
disseminate useful information in accordance
with laws, regulations, and other related guidelines
announced by The Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC) and The Stock Exchange of
Thailand (SET).
3. Giving suggestions and supporting the Board of
that

regulations, and guidelines of good corporate

Directors’  activities related to laws,

governance and sustainability development
issues.

4. Arrange the Board of Directors meetings and other
Board Committees meetings in compliance with
the gcuidelines and laws as announced by The
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and
The Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET).

5. Verify the Board of Directors’ minutes of meetings
and other Board Committees’ minutes of meetings
to be accurate and complete.

6. Verify the minutes of annual general meeting of
shareholders to be accurate and complete in
order to disseminate to shareholders in
accordance with laws and regulations.

7. Approve and disseminate The Company’s news in
compliance with laws and regulations defined by
SET and ensure that The Company has

disseminated news as stated in good corporate

governance.
the

disposition of Directors and Executives.

8. Follow-up changeable of acquisition/

3. Oversight of Performance of Subsidiaries and
Associated Companies

In supervising its subsidiary, HTR Corporation
Limited, in which The Company holds 80.90% of its
shares, The Company has exercised the rights to
nominate and appoint the directors since 2001. The
that
appointment must be approved by the Board of

Company requires such nomination and
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Directors. Any persons appointed as directors in the
subsidiaries or associated companies are obliged to
carry out any acts that are in the best interest of such
subsidiaries or associated companies. The Company
also required the appointed persons to obtain
approval of the Board of Directors before voting on
any resolutions or important transactions that should
require approval of the Board of Directors if The
Company has to perform such transactions on its
own. In this regard, having directors as The Company’s
representatives in the subsidiaries or associated
companies is in proportion to the shares held by The
Company.

Furthermore, in case of a subsidiary, The
Company has set up a requirement for the person
appointed by The Company to ensure that such
subsidiary has the regulations regarding connected
transactions, acquisition or disposal of assets, or
execution of other important transactions in a
complete and accurate manner by applying the same
criteria adopted by The Company. The person
appointed by The Company shall also make sure that
the subsidiary’s data and records are kept in a manner
that can be verified and gathered by The Company
for timely preparation of consolidated financial

position statements.

4. Qversight of Internal Information

Internal Information Usage Policy

The Company has developed written measures
to prevent its directors, executives and employees
from using internal information for their personal
benefits. This is to prevent potential conflicts of
interest and disclosure or misuse of inside information.
Matters on the internal information usage are
contained in the procedures and code of conduct of
the directors, management and employees as well as
Work Regulations of the employees.

With

information of The Company, the term “internal

regard to regulations on internal

information” means information on financial matters,

investment, marketing, operations, and other
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information related to The Company in accordance
with the Articles of Associations of The Company or
laws. Protection of the internal information is to
protect shareholders’ rights and The Company’s
assets as well as interests of The Company. If the
staff violate this

regulation on internal information, they shall be

management, employees or

subject to penalty as stipulated in the Work Regulations

and laws. Procedures regarding internal information
are as follows:

1. The Company shall inform the Board of Directors
and management as well as their spouses and
minor children on their obligation and the auditor
to provide reports on their holding of The
Company’s securities in accordance with the

(SEC)

regulations: Preparation and disclosure of reports

Securities and Exchange Commission
on securities holding of directors, executives and
auditor of The Company which shall be strictly
complied with. Moreover, the boards of directors
and management are required to notice The
Company secretary at least 1 day before their
trading of The Company’s securities. The Company
secretary is to submit a summary report on the
holding and trading of The Company’s securities
of the board of directors, management, and the
auditor to the board of directors meeting quarterly
for acknowledgement.

2. Limit the number of persons who are aware of
the financial information to only related
executives.

3. The executives or employees who have
knowledge of internal information shall not be
allowed to disclose such information to the third
person or unrelated individuals nor shall they sell
securities of The Company within one month
prior to dissemination of financial position
statements to the public.

4. The Company has a regulation on inflicting
punishment against any executives and/or

employees bringing forth internal information for



dissemination for use for their personal interests.
5. The

technology system to prevent access to The

Company has adopted information
Company’s information and stipulated the rights
of access to The Company’s information in various
with  the

and/or

levels suitably in  accordance

responsibilities  of each executive
employee. The Company had an information
technology policy that has been used since 2006.
It was created to clearly define rules for safe use
of computers and information technology of The
Company, such as prevention of problems that
may arise as a result of incorrect use of information
information,

system network, protection of

punishment, and application.

Risk Management Policy

The Company is committed to achieve the
goals, objectives, and business and investment plans.
The Company realized that the importance of the
changing in business environment and the risk of
uncertainty that may cause the impact on business.
To comply with good corporate governance, The
Company provides the risk management policy and
the risk management practical guideline; which
consists of analysis, assessment, management, and
monitoring, in order to control risk in appropriate
level (risk appetite), prevent loss, and minimize impact
on business opportunities. All management and
employees are provided to have a good knowledge
and understanding in the risk management policy and
to be involved in the risk management process.
Therefore, The Company can reach the goals and
objectives with the good corporate governance, and

add the sustainable value for the organization.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

nis

noUAUNIYTU

1. Summary of Opinions of the Board of Directors and the

Audit Committee
At the 7/2017 Meeting of the Audit Committee

held on December 13, 2017, an annual evaluation of

adequacy of the internal control system was performed

in accordance with the evaluation form published by

the Securities and Exchange Commission. The evaluation

results are summarized in five components as follows:

1. Control Environment

1.1

1.2

The Company has defined the Code of
Conduct, which require its management and
employees to perform their duties in good
faith and refrain from seeking personal gains
or carrying out any actions that may result in
conflicts of interest with business, trade
partner, or stakeholder of The Company.
Any person violating such requirement shall
be subject to punishment.

The Company has constantly engaged in
organizational restructuring by dividing into
clear departments/ sections/ offices to
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1.3

1.4

support construction units located in
Thailand and other countries and enable
them to work more efficiently.

The Company has developed policies,
notifications and work procedures in writing
to cover all kinds of transactions, especially
financial transactions, procurement of
goods and services, and management of
works. Furthermore, a manual on each
area of work has been developed,
reviewed, and updated on a regular basis
to achieve maximum benefits and be used
as a tool and guideline to perform duties
and prevent corruption.

The Board of Directors and the Board of
Executive Directors have supervised and
determined the goals and business plans of
The Company as well as acknowledged
action plans, annual budget, and operational
goals of each department/section, which

have been prepared in writing.
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1.5 The Board of Directors and the Board of

Executive Directors have reviewed The
Company’s goals and business plans as
well as the annual budget, policies,
operational goals of each department/
section and found that The Company’s
employees have enough knowledge and
competency required to achieve such
goals. The Boards have analyzed the
incentives or remuneration provided to
the employees and found that they are
reasonable and suitable in accordance

with the present economic situation.

2. Risk Assessment

2.1 The Company has analyzed events and

factors resulting in risks by evaluating the
opportunity for therisks. Then, The Company
eliminates risks on a case by case basis
before reporting to the Audit Committee for

utmost benefit of The Company.

2.2 The Company has monitored events and

amended any acts that may cause risks,
especially by making amendments in
accordance with recommendations given in
various audit reports. Moreover, measures
to prevent risks are developed and taken to
minimize damages to The Company.

2.3 The Company has organized a management

meeting to give a report on progress,
problems, obstacles and corrective actions
carried out on a monthly basis as well as
results of the corrective actions in accordance
with different audit reports within designated
period of time to eliminate/reduce risks and
enable The Company to achieve the

milestones established.

3. Control Activities
3.1 The Company has clearly determined the

scope of authority and duties of the
management as well as maximum amounts

of money that each level of management
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3.2

33

can approve in writing.

Duties of personnel of The Company have

been clearly segregated as follows:

« A duty to approve

« A duty to record accounting items
and other information

« A duty to safeguard and clearly
separate assets for reciprocal audits
under the internal control principle

The Company has established procedures for

approving related or connected transactions.

The conflict of interest policy An audit unit is

assigned to inspect the related or connected

transactions and report to the Audit

Committee on a regular basis.

3.4 The Company does not allow any person

35

4.1

4.2

who might gains benefits to approve a
transaction that may give rise to a conflict
of interest.

In making a decision to execute any
transactions, The Company usually focuses
on long-term benefit. In case of any
transactions that may give rise to a conflict
of interest, it is necessary to submit such
transactions to the Board of Directors and
the Audit Committee for approval or

endorsement.

. Information and Communication

The Company has assigned The Company

Secretary to  prepare  documents,
information and details regarding important
meeting agendas for the Board of Directors
for making a decision in advance. If
additional information is subsequently
available, The Company will send such
additional information to the Board of
Directors prior to the meeting date.

The Company has sent a notice of Board
of Directors’ meeting together with
supporting documents for the meeting to
all directors at least 7 days prior to the

scheduled meeting date in order for the
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4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6
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directors to be clearly informed of the
matters to be discussed at the meeting.
The Company has prepared minutes of all
Board of Directors’ meetings by recording
details that are essence of the meetings.
During each meeting, there is an agenda to
approve the minutes of the previous
meeting to give the Board of Directors’ an
opportunity to make amendments or
additions to the minutes of meeting freely.
The Company stores its accounting
documents and reports systematically by
their categories. If the office space is not
appropriate, The Company will keep it in
standard boxes and assign the Bangpakong
Center. The Company has never been
notified by any auditors of any defects on
this matter.

The Company has adopted accounting
the

Accounting Standards and / or financial

policies based on International
reporting standards with the most recent
The

have been

accounting  policies. accounting
audited
approved by certified public accountants
of EY Office Limited.

The Company gives precedence to

documents and

information technology and communications
system by providing support and encouraging
constant system improvement in order to
ensure efficient joint operations of the Head
Office and construction sites. ERP (Enterprise
Resource Planning) has been brought to
facilitate the operations of accounting and
finance division, procurement and the
determination of security policy of IT system
in order to ensure proper usage of IT system,
as well as to prevent problems that might
affect or cause damages to the operations,
either by internal or external factors. The
aforementioned practices will enable the
achieve the

Company to objectives.

ng & Construction Public Company Limited

Additionally, risks have been evaluated. IT risk
management and prevention have been
determined, basing on international standards
of IT safety, IT Governance and the Company’s

good corporate governance practices.

5. Monitoring Activities

5.1

52

53

5.4

The Company has determined and
submitted the annual goals and business
plans to the Board of Directors for
consideration. A report on progress and
comparisons between operational results
and the goals is given to the Board of
Directors on a regular basis.

The Company requires each department/
section/office to monitor the performance
on a daily, weekly and monthly basis by
using the key performance indicators (KPI)
and present the progress at the management
and employees

meeting meeting for

acknowledgement and correction  of

problems and obstacles in a timely manner

to accomplish the established goals in the
business plans.

The Company has the Internal Audit

Section to constantly provide reasonable

assurance of internal control that:

« Operations of all units are efficient,
cost-effective, and capable of meeting
the objectives.

e Financial reports are reliable and
prepared on a timely manner.

« Operations are in compliance with
laws, notifications, and regulations of
The Company.

e Access to assets, including databases in
the

permitted by the management and/or

information  system, must be
authorized persons. Furthermore, the
Internal Audit Section will provide
advices and recommendations on
control self-assessment to related units.

The Company requires that the Internal
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5.6

5.7

Audit Section is an independent unit
reporting directly to the Audit Committee.
The
operate independently in accordance with

Internal Audit Section is able to
the international audit standards and is
required to report the auditing results to
the Audit Committee, President, and the
audited units.

When a material defect is detected and/or
theauditreportindicatesrecommendations
and/or areas of improvements, the audited
unit shall carry out corrective actions and
prepare and submit a report on results of
such corrective actions to the Internal
Audit Section within one month from the
date of receipt of the audit report.

The Company must report the progress on
corrective activities carried out to the
Board of Directors/ the Audit Committee.
The Internal Audit Section will follow up
the corrective actions and collect data on
such corrective actions from the audited
unit to prepare a report regarding the
follow-up of the corrective actions and
submit the same to the Audit Committee
and the President to further present to the
Board of Directors for approval.

The
responsible for formulating plans and

Management  of Company is

procedures, managing The Company’s
affairs in accordance with the policies
established by The Company, monitoring
the operations of different departments/
sections, and holding the management
committee meeting at least once or twice
a month with secretary of the management
committee  recording and  preparing
minutes of meetings. The management
shall

arising, such as corruption, illegal acts, and

record problems and obstacles

'| 72 Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
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unusual practices, which may affect The
Company’s reputation and financial position.
All of the reports of the management
committee shall be presented to the
management committee meeting for
acknowledgement. Furthermore, there is
the Internal Audit Section responsible for
reporting unusual circumstances (Red Flag)
directly to the Audit Committee/Board of
Directors.

In addition, the external auditor, E Y Co., Ltd.,
has attended the meetings. The Audit Committee has
evaluated sufficiency of the above five components
of the internal control and found that The Company
has sufficient and appropriate internal control.

2. Opinions of the Audit Committee

Based on the evaluation of internal control
system, the Audit Committee believes that The
Company has sufficient and appropriate internal
control. Like the external auditor. No weaknesses in
internal control. Except for the estimation and revision
of construction project cost estimates, as well as
reviewing the completeness of actual cost accounting

records.

3. Internal Audit Manager is an employee of The Company.

At the 1/2542 Audit Committee Meeting held
on 23 June 1999, Mr. Chirapat Srivardhana was
appointed as the Internal Audit Section Manager since
he had twenty years of experiences in performing the
audits of related businesses, attended in internal
audit training courses such as Control Self-Assessment
Facilitation Techniques for Auditors, IIA’S Endorsed
Internal Auditing Program (EIAP-1), and Corporate
Governance for Executives 3/2015. He understood all
The Company’s activities and operations. Therefore, it
was agreed that he was appropriate to serve as the
Chief Internal Auditor.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS 2017

SIUNIUIOVATUNSSUNISUSKHIS Us:9U 2560

The Board of Executive Directors of Sino-

Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company
Limited consists of 4 Executive Directors as followed
accordingly;
1. Mr. Vallop Rungkijvorasathien
Chairman of the Board of Executive Directors,
Director and Member of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee
2. Mr. Pakpoom Srichamni
Executive Director, Director and President and
Chairman of the Management Commitee
3. Mr. Woraphant Chontong
Executive Director and Director
4. Mrs. Anilrat Nitisaroj
Executive Director and Director

In 2017, the Board of Executive Directors has
performed according to the duties and responsibilities
commissioned by the Board of Directors to review
policy,
including financial and investment plan, operating

business aspects, and business strategy
plan, and other management plan, to ensure that the

Company’s operation is efficient and in compliance
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with law, and to ensure that the Company’s operation
complied with good corporate governance, and to
comply with the Notification of the Stock Exchange
of Thailand including the best practices defined by
the Stock Exchange of Thailand as well. The Board of
Executive Directors convened 17 meetings, of which

main activities can be summarized as followed;

1. Define policy, business aspects, and business strategy

The Board of Executive Directors under the
supervision of the Chairman of the Board of Executive
Directors gave the policy to ensure that the Company
should be carefully operated for the changes through
2017. The Company assures that we will continually
perform business with fair and equal in compliance
with moral principle basis.

2. Review business plan

The Board of Executive Directors supervised
and reviewed business plan, financial and investment
plan, and management plan that proposed by the
Management to ensure that all plans are suitable for
the business and compliance to the good corporate

governance as well.
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3. Monitor business policy and business strategy

The Board of Executive Directors monitored
and reviewed the operations according to policy,
business strategy, and other management factors
as planned as usual and in the past year, the Board
of Executive Directors mainly concentrated on
company’s active projects in order to ensure that the
Company’s operation will perform efficiently and it
can be reported to the Board of Directors adequately

and accurately as well.

4. Provide suggestions and recommendations

The Board of Executive Directors recommended,
suggested, and assigned the scope of business
operations to the President including supervised and
reviewed financial and investment plan and budget
for Senior Executive Vice President in Financial and
Administrative Division along with other related
transaction that will be bind to the Company. In
addition, the Board of Executive Directors provided
suggestions for entering into any tender offer or

investment in new projects as well.

5. Supervise financial plan and evaluate business operations

The Board of Executive Directors supervised and
reviewed financial and investment plan including the
approval of both opening and closing bank’s account
with the financial institutions and banks, then the
transactions will be reported to the Audit Committee
for acknowledgement, without any mortgage or
pledge of the Company’s properties in the previous
year. In addition, the Board of Executive Directors
evaluated the performances of business operations to
determine remuneration for the Management in both

Senior Executive Vice President levels and upper.



The Board of Executive Directors has performed
its duties fully in accordance with its charters approved
by the Board of Directors and has its opinion that
The Company’s performance has implemented its
good corporate governance practice basis towards
its business operations, financial, marketing and
other related management factors with efficiency in
accordance with its policy and business strategy as
planned. The Company has performed its business
in compliance with the code of conduct and rules,
regulations, and related laws, thus, in conformity with
the Notification of the Office of the Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC) and the Stock Exchange
of Thailand (SET).

£ v,

Mr. Vallop Rungkijvorasathien
Chairman of the Board of Executive Directors
13 December 2017
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE 2017
SIUNIUIOVALUNSSUNISASIVADU US:9U 2560

The Audit Committee of Sino-Thai Engineering to provide adequate and suitable internal control in

& Construction Public Co., Ltd., consists of 3 compliance with the law, to ensure Company’s

Independent Directors as the following; operation complied with the principle of good corporate

1. Mr. Chamni Janchai governance, and to comply with the Notification of the
Chairman of the Audit Committee and Stock Exchange of Thailand on Qualifications and Rules
Independent Director and Responsibilities of the Audit Committee and Best

2. Police General Jate Mongkolhutthi Practice Guidelines for the Audit Committee issued by
Member of the Audit Committee, the Listed Companies Division of the Stock Exchange of
Independent Director and Thailand; provided that the Audit Committee has
Chairman of the Nomination and convened 7 meetings, of which main activities can be
Remuneration Committee summarized, as follows:

3. Mr. Suchai Poopichayapongs

' _ 1. Review of the Quarterly Financial Statements and the

Member of the Audit Committee, , )
. Annual Financial Statement

Independent Director and ) ) )

o The Audit Committee has reviewed the
Member of the Nomination and ) )

) ) Quarterly Financial Statements and the Annual

Remuneration Committee

Financial Statements 2017; and has inquired and

) ] received the clear explanation from the management
In 2017, the Audit Committee has performed

) ) e and the Independent Auditor relating to the accuracy
according to the duties and responsibilities )
| ) ) and the completeness of the financial statements,
commissioned by the Board of Directors to review The ) ) )
and the adequacy of information disclosure. Therefore,

Company’s financial reports for accuracy and reliability,

'| 78 Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
B Annual Report 2017
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the Audit Committee has agreed that the aforesaid
financial statements have reasonable correctness in
their essential contents in accordance with the
generally accepted accounting principles; and the
information disclosure in those financial statements is

punctually, correctly and completely.

2. Review of the Internal Control System
The Audit Committee has

internal control in cooperation with the Independent

reviewed the

Auditor on a regular basis and has considered all
reports of internal audit according to the approved
work plans, covering the significant work systems of
The Company, including the information security
management system. The Audit Committee has
agreed that The Company has its adequate and
suitable internal control and has its improvements in
accordance with the changing business activities,
therefore, the operations of The Company and its
subsidiaries shall achieve the prescribed objectives as
stated in the COSO framework. Moreover, the Audit
Committee has also urged the management to
improve the internal control system for continuous

effectiveness.

3. Monitoring of the Internal Audit

The Audit Committee has considered the work
plans, scope of work, independence, manpower, and
budgets of the Internal Audit Department to be proper
and in conformity with the professional standard of
internal audit practices of the Institute of Internal
Auditors of Thailand (IIAT), the Information Systems
Audit and Control Association (ISACA) in Bangkok; and
the internal audit guidelines of the Stock Exchange of
Thailand (SET). The Audit Committee has agreed that
The Company’s internal audit has been carried out
continuously on a timely and effective basis. Moreover,
the Audit Committee has realized the significance of
the internal audit and has therefore given its regular
support to the internal audit both in terms of personnel
development and euidelines of audit to be in
accordance with the prescribed standard.

'I 80 Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
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4. Compliance with the Law and the Government
Regulations

The Audit Committee has

compliance with Rules and Regulations of the

reviewed the

Securities and Exchange Commission, regulations of
the Stock Exchange of Thailand, the law relating to
The Company’s business operations; and has agreed
that there is no significant issue relating to non-
compliance with the law, regulations, and other

related laws.

5. Risk Management Review

The Company has utilized the internal audit
system, the recommendations of the internal audit
report, the work procedures, and the prescribed
regulations to supervise its business operations in
order to manage risks associated with the internal
operations of The Company. The Audit Committee
has agreed that The Company has effective and
efficient risk management, which will be developed

to its enterprise risk management.

6. Review and Comments on Related Transactions
or those with Potential Conflict of Interest
The Audit Committee has given its similar
comments to those of the Independent Auditor that,
according to the Regulations of the Stock Exchange of
Thailand and the Securities and Exchange Commission,
no significant related transactions and/or those with

potential conflict of interest was found.

7. Self Performance Appraisal

To comply with the best practices guidelines for
the Audit Committee, the Audit Committee should
conduct the self-performance appraisal annually. In
2015, the self-performance appraisal result of the
Audit Committee can be summarized that the Audit
Committee has performed its duties fully according to
its Charter and complied with the best practice
guidelines for the Audit Committee, which will result
in effective implementation of the rules of good

corporate governance.
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8. Selection, Nomination, and Remuneration of the
Independent Auditor

The selection, nomination, and remuneration
of the Independent Auditor of 2017 shall be
proposed for the Board of Directors’ approval in the
Annual General Meeting (AGM) 2017, whereas, the
Audit Committee has considered work performance,
of the
remuneration, which shall not be contrary to the
Notification of the Office of the Securities and

Exchange Commission and the Stock Exchange of

independence, and appropriateness

Thailand governing the circulation of auditors.
Therefore, it is deemed expedient to appoint Mr.
the certified public

accountant no.3930; or Miss Thippawan Nananuwat,

Supphachai  Panyawatthano,
the certified public accountant no.3459; or Miss
Siraporn Ouaanunkun, the certified public accountant
no.3844 of EY Office Limited
Independent Auditor of 2017, Company’s auditing fee
in 2017 is 2,050,000 Baht

as The Company’s

9. Audit Committee and Independent Auditor Meeting
The Company arranged Audit Committee Meeting
with the Independent Auditor totaling 1 time to review
and discuss the appropriateness of the reserves. The
accounting policies and basis of international accounting
standards. By to ask questions and get clarification from
the auditor. The auditor suggested the company. The
preparation of cost estimates for construction projects.
The updated cost estimate and construction projects,
including the completion of the review of the accounting
for the construction costs actually incurred. The
accounting policies and the provision of various types.

Accurate and appropriate According to international
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accounting standards. And / or financial reporting

standards already.

10. Reporting of the Resolution of the Board of Directors

Minutes of the Audit Committee’s meetings
and the internal audit appraisal result shall always be
reported to the Board of Directors, thus, in accordance
with the guidelines of best practices of the Audit
Committee.

The aforesaid best practices of the Audit
Committee presented a notification and a suggestion
of financial, internal audit, risk management, company
performance, and safety, health and environment at
job sites, in case the Management can perform and
follow up all those suggestions as well. Internal Audit
has to follow and correct things to be developed and
then report it to the Board of Directors every quarter.
the Audit Committee has
performed its duties fully in accordance with its

N summary,

Charters approved by the Board of Directors. The
Audit Committee has given the comments that The
Company has implemented its good corporate
governance practice, prepared its financial statements
in accordance with the generally-accepted accounting
principles, disclosed the correct, complete, and
adequate information in the financial report, provided
its appropriate internal control, adhered to the
business ethics, and complied with the rules,
regulations, and related laws, thus, in conformity with
the Notification of the Office of the Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC) and the Stock Exchange

of Thailand (SET).

Mr. Chamni Janchai,
Chairman of the Audit Committee
February 2018
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REPORT OF THE NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 2017

s1oueanisUfiavIuavAnU:NSSUNISassmllaznruaAaauinu Us:sd 2560

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee
of Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public
Company Limited consists of 2 Independent Directors
and 1 Executive Director as follows:

1. Police General Jate Mongkolhutthi
Chairman of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee,
Independent Director and
Member of the Audit Committee

. Suchai Poopichayapongs
Member of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee,
Director and Member of the Audit Committee

3. Mr. Vallop Rungkijvorasathien

Member of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and

Chairman of the Board of Executive Directors

In 2017, the Nomination and Remuneration

Committee had conducted it’s duties and
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responsibilities as assigned by the Board of Directors -

setting policies and criteria in proposing qualified
persons to assumed appropriate posts, as well as
defining policies and criteria in setting appropriate
remuneration for the Board of Directors and other
posts as assigned by the Board of Directors. Such that
the NCR exercised the nomination and remuneration
with high efficiency and transparency, adhering to
good corporate governance prescribed by the Stock
Exchange of Thailand. The NRC had convened 3
meetings, the important substance had been reported
to the Board of Directors as summarized below:

1. Defining policy, criteria and procedures for recruiting

The NRC, under the supervision of the Chairman,
had defined policies, criteria and procedures in
nominating qualified person and remuneration of
Board of Directors, Board members. Such policies,
criteria and guidelines comprised term in office,
qualification, responsibilities and duties as approved
by the Board of Directors.
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2. Recruiting and proposing qualified person to be a
new director

The NRC had recruited and proposed qualified
candidates to be new director-by tabling to the Board
of Directors and forward to the annual general meeting
of shareholders for further consideration. In recruiting
candidate to be member of the Board of Directors, or
the NRC had adhered to

prescribed policies, criteria and procedures. The NRC

related committees,

had also taken into consideration of the candidates -
qualification, knowledge, experience and past records.
The NRC had closely monitored the recruitment

process to ensure transparency.

3. Defining policy and criteria for remuneration

The NRC, under the supervision of the Chairman,
had defined policies and criteria for the remuneration,
meeting allowances, annual fees, and other benefits
of the Board of Directors by comparing with related
business in the same industry with similar size. After
approval of the Board of Directors, the remuneration
plan was proposed to the annual general meeting of

shareholders for consideration.

4. Providing suggestions and recommendations

The NRC had, providing suggestions, recommendations
and, clarified to the annual general meeting regarding the
remuneration of the Board of Directors and related
Committees. The NRC had also given opinion on recruiting

qualified candidates to assume new director(s).
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5. Evaluating the performance of Board of Directors and
Board Committees
The NRC had laid down measures, criteria,
procedures to assess the performance of the Board of
Directors and related committees - whole and
The NRC had forwarded to the Board of

Directors-the performance summary reports with

individual.

recommendations for performance enhancement.
The NRC is certain that it had fully executed
duties and responsibilities assiened by the Board of
Directors. The NRC ensured that the Board of Directors
and related committees were well qualified, high
efficiency- as prescribed in the entity’s policies and
strategy. In exercising its duties, the Board of Directors
adhered to business ethics, in supportive of good
and observed relevant

governance reculatory

requirements notification of the Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC) and the Stock Exchange

of Thailand (SET).

Police General Jate Mongkolhutthi

Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee

10 November 2017
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
N1s3IAS1AIA:AdSUIYZaVAIgIaNS

T T T e

1. Management Discussion and Analysis on financial + MRT Orange Line (East Section) Project
status and operating results contract 1, 2, 5

Upon reading the Management Discussion and +  Motorway (Bang Pa - in - Saraburi -
Analysis, investors ought to study supporting Nakornrachasrima) Contract 1,17,18
document, namely, past and adjusted consolidated «  New Office Building for Ministry of Finance
financial position statements and operating figures in «  MRT Pink Line Project
brief, in conjunction with notes to financial position +  MRT Yellow Line Project
statements and the information presented in this « Manhole and Underground Duct Bank with
document. the MRT Pink Line Project

«  Manhole and Underground Duct Bank with
the MRT Yellow Line Project

+ Double Track Project (Nakornprathom-

1.1 Performance Overview
During 2017, there were many new construction

projects open for bidding, especially the public )
i ) ] Huahin) contract 2
infrastructure projects the Company engaged in the ' o

o ) ] + Double Track Project (Prachuapkirikhan-
bidding process regularly for an increasing order
backlog. At the end of 2017, the total value of backlog

order was Baht 103,985 million compared to the year 1.2 Construction Business and Economic Overview

Chumporn) contract 2

of 2016, the total value of backlog order was Baht Thailand economy in 2017 expanded well with
40,726 million. the main factor being the growth of Thai exports and

The Company executed many construction foreign tourist arrivals in Thailand also increased.
contracts, namely: These was supported by increasing of the public

sector investment, especially from large scale
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infrastructure and Transportation projects. Private
consumption has not recovered. Consumers are
cautious of spending due to a high level of household
debts.

Private investment gradually improve following
economic improvement and major government
inestment projects.

The overall situation of construction sector in
2017 continued to grow, although some of the public
sector’s investment projects were delayed during the
first half of the year so there were not many projects
to bid. However, the second half of the year, the
government pushed many more mega construction
projects preparing to bid. As for the private sector, the
construction investment remained stable. Private
Investors are also concerned about the economic
recovery. Furthermore investors are still waiting for
development of public sector’s investment projects
of course, These will affect the confidence and

investment decisions of private sector.

1.3 Industry Trends and Competitive Conditions
in the Future

According to the Transport Infrastructure Action
Plan, B.E. 2560 (A.D. 2017), involving 36 projects of
which the investment value totals at Baht 800,000
million, it is set to commence in 2017 and might
encounter some obstacles or difficulties. For example,
the improvement of procurement procedure (TOR)
and budgetary price. Therefore, certain construction
procurement plans might require some amendment
and cause delay. Nevertheless, it is expected that the
proposed projects will further continue. Meanwhile,
there are new government projects set for bidding

which are:

The Mass Rapid Transit

+  MRT Purple Line -South (Taopoon - Ratburana)
Baht 131,004 million

«  MRT Blue Line (Bangkhae - Phutthamonthon 4)
Baht 21,120 million

»  MRT Orange Line (Talingchan -Cultural center)
Baht 85,289 million
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+  SRT Red Line (Talingchan -Sirirat — Salaya)
Baht 19,042 million
«  SRT Red Line (Rangsit-Thammasat)
Baht 7,597 million
+  Airport Rail Link (Phayathai - Bangsue - Donmuang.)
Baht 31,139 million
«  MRT Green Line (Samutprakan-Bangpoo)
Baht 9,530 million
+  MRT Green Line (Khukhot — Lamlukka)
Baht 9,236 million

The Double Track

+  Double Track (Paknampho — Denchai)
Baht 56,057 million

+  Double Track (Chira-Ubonratchathani)
Baht 35,836 million

+  Double Track (Khonkaen-Nongkhai)
Baht 26,058 million

+  Double Track (Chumphon-Suratthani)
Baht 23,379 million

+  Double Track (Suratthani — Songkhla)
Baht 51,819 million

+  Double Track (Hatyai — Padangbesar)
Baht 7,940 million

«  Double Track (Denchai — Chiangmai)
Baht 59,917 million

+  Double Track (Denchai — Chiangkhong)
Baht 76,980 million

+  Double Track (Khonkaen — Nakhonphanom)
Baht 60,353 million

1.4 Policy and Strategy of the Company

o The Company’s policy in 2017

“... When there is opportunity and work to do,
should be willing to do without any term or condition
set forth as barricades, People who work whether
take anything will always do. If there is more care,
diligence and honesty. It will help to achieve success

in the higher work ...”
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o The Company’s strategies in enhancing growth and profitability by
«  Focus on core business — construction business
«  On time delivery with high quality works and safety standards to our customers
« Cost leadership
«  Maintain financial strength
« Maintain excellent operation
«  Human capital development continuously

1.5 The Company Business Line

Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited has mainly operated construction
business with the revenue from construction of the Company and its subsidiary companies in 2017 amounting
to Baht 20,015 million (or 94.6% of the total revenue) compared to the year of 2016, the revenue from
construction was Baht 17,896 million (or 96.1% of the total revenue) which increased Baht 2,120 million, or
11.8% due to the increasing of construction projects.

In proportion of the revenue from construction categorized by public sectors and private sectors of the
Company and its subsidiary companies in 2017 was 60% : 40%, changed from the year of 2016 as presented
53% : 47%. In 2017, the Company and its subsidiary companies had the revenue from construction from the
following significant projects: MRT Blue Line contract 4, MRT Green Line contract 3 ,4, Double Track
(Chachoengsao - Khlongsipkao - Kaengkhoi contract 1, The Intersection of Highway No.9 and 345, Motorway
(Bangpa -in-Saraburi-Nakornrachasrima) contract 1,17,18, MRT Orange Line contract 1,2,5, Supreme Court
Building, The New National Parliament House and New Office Building of the Bureau of the Budget

The private construction projects that the Company had recognized its revenue from construction in
2017 were Phoenix Medical Center, Bangkok Hospital and 12 Small Power Plant Projects

Revenue Structure from the Construction Classified by Customer Type (Unit: Baht million)
Public Sector (Including state enterprises) 11,932 60 A 9,483 53 2,449
Private Sector 8,083 8,412 -329

Revenue Structure from the Construction Classified by Work Type (Unit: Baht million)
Infrastructure 9463 47 385 2 5,568
Building 4,026 20 8,641 48 -4,615
Energy 6,169 31 5,182 29 987
Industry 0 0 154 1 -154

Environment

In terms of Infrastructure projects, there was Baht 9,463 million, or 47% of the revenue from construction
and the revenue came from mega projects derived by the public sectors, for example, MRT Blue Line contract
4, MRT Green Line contract 3,4, Double Track (Chachoengsao - Khlongsipkao - Kaengkhoi) contract 1, The
Intersection of Highway No.9 and 345, Motorway (Bangpa —in-Saraburi-Nakornrachasrima) contract 1,17,18 and
MRT Orange Line contract 1,2,5

Q2 Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
T Annual Report 2017
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In terms of building projects, there was Baht
4,026 million, or 20% as an income with the significant
projects such as Supreme Court Building, The New
National Parliament House and New Office Building of
the Bureau of the Budget.

In terms of energy projects, there was Baht 6,169
million, or 31% as an income with the significant

projects such as 12 Small Power Plant Project.

In terms of environment projects, there was Baht
357 million, or 2% as an income with the significant

project such as Nong-Born to the Chao Praya River.

2. The Company Performance and Profitability

The detail of management discussion and
analysis for 2017 and the profitability of the Company
and its subsidiary companies as the followings;

Revenue:

The total revenue of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the year 2017 was Baht 21,159 million,
increasing by Baht 2,535 million or 13.6% compared
to the year 2016. The increased revenue of the
Company came from bidding new projects in
connection with the expansion of economy and
infrastructure and

government’s investment in

transportations. The major revenue were from
construction revenue at Baht 20,015 million; increasing
by Baht 2,120 million or 11.8%, gain from fair value
adjustment of investment properties was Baht 173
million, unrealized gain on valuation of current
investments was Baht 800 million, interest income
was Baht 44 million and dividend income was Baht

21 million.

Expenses:

In 2017, the Company and its subsidiaries had
overall expenses at Baht 21,965 million which
increased from the year of 2016 totaling Baht 5,062
million or increasing 30.0%. This resulted from increase
in cost of construction since the Company recorded

the provision for loss of construction project. For the

'I Q4 Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
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current circumstances, whereby prices of construction
materials and wages have risen significantly, and
because construction project has been delayed due
to problems with delivery of construction sites
the which

uncontrollable external factors, the Company has

belonging to project owner, are
had to perform a detailed review of its project cost.
As a result of the review, the Company noted that
under current circumstances there would be losses
on construction project and recorded the full amounts
of these losses in the income statement in 2017. the
Company believes that if circumstances do not
significantly change, the recorded provision for loss is
adequate.

The main expenses were cost of construction
totaling Baht 21,527 million; increasing by Baht 5,197
million or 31.8% and administrative expenses totaling
Baht 419 million; decreasing by Baht 135 million or

24.3%.

Profitability:

The Company and its subsidiaries had net loss
Baht 603 million in 2017 and net profit Baht 1,396
million in 2016, decreasing by Baht 1,999 million or
143.2% compared to the previous year. These
decrease of profit derived from increase in cost of
construction since the Company recorded the
provision for loss of construction project. Because of
current circumstances, whereby prices of construction
materials and wages have risen significantly, and
because construction project has been delayed due
to problems with delivery of construction sites
belonging to the project owner, which are

uncontrollable external factors.

Return on Assets:

In 2017, the Company and its subsidiary
companies had its return on assets ratio at the rate of
-1.8%, decreasing from 2016 when had its return on
assets ratio of 5.6%. Though there was decreasing
percentage of return on assets ratio, the efficient
ability of using the Company’s assets to generate
profit was decreased.
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Return on Equity:

In 2017, the Company and its subsidiary
Companies its return on equity ratio at the rate of
-6.4%, decreasing from 2016 which was at the rate of
13.2%. Decrease in return on equity ratio of the
Company and its subsidiary companies demonstrating
the ability to generate returns to shareholders
decreases.

3. Assets Management Ability

3.1 Consolidated Financial Positions

As at December 31, 2017, the Company and its
subsidiary companies had assets in the amount of
Baht 33,160 million, liabilities in the amount of Baht
23,705 million, and shareholders’ equity in the
amount of Baht 9,455 million.

Assets:

as at December 31, 2017, the Company and its
subsidiary companies had the assets in the amount of
Baht 33,160 million, or Baht 8,160 million increasing
from 2016, representing 32.6%, comprising the current
assets in the amount of Baht 22,417 million, or Baht
6,770 million increasing from 2016, representing
43.3%. The current assets which significantly increased
were cash and cash equivalents, current investments,
trade accounts receivable and unbilled receivables.
The non-current assets were in the amount of Baht
10,743 million, or Baht 1,390 million increasing from
2016, representing 14.9%, the non-current assets that
increased were  other

significantly long-term

investments, and property, plant and equipment.

1. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Current Investments
As at December 31, 2017, the Company and its
had the cash and cash

equivalents, and temporary investment in the amount

subsidiary companies

of Baht 6,695 million, increasing from 2016 when had
the cash and cash equivalents, and temporary
investment in the amount of Baht 1,890 million or
had the increasing amount of Baht 4,806 million,
representing 254.3%. the Company and its subsidiary

companies invested in cash, cash at banks, bills of

'I Qé Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
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exchange, promissory notes, BOT’s bonds, financial
institutions’ debt instruments, private sector’s debt
instruments and investment units. the Company and
its subsidiary companies emphasized the liquidity and

investment protection.

2. Account Recievables

As at December 31, 2017, the Company and its
subsidiary companies had net account receivables in
the amount of Baht 4,579 million, or Baht 1,166
million increasing from 2016 when had net account
receivables in the amount of Baht 3,413 million,
representing 34.2%, in consequence of the fact that
the Company and its subsidiary companies account
receivable turnover longer by having 72-day account
receivable turnover period which more than 2016
that having 65-day account receivable turnover
period.

As at December 31, 2017, the Company and its
subsidiary companies had accounts receivable -
unrelated entities in the amount of Baht 4,597 million
less allowance for doubtful accounts in the amount
of Baht 48 million, having accounts receivable - not
yet been due in the amount of Baht 3,198 million,
representing 69.6%, having outstanding accounts
receivable not exceeding 4 months in the amount of
Baht 520 million,
outstanding accounts receivable for the periods of
4-12 months in the amount of Baht 301 million,

representing 6.5%, and having outstanding accounts

representing  11.3%, having

receivable more than 12 months in the amount of
Baht 578 million, representing 12.6%. The status of
the aging of accounts receivable — unrelated entities
of the Company and its subsidiary companies was
normal.

As at December 31, 2017, the Company and its
subsidiary companies had accounts receivable -
related entities in the amount of Baht 38 million less
allowance for doubtful accounts in the amount of
Baht 33 million, having accounts receivable - not yet
been due in the amount of Baht 5 million, representing
12.8%, outstanding accounts receivable more than 12

months in the amount of Baht 33 million, representing
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87.2%. The status of the age of accounts receivable
- related entities of the Company and its subsidiary
companies was normal.

Upon estimating the allowance for doubtful
at their

discretion, the doubtful accounts of each account

accounts, the management estimated,
receivable by taking into consideration the account

receivable reliability, past collection experience,

outstanding account receivable age, and then
economic situation. the Company and its subsidiary
companies believed that the provision for allowance

for doubtful accounts was adequated.

3. Construction Work in Progress

As at December 31, 2017, the Company and its
subsidiary companies had the construction work in
progress in the amount of Baht 1,470 million, or Baht
1,266 million decreasing, representing 46.3%, in
comparison with in 2016, when the construction work

in progress was in the amount of Baht 2,737 million.

4. Investment Properties

As at December 31, 2017, the Company and its
subsidiary companies had the investment properties
in the amount of Baht 4,329 million, or Baht 12 million
increasing from 2016, representing 0.3%, when the
investment properties were in the amount of Baht
4,317 million, due to the appraisal Investment

Properties value increases.

Liabilities:

As at December 31, 2017, the Company and its
subsidiary companies had liabilities in the amount of
Baht 23,705 million, or Baht 9,289 Million increasing
from 2016, representing 64.4%, being composed of
current liabilities in the amount of Baht 22,907 million,
or Baht 9,208 million increasing from 2016, representing
67.2%. The current liabilities as significantly increased
were advances received from construction contracts
and provision for loss of construction projects. The
non-current liabilities were in the amount of Baht 798
million, or Baht 81 million increasing from 2016,
11.3%. The liabilities

representing non-current
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significantly increased was hire purchase creditors and

financial lease payables.

1. Short-Term Loans from Financial Institutions

As at December 31, 2017, the Company and its
subsidiary companies had short-term loans from
financial institutions Baht 500 million equal to 2016.
The loan was used to invest in other long term

investment.

2. Account Payables

As at December 31, 2017, the Company and its
subsidiary companies had net account payables and
other payables in the amount of Baht 4,886 million,
or Baht 671 million increasing from 2016 when had
net account payables and other trade payables in the
amount of Baht 4,215 million, representing 15.9%. the
Company and its subsidiary companies maintained
the quantity of the account payables and other
payables in the appropriate level despite increase in
construction works, by having 76-day performance
period as decreasing from that in 2016 when had 91-
day performance period. the Company and its
that

performance period was rather good and suitable in

subsidiaries  companies  believed such

the normal course of business.

3. Advances Received from Construction
Contracts

As at December 31, 2017, the Company and its
subsidiary companies had advances received from
construction contracts in the amount of Baht 11,584
Million, or Baht 7,675 million increasing from 2016
when had advances received from customers under
construction contracts in the amount of Baht 3,909
million, representing 196.4% due to new work order

have increased especially in government sector.

Shareholders’s Equity:

As at December 31, 2017, the Company and its
subsidiary companies had the shareholders’ equity in
the amount of Baht 9,455 million, or Baht 1,129
had the
shareholders’ equity in the amount of Baht 10,585

million decreasing from 2016 when
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million, representing 10.7%, the shareholders’ equity
of the Company and its subsidiary companies which
significantly changed were as follows: decrease in
unappropriated retained earnings as from Baht 6,396
million up to Baht 5,430 million in 2017, Baht 966

million decreasing from 2016, representing 15.1%

Total Assets Turnover:

As at December 31, 2017, the Company and its
subsidiary companies had the total asset turnover
ratio of 0.64, as slightly decreasing from 2016 of 0.74.
the Company and its subsidiary companies had total
asset turnover at the moderate level.

4. Liquidity and Capital Adequacy

4.1 Capital Structure

As at December 31, 2017, the Company and its
subsidiary companies had the asset structure by
having the current assets to non-current assets ratio
equal to 68% : 32%, as slightly changed from that in
2016 when had the current assets to non-current
assets ratio equal to 63% : 37%.

As at December 31, 2017, the Company and its
subsidiary companies had source of fund structure
between the total liabilities and the shareholders’
equity, by having the total liabilities to shareholders’
equity ratio equal to 71% : 29%, as slightly changed
from that in 2016 by having the total liabilities to
shareholders’ equity ratio equal to 58% : 42%

4.2 Capital Expenditure

Upon consideration of investment in fixed
assets of the Company and its subsidiary companies,
the management would prepare annual investment
plans in fixed assets as proposed to the Board of
Executive Directors of the Company. Upon decision
made in new investment, the Company and its
subsidiary companies made sufficient consideration in
every aspect, including return on investment.

In 2017, the Company and its subsidiary
companies had capital expenditures in purchasing the
property, plant and equipment in the amount of Baht
723 million, or Baht 574 million increasing from 2016
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when the property, plant and equipment were
purchased in the amount of Baht 149 million,
representing 386.1%

The Company and its subsidiary companies
believed that the capital expenditures, both additional
investment and replacement investment for the
expired existing fixed assets, would maintain the
competitive potentiality of the Company and its
subsidiary companies, both at present and in the
future, and the fixed assets as additionally invested

were utilized in their full capacities.

4.3 Liquidity

In 2017, the Company and its subsidiary
companies had the current ratio at 0.98 as slightly
decreasing from that in 2016 with the current ratio at
1.14. the Company and its subsidiary companies still
had a good liquidity.

In 2017, the Company and its subsidiary
companies had the quick ratio at 0.78 as slightly
increasing from that in 2016 with the quick ratio at
0.73. the Company and its subsidiary companies still
had a good liquidity.

4.4 Cash Flow

In 2017, the Company and its subsidiary
companies increase in cash and cash equivalents in
the amount of Baht 1,730 million, by having the cash
brought forward in the amount Baht 633 million,
causing the net cash at the end of the period to be

equal to Baht 2,363 million, detailed as follows:

(Unit: Baht million)

Operating Activities 5,864 1,411
Investing Activities 3,598 1,713
Financing Activities 537 103
Net increase (decrease) in Cash Flow 1,730 405
Beginning Balance of Cash and Cash 633 1,039

Equivalents
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4.5 Sources of Fund

Financial sources of fund consists of

1. Short-term debt: loans from financial institutions.

2. Long-term debt: Loans for purchasing equipment and working capital.

3. As of December 31, 2017, the Company is common shares were Baht 1,525 million while the share
issued and fully paid-up were Baht 1,525 million.

As at December 31, 2017, the Company and its subsidiary companies had sources of fund from total
liabilities and shareholders’ equity in the amount of Baht 23,705 million and Baht 9,455 million, respectively.
Meanwhile, in 2016, the Company and its subsidiary companies had the total liabilities in the amount of Baht
14,415 million and shareholders’ equity in the amount of Baht 10,585 million.

As at December 31, 2017, the Company and its subsidiary companies had the debt to equity ratio at
2.51, increasing from that in 2016 which was at 1.36. A part of the total liabilities of the Company and its
subsidiary companies resulted from advances received from customers under construction contracts as
provided by the customers for the Company and its subsidiary companies to be used in business operations
as general practices. Advances received from customers under construction contracts had no any interest
payable whatsoever.

As at December 31, 2017, the items in the total liabilities and shareholders’ equity of the Company and
its subsidiary companies which significantly changed were as follows:

(Unit : Baht million)

31 Dec. 2017 31 Dec. 2016 Inc (Dec.) % Inc. (Dec.)

Liabilities

Advances received from construction contracts 11,584 3,909 7,675 196%
Provision for loss of construction projects 1,712 400 1,312 328%
Trade and other payables 4,886 4,215 671 16%
Unbilled payables 3,449 4,186 -737 -18%
Hire purchase creditors and financial lease payables 408 101 307 304%
Shareholders’ Equity

Unappropriated retain earnings 5,430 6,396 -966 -15%

5. Obligation on Liabilities and Management of Off-Statement of Financial Position Obligation
The Company and its subsidiary companies made the hire-purchase contract and financial lease in
relation to the automotive rental for a period of 4-6 years. the Company and its subsidiary companies had the
minimum amount to be payable under the irrevocable hire-purchase contract and financial lease as at
December 31, 2017, as follows:
« Payable within 1 year Baht 56 million
« Payable as from 1 year up to 5 years Baht 166 million
« Payable over 5 years -
Upon assessment of liquidity of the Company and its subsidiary companies, the Company and its
subsidiary companies had sufficient cash to pay the aforementioned obligation on liabilities.
As at December 31, 2017, the Company and its subsidiary companies had no any off-statement of

financial position obligation.
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6. Factors or events which may significantly affect the
financial position and results of operations in the future

The External Factors impact to the Business:

Investment trends in the construction sector
continue to grow. The government continues to focus
on investment in infrastructure projects such as the
mass rapid transit, the double track and express way.
It is a good opportunity for construction companies
and related businesses to increase more revenues

and back log orders.

The Internal Factors impact to the Business:

The Company realized that human capital is
importance, therefore, the Company has always find
the suitable training courses to improve the abilities
of its people by providing in-house training every year,
Moreover, the operation division and the finance and
administrative division are also arranged training
courses to help and improve employees’ skill as well.
Besides the Company has also supported the skilled
labors by training and improving the skill in accordance
with the labor standards.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION
S1UNISS:HIWNU

1. Related transactions with cher than joint ventures

1. HTR Co., Ltd.

Business: Office building rental

The Company holds 80.90% of shares in
HTR Co., Ltd.

There are 1 co-directors, including:

1. Mr. Woraphant Chonthong

2. NOUVELLE PROPERTY

Business: Real estate

The Company holds 99.99% of shares in

Co.,Ltd. development Nouvelle Property Co., Ltd
3. WISDOM SERVICES Business: Rental of machine « The Company holds 100.00% of shares in
Co.,Ltd. and construction equipment Wisdom Services Co., Ltd

and Training service

4. DKK Sino-Thai
Engineering Co., Ltd.

Business: Design the
foundation and structure

of telecommunication

towers, production of
telecommunication steel
structure, construction

and installation of
telecommunication towers, civil
works, repairs and maintenance
of telecommunication towers,
inspection, improvement,

and strengthening of

telecommunication towers

The Company holds 35% of shares in DKK
Sino-Thai Engineering Co., Ltd.

There are 3 co-directors, including:

1. Mr. Vallop Rungkijvorasathien

2. Mr. Woraphant Chonthong

3. Mr. Somchai Wattanaweerachai

5. STIT Co., Ltd.

Business: Distributor and
service provider of machinery
and equipment used in the
construction and manufacturing

industry

STIT Co.,Ltd. Is releated company, as
co-director with the Company.
There is a co-director,

1. Mr. Masthawin  Charnvirakul

6. STP&I (Public) Co., Ltd.

Business: Processing of steel
structure, piping and welding,
pressured containers, heat-
exchange equipment, boilers
and process model,

Distributor and service provider
of machinery and equipment
used in the construction and
manufacturing industry;

STP&I Public Co.,Ltd. Is releated company,
as co-director with the Company.

There are 3 co-directors, including:

1. Mr. Masthawin Charnvirakul

2. Pol.Gen. Jate Mongkolhutthi

3. Mr. Chamni Janchai
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1. Related transactions with other than joint ventures

(Continue)

7. STECON POWER Co.,
Ltd

Business
Plants

: Power Generation

» The Company holds 99.97% of shares in

STECON POWER Co., Ltd

2. Related transactions with jo

int ventures

1. Sino-Thai AS Joint
Venture

Business

: Construction Work

Joint Venture; whereas, the Company held
58% of stakes in Sino-Thai AS Joint Venture
Associate Engineering (1964) Limited held
42% of the stakes;

2. SL Joint Venture

Business

: Construction Work

Joint Venture; whereas, the Company held
70% of stakes in SL Joint Venture (but had
100% Control power)

LC Transport and Commerce Co., Ltd.
held30% of the stakes;

3. SA Joint Venture

Business

: Construction Work

Joint Venture; whereas, the Company held
80% of stakes in SA Joint Venture Aqua Thai
Co., Ltd. held 20% of the stake

4. STEC AS 3 Joint Venture

Business

: Construction Work

Joint Venture; whereas, the Company
held 70% of stakes in STEC AS 3 Joint
Venture(but had 100% Control power)
Associate Engineering (1964) Limited held
30% of the stakes;

5. STEC AS 4 Joint Venture

Business

: Construction Work

Joint Venture; whereas, the Company held
60% of stakes in STEC AS 4 Joint Venture
Associate Engineering (1964) Limited held
40% of the stakes; (but had 100% Control

power)

6. ST-SG Joint Venture

Business

: Construction Work

Joint Venture; whereas, the Company held
99.999% of stakes in ST-SG Joint Venture(but
had 100% Control power) Summit Grade
Ltd., Part.(Sam Prasit) held 0.001% of the

stakes;

7.STTP Joint Venture

Business

: Construction Work

Joint Venture; whereas, the Company held
51% of stakes in STTP Joint Venture
Thaipicon & Industry Co., Ltd. held 49% of

the stakes;

206 Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited

W Annual Report 2017



1. yaranoWDAWTANGINVLaUs:TesuNDTETIMsSoUAT (sio)

7.3 awAou mned  §3ne : Uszneuiamsiieaii . Ustmdosvesunadlu- Iny Wudidlese ueud
d1fin Tsamsdandanulwihynussave eeuaniadu Tasuddniddorudniduiesas
99.97 Y uannzileu USEW awmAeu lwnes
iin

2 yAnaneIdANUTAISINIwWaUs:TesunIlunanssour

1. Aanssiue dlu-lng o §379 : Summneads - Wufanssindn Ineuienddlide dad

\0d 1. Usenildwlaidesonas 58

2. UTE 18 1od uedludien loudiiess (1994)
911n Sevay 42

2. fAN155WA1 1oA Uea  §INA : Sulminneang « WHuRansiiudn Tneuseniduldide dwieluil

1. Usenildulaidesosas 70 Insusenaiuay
100%

2. US¥W Wea @ 5 uaUesn wagn1snaivg
911n Seway 30

3. fiaN1339UA" 10d 1B 3378 : Sumnneata - Wufanssindn lneusenddulade dwieludl
1. us¥nildulaide Sevaz 80
2. Us¥ ananlne 911in Sesas 20

4.79N159WA AwA L §309 : SumIInease - Hufanisvad lneusenildnlade aadl
\od 3 1. Usenildulaideiosas 70 lnsusvvaiuay
100%

2. U39 10 Lod wadladien oudiilese (1994)
1M Seway 30

5. AANTTIWAT AR LD 3509 : Sumneai - WHuRimsdaudn Tnsusdnidwlfide fuelud
\od 4 1. usenlldulamduiovaz 60

2. U3 10 104 wealedien oudiile3s (1994)
1 $o8az 40 lagu3em Lo 1od Lodledien
wubiflese (1994) $11%0 AauAL 100%

6. 1ANFTIWAN Leadl-lead  §303 : SumIneas e - WuRanshudn Taeusdniidnlfide fweluid

1. Usenildulaiduiosay 99.999 lngusun
AIUAY 100%

2. Fafudiudnin anuuszans Sevay 0.001

7. AAN1TTINAT LOEATITIN 5503 : SumnAeasI . {uRnsswdn Tneussnitaulaide faeluil

1. USenllduladesesas 51

2. U39 lneiidouuazanavngsy 9119
Sovay 49

USEN Blu-Ine 18URITEST liausi AouARSAU 11iA (Ukasu) D Q7
s1g9us=9U 2560 I



14,964,960

The Company has transaction with persons who may have a conﬂict of interest for fiscal years 2017 and 2016 are as follows.

14,966,960

1. HTR Co., Ltd. 1.1 Rental Incomes + The building space is
from office leased as the Company’s
building lease office at the market price.

1.2 Trade accounts 13,910 13,910 « As of December 31,2017
and notes STEC was behind in
payable-related payment on parking
parties basement.

2. Nouvelle 2.1 Loans to related  Opening Balance  Opening Balance « Loans to Nouvelle

Property Co., parties 926,060 893,260  Property Co.,Ltd. at
Ltd. Raising During Raising During  interest rate of 4 percent
the period the period  per year and payment of
64,000 37,800  principal and interest on
Decreasing Decreasing  demand.
during the period during the period
(0) (5,000)
Ending Year Ending Year
Balance Balance
990,060 926,060

2.2 Interest receipt 37,113 36,338
from loans
under Sub-

Clauses 2.1
3. Wisdom 3.1 Investment 12,726,516 12,726,516 « Buys ordinary shares of
Services on the part of Wisdom Services Co., Ltd.
Co.,Ltd. shareholders totaling 22,110,000 shares

3.2 Loans to related
parties

3.3 Interest receipt
from loans
under Sub-
Clauses 3.2

Opening Balance
317,160,000
Raising During
the period
90,783,393
Decreasing during
the period
351,343,393
Ending Year
Balance
56,600,000
16,147

Opening Balance
526,300,000
Raising During
the period
Decreasing during
the period
(209,140,000)
Ending Year
Balance
317,160,000
2,113,541

with a par value of Baht
100 per share which the
Company acquired 0.5756
Baht per share, totaling
Baht 12.7 million.
 Loans to Wisdom Services
Co., Ltd.at interest rate of
0.5 percent per year and
payment of principal and
interest on demand.
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1. Uan. 1ov 91 913 14,964,960 16,966,960 « Wuseldanmslmaiui
1¥1971A13 oAy wiedudinauves
d1ineu Ui Ingsiandulumu

S1ARA
1.2 Eniinsen 13,910 13,910 « o Juil 31 SunAx 2560
Aansfiien STEC AatnsyA1aensad
U911 Tadu
2. van.yna nsen 2.1 Bulwidduusen gOARUIIN ganRuIn « [UlANBNLA Uan. Y
nen fiertes 926,060 893260 wWiewmen snmenile
Wisfussrinane  iisdussninenn Sevas 4 dediidvustisey
64,000 37800  Auluduuazsenideudle
ANANTEIINNIA ANANTEIINNIA 119073
Q) (5,000)
gonUael ganUael
990,060 926,060
2.2 poniesuituls 37,113 36,338
ABumw 2.1
3. uandanen 3.1 Buasuiudiy 12,726,516 12,726,516 « Horuaiyiavunes
\woiiaua SLNARRY Uan3aney wolawa
17U 22,110,000 vjulag
yaAwuiins1livuas 100
3.2 Ul guuIun HONRUIIN pondunn U lasuindeulumen
et 317,160,000 526,300,000  Vuag 0.5756 U Ty
Wutusewinenn  WisTusswinenn QU 12.7 §wum
90,783,393 -
aPaNTENinenn  anassendnenn o Rulvigduuniuan Janey
(351,343,393) (209,140,000  woddawa shsmeniteten
ganUael goaUanel ey 0.5 wel dAmuatise
56,600,000 317,160,000  Awdlonisany
3.3 penibeSutuls 16,147 2,113,541
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The Company has transaction with persons who may have a conflict of interest for fiscal years 2017 and 2016 are as

follows. (Continue)

266,538,075

3. Wisdom 3.4 Service Income 222,573,993 « Rental of machine and
Services 3.5 Trade accounts 74,841,919 26,082,271  construction equipment
Co.,Ltd. and notes and training service
(Continue) payable income

3.6 Gain on sale of 3,460,343 -
asset to related
party

4. STIT Co., Ltd. 4.1 Trade accounts 2,282,690 2,282,690 « Spare parts; and repairs

and notes of the Company’s
payable machinery at the market

4.2 Service Income - - price;

4.3 Cost of spare 32,912,969 32,912,969
parts, fix and
maintenance

5. STP&I (Public) 5.1 Trade accounts + Repairing Land Plot C

Co., Ltd. and notes - - FErection and Assembly at
receivable the market price;
5.2 Service Income 153,841,354 153,841,354
5.4 Unbilled
receivables - -
6. Stecon Power 6.1 Investment 999,700 999,700 « Buys ordinary shares of

Co.,Ltd.

on the past of
shareholders

Stecon Power Co.,Ltd.
Totaling 9,997 shares
with a par value of baht
100 per share which the
Company acquired 100
baht per share , totaling
0.99 MB
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3.4 578lAsEninaiu

3. Uan.Janey 266,538,075 222,573,993 « s1laan
woSiaiea (o) 3.5 Wwdinisdn 74,841,919 26,082,271  \A3esdng,gunsalneain
Aansfiien wagselamAEinausa
U91iu
3.6 Mlsann1sy 3,460,343 -
NSWEAUSTAINU
4. US¥ Lod 4.1 dwinnsin - 2,282,690 « tHunsiheyluaundenusy
Aol 1im Aan1siiiien \30sdnIvesUSn Tne
Jpariu siendulumusiaieain
4.2 arezlng n919 37,706,079 32,912,969
Fadeuuw
5. U356 ed 1 W 5.1 s1elaserineiu - 153,841,354 « USENULMNNNBES19A LTI
waun Lo 1m59n15 Erection and
1 (L) Assembly Tnasnanduly
AUIIARAT
6. US¥ awmey 6.1 Ruasuiuaiu 999,700 999,700 - %@ﬁumﬁzgﬁy’wm UTI

WS 31A

UBNARRY

awAau s 11in
13U 9,997 Vulngyac
udinsliuag 100 v
Tneustmdeulumafuas
100 U 53T wiR 0.99
aUUm

USEN Blu-Ine 18URITESY liaus AoUARSAU 1A (Wrasu) D]
S189UUS=91U 2560 I



USBNds1eMss:nIWNUAUYARanoiAcLTAI
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1. Sino-Thai AS 1.1 Trade accounts 3,531,266 3,531,266 « The Company has carried
Joint Venture and notes out the construction of
receivable BMA Mass Transit System
Project, extension of
Sukhumvit Line and Silom
Line, under subcontract
at the market price;

2. SL Joint Venture 2.1 Trade accounts 6,039,804 6,039,804 « The Company has carried
and notes out the construction
receivable of water distribution

canal,pumping station,
elevated bridge, including
Section 3 Building
drainge project near
Suvarnabhumi Airport
under subcontract and at
the market price;

3. SA Joint Venture 3.1 Trade accounts 17,576,738 17,576,738 » The Company has carried
and notes out the construction
receivable of waterworks system

under the Project on
3.2 Unbilled 16,167,060 16,541,782  solving the problem of
receivables water shortage of Nakhon
Ratchasima Municipality,
3.3 Service income - 358,110  under subcontract and at
the market price;

4. STECAS 3 4.1 Advanced 172,803,104 216,073,481 « The Company has carried

Joint Venture received from out the construction
construction of Depot and park &
contracts ride facilities, under

4.2 Unbilled 196,328,307 139,150,140  subcontract at the market
receivables price;
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1 fenssamdn 1.1 gnwinisdn 3,531,266 3,531,266 « UTEMIumINneasawuuiy
Flu-ne - 1o AamsTiAen L1129 (sub-contract)
Lod 03U 1ASINITEUVV LAY

NIUNNUMIUAT FIUAD
YggagaUINLaLFay
Taes1anduluniusa
Aa

2 Aamsswdn 2.1 gnuiiniedn 6,039,804 6,039,804 « UTENTUWINABATIALUUSY

L0d oA Aansiien WAL (sub-contract)
V911U ﬂaaﬁxma‘fwamﬂqjuﬁw
AYNIULNTTAUNTOUDIANT
Usznoudwd 3 Tasenis
syunetUsnaEundy
arssaundl Wnesandull
ANNIIANATA
3 Aamstiwdn 3.1 gnuiiniedn 17,576,738 17,576,738 « US¥nIumReaiauuuTy
LOF LD AamsTiAen L1 (sub-contract)
o3 sguulseUnulasenig
wiladaymnnsuraunauih
3.2 seledfalal 16,167,060 16,541,782 aulaaulnAmeauia
Sunansy uassaNlnes1anduly
ANUIIARAT
3.3 snglasenineiy - 358,110
4. fan1sTiuA 4.1 Jusuaawti 172,803,104 216,073,481 » USENSUMNADESIUUUSY
aLnA 1o Lod 3 GGl WAL (sub-contract)
4.2 elaisslsiGen 196,328,307 139,150,140  AudgauU1Uara1A13I0n
5% wd295 lnesanduluaiy
4.3 selaseninediu 587,881,859 363,158,333  31ANA10
4.4 grviinisén 64,473,001 57,691,261
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5.1 Unbilled

goniuANSSOUAN

(Continue)

5. STECAS 4 11,183,015 11,183,015 « The Company has carried
Joint Venture receivables out the construction
of Trackwork ,under
subcontract and at the
market price,
6. ST-SG Joint 6.1 Trade accounts 160,800,317 46,929,935 « The Company has carried
Venture and notes out the construction
receivable of Drainage Tunnel
6.2 Unbilled 86,412,748 21,076,814  from Bung Nongbon to
receivables Chao Phaya River under
6.3 Service income 346,004,961 22,857,650  subcontract and at the
market price;
7. STTP Joint 7.1 Trade accounts 6,837,016 -« The Company has carried
Venture and notes out the construction of
receivable Double-Track Railway

from Prachuap Khirikhan-
Chumphon under
subcontract and at the

market price.
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General Policy on Related transactions of the Company

Policy on Pricing
The value of related transactions shall be in
accordance with the market price or competitive

prices of non-related parties.

Reasonability of Transactions

Related transactions shall be made on the basis
of necessity and reasonability and for the maximum
benefits of the Company, and the said transactions
existed because the Company has operated its
businesses with subsidiaries, affiliated companies,
and related companies in the normal course of
businesses. Transactions include construction service
provision, purchase of equipment and other services;
conditions of related transactions shall be prescribed
in accordance with the general commercial conditions
and with the market prices or competitive prices of

non-related parties.

Procedures of Related Transaction Approval
policy, the

procedures of related transactions made with parties

According to the Company’s

in conflict have to be verified and approved in

conformance with the company rule and regulation.

2'| 6 Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
B Annual Report 2017

Policy or Trends on Related Transactions

The Company shall have its related transactions
with particular companies involved, as may be
necessary and only in accordance with the normal
course of business operations such as sale/purchase
of construction materials, construction work, office
building lease, etc., and such related transactions
may exist in the future, according to normal course of
business operations of the Company. The Company
has its policy to make related transactions with
parties in conflict by comparing prices and quality of
operations for the maximum benefits of the Company,
and at the most proper price. the Company shall treat
the parties in conflict similarly to other entrepreneurs.
the Company shall prescribe the terms and conditions
of such related transactions in accordance with the
normal course of business operations;, and prices
shall be compared with prices of the third parties;
moreover, it shall be considered according to the
proper procedures of approval and in accordance with

the Company’s Rules and Regulations in all respects.
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REPORTS ON THE RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON FINANCIAL REPORTS
SIYVIUADIUSUTOIOUIDVATU:NSSUNISODSIUNIUNINISINU

The Board of Directors of Sino-Thai Engineering
and Construction Public Company Limited has carried
out actions in accordance with The Company’s
Articles of Association on the presentation of Balance
Sheets and Income Statement ending December 31,
2017, which has already been audited by the Auditor.
These actions are in accordance with the prescribed
period of twelve months cycle which was within the
period of time before the ending of The Company’s
accounting period. The Company Board of Directors
hereby warrants that the financial reports expressed
in the 2017 Annual Reports are true and reasonable,
having correct, complete, and adequate accounting
data. The Company’s Board of Directors has already
reviewed and deemed the reports to be presentable
and requested it should be submitted expeditiously
to the shareholders.

The Company’s Board of Directors is of the
view that The Company has duly exercised proper
accounting procedures, kept constant practice, and
has taken reasonable care in completing The
Company’s financial statements on time. The Balance
Sheets ending December 31, 2017, Income Statement,
Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity, and
Cash Flow Statements ending December 31, 2017, of
both The Company’s and Consolidated Financial
Statements of The Company’s Subsidiaries are
reasonably correct and completed in accordance
with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.

The Company’s Board of Directors is confident
that it has verified The Company’s important data
and information in all respects and has paid close
attention to all details regarding the financial reporting
of The Company.

For on behalf of The Company:

agganm

Mr. Pakpoom Srichamni

Director and President
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REMUNERATION FOR AUDITOR
A10BUINUYaVEADUUTYTY
dunvugaoulnygvevuseniia-usengoy
UTEW dineu 8118 911in
Hu 33 e1P15IanTIAN LAY 193/136-137 auuiunidendaln
ngamMNe 10110

AMaUINUIINNISADUUTYBVOIUSBNIAzUSBNEDE

uSEniiAnaeuta® U 2560 Huswiuky 1,800,000 UM

USEmeesiiraoutayd U 2560 Wusiuiuku 1,030,000 U

USEnegesvasustvdeos daaeutn U 2560 (Hudiuiukiu 280,000 UMW
AUSMSAU

laig-

Office of the Auditor of The Company and subsidiaries,
EY
33" Floor, Lake Ratchada Building, 193/136-137, New Ratchada Pisek Road,
Bangkok 10110.

Remuneration on the account audits of The Company and subsidiaries.

Company’s auditing fee in 2017 is 1,800,000 Baht
The Company’s subsidiaries’ auditing fee in 2017 is 1,030,000 Baht
The affiliated companies of the subsidiaries’ auditing fee in 2017 is 280,000 Baht

Other expenses:

-None-
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ilsnaguiiandosudmsuil - - - 183,346,300 183,346,300 183,346,300 133,700 183,480,000
lsnanuiiaaiosmdmivil - - - 1,380,754,531 183,346,300 183,346,300 1,564,100,831 15,362,141 1,579,462,972
Auduratie (nnome 26) - - - (503,094,517) - - (503,094,517) - (503,094,517)
drvoadiidan &R hifisnnonug
vouiindooriiui - - - - - - - 300 300
uoAnamde  Sufl 31 A 2559 1,525,106,540 2,097,055.812 152,510,654 6.396,112,133 181,981,801 181,981,801 10,352,766,940 231,752,059 10,584,518,999
uoanavide & i 1 un3 AN 2560 1,525,106,540 2,097,055,812 152,510,654 6,396,112,133 181,981,801 181,981,801 10,352,766,940 231,752,059 10,584,518,999
s @angu) dmsull - - - (610,826,279) - - (610.826,279) 7,469,908 (603,356,371)
i'lsnanuiiadiudmsa - - - (19,747,449) (171,008,800) (171,008,800) (190,756,249) 152,800 (190,603,449)
mlsnanudiaasoswdmivil - - - (630,573,728) (171,008.800) (171,008,800) (801,582,528) 7,622,708 (793,959.820)
Suilunaie (nunems) 26) - - - (335,500,748) - - (335,500,748) - (335,500,748)
uoanamAe o Tu 31 FunAn 2560 1,525,106,540 2,097,055,812 152,510,654 5.430,037,657 10,973,001 10,973,001 9,215,683,664 239,374,767 9,455,058.431
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mlsnanuidiaaasmdmsvil
Auiluraiie (o) 26)

zmﬂmmﬁ ™ '“J"Hﬁ 31 Funan 2559

ﬂﬂﬂmmﬁ o EJI‘“VG; 1 uNIIAN 2560
wagudmsull
ilsmanuiiaaidudmiai
lsnanuiiaaiisudmiii
Auiluraie (o) 26)

goARUKAD a1 Juil 31 Funau 2560

(Me: 1Im)
WMIRURIEAING
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ossznouduvesdINve iy
mlsvanu
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diae5du
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nnm3faya 39
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waztszuds yamiuaniy Jaassudn dalildvaass nannindiiovs  vesdauvediefu dauvearnou
1,525,106,540 2,097,055,812 152,510,654 4,689,648,067 (959,999) (959,999) 8,463,361,074
- - - 1,266,549,248 - - 1,266,549,248
- - - - 182,780,000 182,780,000 182,780,000
- - - 1,266,549.248 182,780,000 182,780,000 1,449,329.,248
- - - (503,094,517) - - (503,094,517)
1,525,106,540 2,097,055,812 152,510,654 5,453,102,798 181,820,001 181,820,001 9,409,595,805
1,525,106,540 2,097,055,812 152,510,654 5,453,102,798 181,820,001 181,820,001 9,409,595,805
- - - (847,102,836) - - (847,102,836)
- - - (19,747,449) (171,656,000) (171,656,000) (191,403,449)
- - - (866,850,285) (171,656,000) (171,656,000) (1,038,506,285)
- - - (335,500,748) - - (335,500,748)
1,525,106,540 2,097,055,812 152,510,654 4,250,751,765 10,164,001 10,164,001 8,035,588,772
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(M2e: uIN)
JUMIR[UIIN WMIRUANIZAIMs
2560 2559 2560 2559
NIZUARUAANINDINITHAUHUNIY
'ls (nanu) neumil (797,475,738) 1,733,308,409 (1,073,600,980) 1,575,917,163
wmslsunsznueeam ls eanw) roumiiluduaasy o)
NNINTTUA LU
('ls) mmnuﬁf’i’a'lmﬁﬂ%uﬂ“ﬂmﬂﬂmﬂﬁauuﬂm
yamSuamuiingm (800,228.236) 1,614,813 (800,000,000) 151,673
nﬁﬂi"uu"amﬂwﬂ'ummgﬂwf: - 57,203,922 - 57,203,922
wﬁgty 5,423,900 - 5,423,900 -
Andeusim 480,996,845 520,469,217 383,375,745 416,365,138
mlsnamsimieglnsal (24,329.796) (10,296,324) (25,232.448) (7.668,713)
mmnumﬂmiﬁmﬂmaﬁ’wﬁwﬁ"wfﬁﬁamsamu 5,442,050 - 5,442,050 -
gaﬁwﬁmmmmaﬁwﬁwé”wz‘ﬂﬁ‘amsammﬁuﬁu (173,367.491) (596,029,751) (146,434.200) (574,627,670)
dauiai lsnnSuasmulunsinsw (31,715,825) (25,743,564) - -
f?ﬁmwammnummiﬂiaﬂmﬁwﬁu (anag) 1,311,753,284 (119,650,224) 1311,753,284 (119,650,224)
dsoenarse Temiszozeniveaniinau 24,409,014 18,076,351 23,611,896 17,814,577
510 1dnmsaanu - Auuwaiuninuasuluniinim - - (8,399,100) (6,999,250)
sw'ldnnmsacu - Guiuraiuanntuamuszez ooy (20,650,000) - (19,965,000) -
aoniesy (44,324,119) (47,424,649) (39,803,061) (34,891,392)
Aldieaonii 23,268,876 13,484,315 21,625,809 12,078,505
f'ls @) nansdifivauteumandeunlag
Tuduminduazni sy (40,797,236) 1,545,012,515 (362,202,105) 1,335,693,729
Funsndduiinam (Lﬁu%u) anag
gﬂﬁﬁmsﬁmazgﬂwﬁﬁ'u (1,148,095,499) (725,682,493) (458,177.412) (873,002,329)
sw&Rda i 1dGenshse (1,877,929,280) 624,929,716 (1,804,531,857) 620,208,414
QuilszAuranuneadne (29,359,589) 392,807,486 30,069,929 416,712,618
NusznIenea U dyan 1,602,469,740 (436,658,965) 1,383,310,765 (217,762,376)
Rudreanmigsumn (18,094,202) (424,339,301) (18,094,202) (441,743,734)
mmﬁgmﬁaw - (1,121,858) - -
ﬁuw%”wsj“wguﬁﬂuﬁu 217,520,286 185,815,263 170,069,792 130,018,180
auw%“wa“languﬁﬂuéu (10,653,958) (4,399,336) (11,727,554) (10,154,926)
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(MU28: 110)
QWMIRUIIN AUMIRUAIZAaMs
2560 2559 2560 2559

Wi AuS I OuRLA (anag)
dmiimsfuazidmiau 671,170,789 191,944,099 757,703,556 98,658,696
ﬁ'unuﬁf]”ﬂﬂﬁaﬂﬂﬁﬁz (737,168,761) 711,900,219 (801,935,913) 718,651,590
Rusvarmthawdyaneadis 7,675,235,915 (289,712,665) 7,094,509,822 (293,538,333)
wi‘jﬁuwnuﬁaus 118,381,587 61,703,823 65,773,207 58,771,610
wﬁﬁu"liimguﬁnu%u (6,978,906) (3,800,586) (3,842,000) (4,592,300)
RUAADINNINTTUA UL UIIU 6.415,700,886 1,828,397,917 6,040,926,028 1,537,920,839
Twaoniile (37,475,826) (12,542,564) (21,590,193) (12,007,272)
NeBEuld (514,256,895) (404,897,361) (467,321,647) (377,354,512)
RuaagnsaNnanssNANHHY 5,863,968,165 1,410,957,992 5,552,014,188 1,148,559,055

NITUTRUTAINNINTTHAIMY
Gushamnasiaamszanlse i (Lﬁwﬁu) anag 16,127,336 (1,019,326) 16,127,336 (1,019,326)
ﬁuamwﬁaﬂsmﬁuﬁu (2.276,527,442) (230,212,234) (2.,198,573,326) (237,964,630)
ﬁu“lﬁ'ﬁﬁmwzéuuﬁu?ﬁwé’u (Lﬁu%‘u) anad 118,252,936 (37,936,738) - -
Fu“lﬁ’ﬁ’ﬁuufiﬁﬂnﬁﬁsﬁwj”mﬁuaﬂm 1,066,369 1,428,349 260,496,000 209,107,200
ﬁuﬁﬂﬁw%aﬁuamuiuﬁﬁmdaﬂ - - - (999,700)
ﬁuﬁﬂﬂ'w%eﬁuamuizﬂwn (1,050,000,000) (1,380,275,000) (1,050,000,000) (1,380,275,000)
ﬁuﬂuwaﬁ"uinﬂﬁuamui:ﬂxmaéu 20,650,000 - 19,965,000 -
Guﬁﬂ%”‘umnmiﬂ"mi‘imaﬁwﬁuﬁwﬁsﬁammmu 182,757,950 - 182,757,950 -
c’i’?aqﬂnmf (722,667,492) (148,655,723) (844,910,138) (147,958,913)
Ruaasunnmsimiognsel 53,646,822 32,757,928 117,864,772 28,664,470
RuiluraiuanRuasnuluusinsu 8,399,100 6,999,250 8,399,100 6,999,250
Aonidiesy 50,732,597 43,599,011 45,257,902 34,333,039
RAuaagn3lFlfludenssuamu (3.597,561,824) (1,713,314,483) (3.442,615,404)  (1,489,113,610)
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(MW2e: UIN)
WMIRUIIN UMSRUDINZRIMS
2560 2559 2560 2559
NITUTRUAAINNINTINIANIU
ﬁuﬁ:ﬁmzﬂ:f‘?umnﬁmﬁumﬁﬁmﬁnﬁu - 500,000,000 - 500,000,000
Judduanaq (57.876,000) - - -
Frsziudminy “’mumgmhc‘?’flﬂua:ﬁmuiymhmNmiﬁu (143,476,663) (99,898,004) (126,258,292) (81,633,573)
Ruiluwaie (335,500,748) (503,094,517) (335,500,748) (503,094,517)
RuaagnslFlfludenssudanidu (536,853.411) (102,992,521) (461,759,040) (84,728,090)
Quaauaznemsieurtuaamiam (anag) gns 1,729,552,930 (405,349,012) 1,647,639,744 (425,282,645)
Ruaauazsemafoumiduaaduil 633,481,891 1,038,830,903 595,955,047 1,021,237,692
Ruaauazyemsigumiduaalaed) 2,363,034,821 633,481,891 2,243,594,791 595,955,047
ﬁ’ieu‘,anizuﬁﬁuﬁﬂﬁlﬂmmﬁmﬁu
semsi lildEuan
auszrhateaiuituduInmsih Ty usIMnTRY 336,107,608 - 336,107,608 -
Eu‘n%”wffmguﬁﬂu%mﬁu%umﬂﬂﬁm Ty UmNNNTEY - 17,495,327 - 17,495,327
gulnsalil %mmmiv‘hﬁtytywﬁﬁﬁauaz Ty UN1NTEY 355,594,012 95,241,907 152,933,690 95,241,907
qﬂﬂinﬁﬁu%mmmié"uiauf‘?tyiymhmamif&mmﬁﬁwdﬂﬂ
(FADDNIINIUMIIUTINNED) - - 55,305,946 -
TougunsalfluedmSuninditenmsasnu - 11,218,785 - -
TounauiluedmSuninditemsasmu 27,000,000 - 27,000,000 -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders of Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited

Opinion

| have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Sino-Thai Engineering and
Construction Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries (the Group), which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017, and the related consolidated statements of income,
comprehensive income, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, and have also
audited the separate financial statements of Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited
for the same period.

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries and
of Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited as at 31 December 2017, their financial

performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards.

Basis for Opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing. My responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of my report. I am independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants as issued by the Federation of Accounting Professions as relevant to my audit of the financial
statements, and | have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. | believe that
the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Emphasis of Matter
| draw attention to Note 21 to the financial statements regarding the recording of provision for loss of
construction project of the Company during the year. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgement, were of most significance in my
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of my
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming my opinion thereon, and | do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

I have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of my report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, my audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to my assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements. The results of my audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for my audit opinion on the accompanying financial statements as a
whole.

Key audit matters and how audit procedures respond for each matter are described below.

Recognition of revenue from and provision for losses on construction projects
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The Group recognised revenue from construction contracts based on the percentage of completion estimated
by engineers. Their policies on revenue recognition, estimation of construction costs and provision for losses on
construction projects are disclosed in note to the financial statements. Because the amount of revenue from
construction contracts that the Group recognised in the income statement forms a significant portion, and the
process of measurement, the determination of appropriate timing of recognition, and the estimation of possible
losses are areas requiring management to exercise significant judgment to assess the percentage of completion and
the measurement of possible losses, | have identified revenue recognition and estimation of possible losses from
construction contracts to be areas significantly impacting the financial statements.

| examined recognition of revenue from construction contracts and provision for losses on construction
projects by assessing the appropriateness of and testing the internal controls related to the approach used by
the management to monitor and consider the reasonableness of the evaluation of percentage of completion,
the estimation of construction project costs and the provision for losses on construction projects. | also tested
the effectiveness of internal controls related to procurement and recording of construction costs. | gained an
understanding of the processes that the Group applied in the estimation of percentage of completion, the
estimation of construction costs and the provision for losses on construction projects by inquiring with the
management, performing an analytical review of the percentage of completion estimated by engineers and
the percentage of completion determined through a comparison of construction costs incurred throughout
the period to the total estimated construction costs, reading construction contracts and performing an

analytical review of gross profit margin to detect possible irregularities.

Measurement of investment properties

The Group recognised investment properties at the fair value determined by an independent appraiser,
and recognised changes in the fair value in the income statement. During the year 2017, the Group recognised
profit from changes in the fair value of investment properties amounting to Baht 173 million and Baht 146
million in the consolidated and separate income statements, respectively. The measurement of fair value was
based on the assumptions and judgment of both the management and an independent appraiser. The
recognition of the fair value must reflect the market circumstances as at the end of the reporting period. |
identified the measurement of investment properties to be an area significantly impacting the financial
statements.

| assessed the knowledge, competency and integrity of the independent appraiser, read the appraisal
report prepared by the independent appraiser and evaluated the valuation approach and the assumptions
used in the fair value measurement through inquiry with the independent appraiser and the management and
performed an analytical review of relevant information. In addition, | tested the calculation of fair value and

considered the completeness and accuracy of the disclosures made in notes to the financial statements.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in annual report of the Group, but does not include the financial statements and my auditor’s report
thereon. The annual report of the Group is expected to be made available to me after the date of this

auditor’s report.
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My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and | do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements
or my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When | read the annual report of the Group, if | conclude that there is a material misstatement of this

other information, | am required to report that fact. | have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing, | exercise professional judgement and

maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

« |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

+  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

»  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If | conclude that a material uncertainty exists, | am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

«  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

« Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
| am responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. | remain solely

responsible for my audit opinion.

| communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that | identify during my audit.

| also provide those charged with governance with a statement that | have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, | determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. | describe these matters in my auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, | determine that a matter should not
be communicated in my report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

| am responsible for the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report.

7N\ V2

Supachai Phanyawattano
Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 3930

EY Office Limited
Bangkok: 14 February 2018
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

As at 31 December 2017

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Current investments

Trade and other receivables - current portion

Unbilled receivables

Retention receivables

Construction in progress

Advances to subcontractors

Short-term loans to other companies
Current portion of loans to related party
Condominium units for sales

Other current assets

Total current assets

Non-current assets

Restricted bank deposits

Trade accounts receivable - net of current portion

Loans to related parties - net of current portion

Investments in subsidiaries
Investment in associate

Other long-term investments
Investment properties
Property, plant and equipment
Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets

Total assets

6, 8

10

11
12.1
13
15
16

Consolidated financial statements

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

017

2,363,034,821
4,332,399,501
4,578,611,206
6,552,205,055
733,003,872
1,470,146,108
1,360,290,360
21,024,954
351,514,420
655,184,977

2016

633,481,891
1,256,043,822
3,412,587,371
4,674,275,775

703,644,283
2,736,508,240
1,342,196,158

139,277,890

1,066,369

351,514,420

396,769,892

2017

2,243,594,791
4,125,053,966
4,019,506,136
6,453,186,476

649,669,222
1,427,794,211

1,360,290,360

587,790,320

016

595,955,047
1,126,880,639
3,543,400,388
4,648,654,619

679,739,151
2,474,997,368

1,342,196,158

310,247,593

22,417,415,274

15,647,366,111

20,866,885,482

14,722,070,963

317,572,589

174,851,736
2,454,981,254
4,328,963,168
3,427,265,914

38,906,848

16,127,336
335,210,399

151,535,011
1,618,351,254
4,316,795,677
2,886,318,280

28,252,890

317,572,589
57,590,060
1,253,815,821
2,799,700
2,443,980,000
2,824,270,000
2,778,610,295
39,517,220

16,127,336
335,210,399
318,086,060

1,253,815,821

2,799,700
1,608,150,000
2,839,035,800
2,228,468,590

27,789,666

10,742,541,509

9,352,590,847

9,718,155,685

8,629,483,372

33,159,956,783

24,999,956,958

30,585,041,167

23,351,554,335

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
As at 31 December 2017

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
Note 2017 2016 2017 2016
Liabilities and shareholders' equity
Current liabilities
Short-term loan from financial institution 17 500,000,000 500,000,000 500,000,000 500,000,000
Trade and other payables 6,18 4,886,466,213 4,215,295,424 4,866,683,114 4,108,979,558
Unbilled payables 3,448,898,772 4,186,067,533 3,383,762,359 4,185,698,272
Advances received from construction contracts 6 11,583,905,195 3,908,669,280 10,878,305,559 3,783,795,737
Current portion of hire purchase creditors
and financial lease payables 19 315,631,187 74,728,186 281,494,034 72,022,056
Loan and interest payable 20 - 72,118,567 - -
Provision for loss of construction projects 21 1,712,064,113 400,310,829 1,712,064,113 400,310,829
Other current liabilities 460,209,774 341,787,526 390,484,711 321,778,096
Total current liabilities 22,907,175,254 13,698,977,345 22,012,793,890 13,372,584,548
Non-current liabilities
Hire purchase creditors and
financial lease payables - net of current portion 19 408,316,419 100,994,461 309,611,435 100,994,461

Provision for long-term employee benefits 22 211,380,236 166,128,911 207,154,138 162,699,930
Deferred tax liabilities 25 171,596,345 439,770,238 19,892,932 305,679,591
Other non-current liabilities 6,430,098 9,567,004 - -
Total non-current liabilities 797,723,098 716,460,614 536,658,505 569,373,982
Total liabilities 23,704,898,352 14,415,437,959 22,549,452,395 13,941,958,530

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
As at 31 December 2017

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
Note 2017 2016 2017 2016
Shareholders' equity
Share capital
Registered
1,525,106,540 ordinary shares of Baht 1 each 1,525,106,540 1,525,106,540 1,525,106,540 1,525,106,540
Issued and fully paid
1,525,106,540 ordinary shares of Baht 1 each 1,525,106,540 1,525,106,540 1,525,106,540 1,525,106,540
Share premium 2,097,055,812 2,097,055,812 2,097,055,812 2,097,055,812
Retained earnings
Appropriated - statutory reserve 23 152,510,654 152,510,654 152,510,654 152,510,654
Unappropriated 5,430,037,657 6,396,112,133 4,250,751,765 5,453,102,798
Other components of shareholders' equity 10,973,001 181,981,801 10,164,001 181,820,001
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 9,215,683,664 10,352,766,940 8,035,588,772 9,409,595,805
Non-controlling interests of the subsidiaries 239,374,767 231,752,059 - -
Total shareholders' equity 9,455,058,431 10,584,518,999 8,035,588,772 9,409,595,805
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 33,159,956,783 24,999,956,958 30,585,041,167 23,351,554,335

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

agar -

Director
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INCOME STATEMENT

Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

For the year ended 31 December 2017

Consolidated financial statements

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

Note 2017 2016 2017 2016

Revenues
Construction income 20,015,108,685  17,895,571,507  19,517,598,209  17,822,668,267
Rental and service income 59,753,961 57,172,253 - -
Gain from fair value adjustment of investment properties 15 173,367,491 596,029,751 146,434,200 574,627,670
Unrealised gain (loss) on valuation of current investments 800,228,236 (1,614,813) 800,000,000 (151,673)
Other income

Interest income 44,324,119 47,424,649 39,803,061 34,891,392

Dividend income 20,650,000 - 28,364,100 6,999,250

Others 45,427,480 29,478,414 40,151,940 18,155,399
Total revenues 21,158,859,972  18,624,061,761 20,572,351,510  18,457,190,305
Expenses
Cost of construction 21,5627,227,175  16,330,091,751 21,216,905,865  16,383,584,751
Cost of rental and services 18,532,660 19,105,110 - -
Administrative expenses 419,022,824 553,815,740 407,420,816 485,609,886
Total expenses 21,964,782,659  16,903,012,601 21,624,326,681 16,869,194,637
Profit (loss) before share of profit from investment

in associate, finance cost and income tax (805,922,687) 1,721,049,160 (1,051,975,171) 1,587,995,668
Share of profit from investment in associate 12.1 31,715,825 25,743,564 - -
Profit (loss) before finance cost and income tax (774,206,862) 1,746,792,724 (1,051,975,171) 1,587,995,668
Finance cost (23,268,876) (13,484,315) (21,625,809) (12,078,505)
Profit (loss) before income tax (797,475,738) 1,733,308,409 (1,073,600,980) 1,5675,917,163
Income tax 25 194,119,367 (337,325,437) 226,498,144 (309,367,915)
Profit (loss) for the year (603,356,371) 1,395,982,972 (847,102,836) 1,266,549,248
Profit (loss) attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company (610,826,279) 1,380,754,531 (847,102,836) 1,266,549,248
Non-controlling interests of the subsidiaries 7,469,908 15,228,441

(603,356,371) 1,395,982,972

Basic earnings (loss) per share
Profit (loss) attributable to equity holders of the Company (0.40) 0.91 (0.56) 0.83

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

For the year ended 31 December 2017

Profit (loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income:
Other comprehensive income to be reclassified
to profit or loss in subsequent periods
Gain (loss) on change in value of available-for-sale investments
Income tax effect
Other comprehensive income to be reclassified

to profit or loss in subsequent periods - net of income tax

Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified
to profit or loss in subsequent periods
Actuarial loss
Income tax effect
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified
to profit or loss in subsequent periods - net of income tax

Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Equity holders of the Company

Non-controlling interests of the subsidiaries

Consolidated financial statements

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

Note 2017 2016

(603,356,371) 1,395,982,972

2017

(847,102,836)

2016

1,266,549,248

(213,770,000) 229,175,000
25 42,914,000 (45,695,000)

(214,570,000)
42,914,000

228,475,000
(45,695,000)

(170,856,000) 183,480,000 (171,656,000) 182,780,000
(24,684,311) - (24,684,311) -

25 4,936,862 - 4,936,862 -
(19,747,449) - (19,747,449) -
(190,603,449) 183,480,000 (191,403,449) 182,780,000

(793,959,820) 1,679,462,972

(1,038,506,285)

1,449,329,248

(801,582,528) 1,564,100,831

7,622,708 15,362,141

(1,038,506,285)

1,449,329,248

(793,959,820) 1,579,462,972

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
For the year ended 31 December 2017

(Unit: Baht)
C i financial
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Other of equity
Other comprehensive
income
Surplus (deficit) on Total other Total equity Equity attributable
Issued and changes in value of components of attributable to to non-controlling Total
fully paid-up Retained earnings available-for-sale shareholders' owners of interests of shareholders'
share capital Share premium Appropriated Unappropriated investments equity the Company the sub: equity

Balance as at 1 January 2016 1,525,106,540 2,097,055,812 152,510,654 5,518,452,119 (1,364,499) (1,364,499) 9,291,760,626 216,389,618 9,508,150,244
Profit for the year - - - 1,380,754,531 - - 1,380,754,531 15,228,441 1,395,982,972
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - - 183,346,300 183,346,300 183,346,300 133,700 183,480,000
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 1,380,754,531 183,346,300 183,346,300 1,564,100,831 15,362,141 1,5679,462,972
Dividend paid (Note 26) - - - (503,094,517) - - (503,094,517) - (503,094,517)
Increase in non-controlling interests of the ari - - - - - - - 300 300
Balance as at 31 December 2016 1,525,106,540 2,097,055,812 152,510,654 6,396,112,133 181,981,801 181,981,801 10,352,766,940 231,752,059 10,584,518,999
Balance as at 1 January 2017 1,525,106,540 2,097,055,812 152,510,654 6,396,112,133 181,981,801 181,981,801 10,352,766,940 231,752,059 10,584,518,999
Profit (loss) for the year - - - (610,826,279) - - (610,826,279) 7,469,908 (603,356,371)
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - (19,747,449) (171,008,800) (171,008,800) (190,756,249) 152,800 (190,603,449)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - (630,573,728) (171,008,800) (171,008,800) (801,582,528) 7,622,708 (793,959,820)
Dividend paid (Note 26) - - - (335,500,748) - - (335,500,748) - (335,500,748)
Balance as at 31 December 2017 1,525,106,540 2,097,055,812 152,510,654 5,430,037,657 10,973,001 10,973,001 9,215,683,664 239,374,767 9,455,058,431

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (continued)

Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
For the year ended 31 December 2017

(Unit: Baht)
Other components of equity
Other comprehensive
income
Surplus (deficit) on Total other
Issued and changes in value of components of Total
fully paid-up Retained earnings available-for-sale shareholders' shareholders'
share capital Share premium Appropriated Unappropriated investments equity equity
Balance as at 1 January 2016 1,525,106,540 2,097,055,812 152,510,654 4,689,648,067 (959,999) (959,999) 8,463,361,074
Profit for the year - - - 1,266,549,248 - - 1,266,549,248
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - - 182,780,000 182,780,000 182,780,000
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 1,266,549,248 182,780,000 182,780,000 1,449,329,248
Dividend paid (Note 26) - - - (503,094,517) - - (503,094,517)
Balance as at 31 December 2016 1,525,106,540 2,097,055,812 152,510,654 5,453,102,798 181,820,001 181,820,001 9,409,595,805
Balance as at 1 January 2017 1,525,106,540 2,097,055,812 152,510,654 5,453,102,798 181,820,001 181,820,001 9,409,595,805
Loss for the year - - - (847,102,836) - - (847,102,836)
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - (19,747,449) (171,656,000) (171,656,000) (191,403,449)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - (866,850,285) (171,656,000) (171,656,000) (1,038,506,285)
Dividend paid (Note 26) - - - (335,500,748) - - (335,500,748)
Balance as at 31 December 2017 1,525,106,540 2,097,055,812 152,510,654 4,250,751,765 10,164,001 10,164,001 8,035,588,772

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

For the year ended 31 December 2017

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit (loss) before tax
Adjustments to reconcile profit (loss) before tax to
net cash provided by (paid from) operating activities:
Unrealised (gain) loss on valuation of current investments
Adjustment of present value receivable
Bad debt
Depreciation
Gain from disposal of equipment
Loss from disposal of investment property
Increase in fair value of investment properties
Share of profit from investment in associate
Increase (decrease) in provision for loss of projects
Provision for long-term employee benefits
Income from investment - dividend received
from investment in associate
Income from investment - dividend received
from other long-term investments
Interest income
Interest expenses
Profit (loss) from operating activities before changes
in operating assets and liabilities
Operating assets (increase) decrease
Trade and other receivables
Unbilled receivables
Retention receivables
Construction in progress
Advances to subcontractors
Condominium units for sales
Other current assets

Other non-current assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Consolidated financial statements

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

2017

(797,475,738)

(800,228,236)
5,423,900
480,996,845
(24,329,796)
5,442,050
(173,367,491)
(31,715,825)
1,311,753,284

24,409,014

(20,650,000)
(44,324,119)
23,268,876

2016

1,733,308,409

1,614,813
57,203,922
520,469,217
(10,296,324)
(596,029,751)
(25,743 ,564)
(119,650,224)

18,076,351

(47,424,649)
13,484,315

2017

(1,073,600,980)

(800,000,000)
5,423,900
383,375,745

(25,232,448)
5,442,050

(146,434,200)
1,311,753,284

23,611,896

(8,399,100)

(19,965,000)

(39,803,061)
21,625,809

2016

1,675,917,163

151,673
57,203,922

416,365,138
(7,668,713)

(574,627,670)

(119,650,224)

17,814,577

(6,999,250)

(34,891,392)
12,078,505

(40,797,236)

(1,148,095,499)
(1,877,929,280)
(29,359,589)
1,602,469,740
(18,094,202)
217,520,286
(10,653,958)

1,545,012,515

(725,682,493)
624,929,716
392,807,486

(436,658,965)

(424,339,301)

(1,121,858)
185,815,263
(4,399,336)
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(362,202,105)

(458,177,412)
(1,804,531,857)
30,069,929
1,383,310,765
(18,094,202)
170,069,792
(11,727,554)

1,335,693,729

(873,002,329)
620,208,414
416,712,618

(217,762,376)

(441,743,734)
130,018,180

(10,154,926)



CASH FLOW STATEMENT (continued)

Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

For the year ended 31 December 2017

Operating liabilities increase (decrease)
Trade and other payables
Unbilled payables
Advances received from construction contracts
Other current liabilities
Other non-current liabilities
Cash from operating activities
Cash paid for interest expenses
Cash paid for corporate income tax
Net cash from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
(Increase) decrease in restricted bank deposits
Increase in current investments
(Increase) decrease in short-term loans to other companies
Decrease in loans to related parties
Cash paid for acquisition of investment in subsidiary
Cash paid for acquisition of other long-term investments
Dividend received from other long-term investment
Proceeds from sales of investment property
Aquisition of equipment
Proceeds from sales of equipment
Dividend received from investment in associate
Interest income

Net cash used in investing activities

Consolidated financial statements

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

2017

671,170,789

(737,168,761)
7,675,235,915
118,381,587

(6,978,906)

2016

191,944,099
711,900,219
(289,712,665)
61,703,823
(3,800,586)

2017

757,703,556

(801,935,913)
7,094,509,822
65,773,207

(3,842,000)

2016

98,658,696
718,651,590

(293,538,333)
58,771,610

(4,592,300)

6,415,700,886
(37,475,826)
(514,256,895)

1,828,397,917
(12,542,564)
(404,897,361)

6,040,926,028
(21,590,193)
(467,321,647)

1,537,920,839
(12,007,272)
(377,354,512)

5,863,968,165

1,410,957,992

5,5562,014,188

1,148,559,055

16,127,336
(2,276,527,442)
118,252,936
1,066,369
(1,050,000,000)
20,650,000
182,757,950
(722,667,492)
53,646,822
8,399,100
50,732,597

(1,019,326)
(230,212,234)
(37,936,738)
1,428,349
(1,380,275,000)
(148,655,723)
32,757,928
6,999,250
43,599,011

16,127,336
(2,198,573,326)
260,496,000
(1,050,000,000)
19,965,000
182,757,950
(844,910,138)
117,864,772
8,399,100
45,257,902

(1,019,326)
(237,964,630)
209,107,200
(999,700)
(1,380,275,000)

(147,958,913)
28,664,470
6,999,250
34,333,039

(3,597,561,824)

(1,713,314,483)

(3,442,615,404)

(1,489,113,610)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT (continued)

Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
For the year ended 31 December 2017

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
2017 2016 2017 2016
Cash flows from financing activities
Increase in short-term loan from financial institution - 500,000,000 - 500,000,000
Decrease in loan (57,876,000) - - -
Repayment of hire purchase creditors and
financial lease payables (143,476,663) (99,898,004) (126,258,292) (81,633,573)
Dividend paid (335,500,748) (503,094,517) (335,500,748) (503,094,517)
Net cash used in financing activities (536,853,411) (102,992,521) (461,759,040) (84,728,090)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,729,552,930 (405,349,012) 1,647,639,744 (425,282,645)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 633,481,891 1,038,830,903 595,955,047 1,021,237,692
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 2,363,034,821 633,481,891 2,243,594,791 595,955,047
Supplement cash flows information
Non-cash items
Increase of work in progress under financial lease agreements 336,107,608 - 336,107,608 -
Increase of other current assets under
financial lease agreements - 17,495,327 - 17,495,327
Increase of equipment from hire purchase
and financial lease agreements 355,594,012 95,241,907 152,933,690 95,241,907

Increase of equipment under financial lease agreements

transfer from subsidiary

(eliminated from the consolidated financial statements) - - 55,305,946 -
Transfer of equiptment to investment property - 11,218,785 - -
Transfer of land to investment property 27,000,000 - 27,000,000 -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Notes to consolidated financial statements

Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
For the year ended 31 December 2016

1. General information

Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited (“the Company”) is a public
company incorporated and domiciled in Thailand. The Company is principally engaged in the
provision of construction services. The registered office of the Company is 32/59-32/60,

Sino-Thai Tower, Sukhumvit 21 Road, Klongtoey-Nua, Wattana, Bangkok.
2. Basis of preparation

2.1 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting
Standards enunciated under the Accounting Professions Act B.E. 2547 and their
presentation has been made in compliance with the stipulations of the Notification of the
Department of Business Development dated 11 October 2016, issued under the Accounting
Act B.E. 2543.

The financial statements in Thai language are the official statutory financial statements of
the Company. The financial statements in English language have been translated from the

Thai language financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except where

otherwise disclosed in the accounting policies.
2.2 Basis of consolidation

a) The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of Sino-Thai
Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited (“the Company”) and the
following subsidiaries and joint ventures (“the Subsidiaries”) which are all incorporated

in Thailand:
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2.3

Company’s name

Nature of business

Percentage of shareholding

2017 2016
Percent Percent
HTR Corporation Limited Office building rental 80.90 80.90
Patumwan Real Estate Company Limited Provision of document 80.90 80.90
(Wholly owned by HTR Corporation Limited) storage service
Kijpracha Tanee Company Limited Real estate development 80.90 80.90
(Wholly owned by HTR Corporation Limited)
Nouvelle Property Company Limited Real estate development 99.99 99.99
Wisdom Services Company Limited Rental of machinery and 100.00 100.00
construction equipment
STECON POWER Company Limited Electricity generation 99.97 99.97
S.L. Joint Venture Construction 70.00 70.00
(ceased its operation)
S.A. Joint Venture Construction 80.00 80.00
STEC - AS - 3 Joint Venture Construction 70.00 70.00
ST-SG Joint Venture Construction 100.00 100.00
STTP Joint Venture Construction 51.00 -

The Company is deemed to have control over an investee or subsidiaries if it has rights,
or is exposed, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and it has the

ability to direct the activities that affect the amount of its returns.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated, being the date on which the Company obtains

control, and continue to be consolidated until the date when such control ceases.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared using the same significant

accounting policies as the Company.

Material balances and transactions between the Company and its subsidiary companies

have been eliminated from the consolidated financial statements.

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets of the
subsidiaries that are not held by the Company and are presented separately in the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated comprehensive income and within

equity in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The separate financial statements present investments in subsidiaries and associate under

the cost method.
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3 New financial reporting standards

(a)

(b)

Financial reporting standards that became effective in the current year

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries have adopted the revised financial
reporting standards and interpretations (revised 2016) and new accounting treatment
guidance which were effective for fiscal years beginning on or after 1 January 2017.
These financial reporting standards were aimed at alignment with the corresponding
International Financial Reporting Standards with most of the changes directed towards
revision of wording and terminology, and provision of interpretations and accounting
guidance to users of standards. The adoption of these financial reporting standards did
not have any significant impact on the financial statements of the Company and its

subsidiaries.
Financial reporting standards that will become effective in the future

During the current year, the Federation of Accounting Professions issued a number of
revised financial reporting standards and interpretations (revised 2017) which are
effective for fiscal years beginning on or after 1 January 2018. These financial reporting
standards were aimed at alignment with the corresponding International Financial
Reporting Standards with most of the changes and clarifications directed towards

disclosures in the notes to financial statements.

The management of the Company and its subsidiaries believe that the revised financial
reporting standards will not have any significantimpact on the financial statements when

they are initially applied.

4. Significant accounting policies

4.1 Revenues and expenses recognition

a)

Revenues
Revenues from construction

Revenues from construction are recognised on a percentage of completion basis based
on the assessment of engineers of the Company and its subsidiaries. The recognised
revenue which is not yet due per the contracts is presented under the caption of “Unbilled

receivables” in the statement of financial position.
Revenues from sales of condominium units

Revenues from sales of condominium units are recognised as revenue when the

ownership is transferred to the buyer.
Rental income

Rental income is recognised over the period of the lease agreement.
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4.2

4.3

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis based on the effective interest rate.
Dividends
Dividends are recognised when the right to receive the dividends is established.
b) Expenses
Costs of construction

Costs of construction are recognised in accordance with the percentage of work
completed based on total estimated costs. Provision for anticipated losses on
construction projects is made in the accounts in full when the possibility of loss is
ascertained. Differences between the estimated costs and the actual costs are

recognised as current assets or current liabilities in the statement of financial position.
Cost of sales of condominium units

In determining the cost of condominium units sold, the anticipated total development
costs (after recognising the costs incurred to date) are attributed to units already sold
on the basis of the salable area and then recognised as costs in the income statement

according to the recorded sales.

Development costs of condominium units for sales are stated at cost, consisting of the

cost of land, construction costs, interest and other related costs.
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and cash at banks and all highly liquid
investments with an original maturity of three months or less and not subject to withdrawal

restrictions.
Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the net realisable value. Allowance for doubtful accounts
is provided for the estimated losses that may be incurred in collection of receivables. The

allowance is generally based on collection experience and analysis of debt aging.
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4.4 Investments

a)

Investments in unit trusts of open-ended fund are stated at fair value. Gains or losses
arising from changes in the carrying amounts of unit trusts are included in the income

statement.

Investments in securities held for trading are stated at fair value. Changes in the fair

value of these securities are recorded in the income statement.

Investments in debt securities, both due within one year and expected to be held to maturity,
are recorded at amortised cost. The preminum/discount on debt securities is
amortised/accreted by the effective rate method with the amortised/accreted amount

presented as an adjustment to the interest income.

Investments in available-for-sale securities are stated at fair value. Changes in the fair
value of these securities are recorded as a separate item in other comprehensive

income, and will be recorded in the income statement when the securities are sold.

Investments in non-marketable equity securities, which the Company and its
subsidiaries classify as other investments, are stated at cost net of allowance for

impairment loss (if any).

Investments in associates are accounted for in the consolidated financial statements

using the equity method.

Investments in subsidiaries and associates are accounted for in the separate financial

statements using the cost method net of allowance for impairment loss (if any).

The joint arrangements which assessed as joint operations, the Company recognises
its shares of all assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses of the joint operation in the

separate financial statements, in proportion to its interest.

The fair value of marketable securities is based on the latest bid price of the last working day

of the year. The fair value of debt instruments is determined based on yield rates quoted by

the Thai Bond Market Association or yield rate of government bond adjusted by an

appropriate risk factor, as the case may be. The fair value of unit trusts is determined from

their net asset value.

The weighted average method is used for computation of the cost of investments.

In the event the Company reclassifies investments from one type to another, such

investments will be readjusted to their fair value as at the reclassification date. The difference

between the carrying amount of the investments and the fair value on the date of

reclassification are recorded in profit or loss or recorded as other components of

shareholders’ equity, depending on the type of investment that is reclassified.
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4.5

4.6

On disposal of an investment, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying

amount of the investment is recognised as income or expenses in the income statement.
Investment properties

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent
toinitial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value. Any gains or losses arising
from changes in the value of investment properties are recognised in the income statement

when incurred.

On disposal of investment properties, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in the income statement in the period when

the asset is derecognised.
Property, plant and equipment/Depreciation

Land is stated at cost. Buildings and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated

depreciation and allowance for loss on impairment of assets (if any).

Depreciation of buildings and equipment is calculated by reference to their costs, on the

straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings and building improvements - 20 years
Leasehold improvements - 10 vyears
Mock up room - 5 vyears
Machinery and equipment - 5-30 years
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment - 3-5 years
Motor vehicles - 5-10 vyears

Depreciation is included in the income statement.
No depreciation is provided on land, land improvements and assets under construction.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on disposal

of an asset is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognised.
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4.7 Related party transactions

Related parties comprise enterprises and individuals that control, or are controlled by, the
Company and its subsidiaries, whether directly or indirectly, or which are under common

control with the Company and its subsidiaries.

They also include associated companies and individuals which directly or indirectly own a
voting interest in the Company and its subsidiaries that give them significant influence over
the Company and its subsidiaries, key management personnel, directors, and officers with

authority in the planning and direction of the operation of Company and its subsidiaries.
4.8 Long-term leases

Leases of equipment which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lower of the fair value of
the leased assets and the present value of the minimum lease payments. The outstanding
rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in other long-term payables, while
the interest element is charged to the income statement over the lease period. The assets

acquired under finance leases are depreciated over the useful life of the asset.

Leases of buildings and equipment which do not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are
recognised as an expense in the income statement on a straight line basis over the lease

term.
4.9 Foreign currencies

The consolidated and separate financial statements are presented in Baht, which is also the
Company’s functional currency. Items of each entity included in the consolidated financial

statements are measured using the functional currency of that entity.

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Baht at the exchange rate ruling at the
date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies

are translated into Baht at the exchange rate ruling at the end of reporting period.

Gains and losses on exchange are included in the income statement.
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4.10 Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company and its subsidiaries perform impairment
reviews in respect of the property, plant and equipment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that an asset may be impaired. An impairment loss is recognised
when the recoverable amount of an asset, which is the higher of the asset’s fair value less

costs to sell and its value in use, is less than the carrying amount.
An impairment loss is recognised in the income statement.

411 Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, wages, bonuses and contributions to the social security fund are recognised as

expenses when incurred.
Post-employment benefits and other long-term employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

The Company and its subsidiaries and their employees have jointly established a provident
fund. The fund is monthly contributed by employees and by the Company and its subsidiaries.
The fund’s assets are held in a separate trust fund and the contributions of the Company and

its subsidiaries are recognised as expenses when incurred.

Defined benefit plans and other long-term employee benefits

The Company and its subsidiaries have obligations in respect of the severance payments
they must make to employees upon retirement under labor law. The Company and its
subsidiaries treat these severance payment obligations as a defined benefit plan.
In addition, the Company and its subsidiaries provide other long-term employee benefit plan,

namely long service awards.

The obligation under the defined benefit plan and other long-term employee benefit plans is
determined by a professionally qualified independent actuary based on actuarial techniques,

using the projected unit credit method.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from post-employment benefits are recognised
immediately in the statement of comprehensive income and actuarial gains and losses
arising from other long-term employee benefits are recognised immediately in the income

statement.
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4.12 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company and its subsidiaries have a present obligation
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the

amount of the obligation.
4.13 Income tax

Income tax expense represents the sum of corporate income tax currently payable and

deferred tax.
Current tax

Current income tax is provided in the accounts at the amount expected to be paid to the

taxation authorities, based on taxable profits determined in accordance with tax legislation.
Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts at the end of each reporting period, using the tax

rates enacted at the end of the reporting period.

The Company and its subsidiaries recognise deferred tax liabilities for all taxable temporary
differences while they recognise deferred tax assets for all deductible temporary differences
and tax losses carried forward to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which such deductible temporary differences and tax losses carried forward

can be utilised.

At each reporting date, the Company and its subsidiaries review and reduce the carrying
amount of deferred tax assets to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable

profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.

The Company and its subsidiaries record deferred tax directly to shareholders' equity if the

tax relates to items that are recorded directly to shareholders' equity.
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4.14 Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between buyer and seller (market participants) at the measurement
date. The Company and its subsidiaries apply a quoted market price in an active market to
measure their assets and liabilities that are required to be measured at fair value by relevant
financial reporting standards. Except in case of no active market of an identical asset or
liability or when a quoted market price is not available, the Company and its subsidiaries
measure fair value using valuation technique that are appropriate in the circumstances and
maximises the use of relevant observable inputs related to assets and liabilities that are

required to be measured at fair value.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy into three levels based on

categorise of input to be used in fair value measurement as follows:

Level 1 - Use of quoted market prices in an observable active market for such assets or
liabilities
Level 2 - Use of other observable inputs for such assets or liabilities, whether directly or

indirectly
Level 3 - Use of unobservable inputs such as estimates of future cash flows

At the end of each reporting period, the Company and its subsidiaries determine whether
transfers have occurred between levels within the fair value hierarchy for assets and
liabilities held at the end of the reporting period that are measured at fair value on a recurring

basis.
5. Significant accounting judgments and estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with financial reporting standards at
times requires management to make subjective judgments and estimates regarding matters
that are inherently uncertain. These judgments and estimates affect reported amounts and
disclosures; and actual results could differ from these estimates. Significant judgments and

estimates are as follows.
Estimated of revenues from construction and construction project costs

In estimation of revenues from construction, management are required to make judgement
based on their best knowledge of the current events and arrangements and their experience
of the business in order to estimate the percentage of completion, based on information from

the engineers/project managers.
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The Company and its subsidiaries estimate costs of construction projects based on details
of the construction work, taking into account the volume and prices of construction materials
to be used in the project, labour costs and other miscellaneous costs to be incurred to
completion of service, taking into account the direction of the movement in these costs.
Estimates are reviewed regularly or whenever actual costs differ significantly from the figures

used in the original estimates.
Provision for losses on construction projects

Management applied judgment in estimating the loss they expect to be realised on each
construction projects, based on estimates of anticipated costs that take into account the
progress of the project and actual costs incurred to date, together with fluctuations in costs

of construction materials, labour and the current situation.
Allowance for doubtful accounts

In determining an allowance for doubtful accounts, the management needs to make
judgment and estimates based upon, among other things, past collection history, aging

profile of outstanding debts and the prevailing economic condition.
Investment properties

The Company and its subsidiaries present investment properties at the fair value estimated
by an independent appraiser, and recognise changes in the fair value in the income
statement. The independent appraiser valued an investment property of condominium for
rent using the income approach. The key assumptions used in estimating the fair value

include yield rate, long-term vacancy rate and long-term growth in real rental rates.
Litigation

The Company and its subsidiaries have contingent liabilities as a result of litigation. The
management has used judgment to assess of the results of the litigation and believe that no
loss will result. Therefore no contingent liabilities are recorded as at the end of reporting

period.
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Related party transactions

During the years, the Company and its subsidiaries had significant business transactions with
related parties. These transactions have been concluded at contract prices which can be
comparable to the prices charged to unrelated parties. Below is a summary of those transactions.

(Unit: Million Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2017 2016 2017 2016
Transactions with subsidiary companies
(eliminated from the consolidated financial statements)
Construction income - - 934 386
Land rental income - - 2 -
Interest income - - 1 2
Rental of machinery, construction equipment and
other assets - - 259 223
Training fee - - 8 -
Rental and service expenses - - 15 15
Purchases of machinery, construction equipment and
other assets - - 268 -
Sales of machinery and construction equipment - - 64 -
Transactions with related companies
Construction income 73 178 73 178
Cost of construction 38 33 38 33

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the balance of the accounts between the Company and

its subsidiaries and those related companies were as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2017 2016 2017 2016
Assets
Trade receivables - related parties (Note 8)
Subsidiaries - - 180,328 128,212
Joint ventures 18,569 13,626 18,569 13,626
Related companies (related by common directors) 18,981 26,864 18,978 26,759
Total 37,550 40,490 217,875 168,597
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (32,734) (32,734) (38,774) (38,774)
Net 4,816 7,756 179,101 129,823
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(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2017 2016 2017 2016
Advances - related parties (Note 8)
Subsidiaries - - 75,584 91,020
Joint ventures 340 130 340 130
Related companies (related by common directors) 24,568 - 24,568 -
Total 24,908 130 100,492 91,150
Unbilled receivables
Subsidiaries - - 298,908 176,769
Related companies (related by common directors) 1,240,425 11,183 1,240,425 11,183
Total 1,240,425 11,183 1,539,333 187,952
Retention receivables
Subsidiary B - B 799
Loans to related parties
Subsidiaries - - 57,590 318,086
Related company (related by common directors) = 1,066 = -
Total - 1,066 57,590 318,086
Liabilities
Trade payables - related parties (Note 18)
Subsidiaries - - 74,856 26,096
Related companies (related by common directors) 25,802 2,444 25,802 2,444
Total 25,802 2,444 100,658 28,540
Advances received from construction contracts
Subsidiary - - 172,803 216,074
Related companies (related by common directors) 4,148,694 164,092 4,148,694 164,092
Total 4,148,694 164,092 4,321,497 380,166
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During the year 2017, movements of loans to related parties were as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

Balance as at During the year Balance as at
Relationship 31 December 2016  Increase  Decrease 31 December 2017
Loan to related party
Sino-Thai Tower Condominium  Related by
Juristic Person common directors 1,066 - (1,066)" -

* During the year 2017, HTR Corporate Limited (lender) received full payment of this loan.

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Separate financial statements

Balance as at During the year Balance as at

Relationship 31 December 2016  Increase = Decrease 31 December 2017

Loans to related parties

Nouvelle Property Company Limited  Subsidiary 926 64 - 990
Wisdom Services Company Limited ~ Subsidiary 317,160 130,200  (390,760) 56,600
318,086 130,264  (390,760) 57,590

Loan to Wisdom Services Company Limited

Loan to Wisdom Services Company Limited (Wisdom) represents in the form of a promissory
note, which subject to interest at the rate of 0.5 percent per annum and the repayment is at
call. However, the Company does not expect to call the loan in the foreseeable future and

therefore presents this loan as a non-current asset in the statement of financial position.

Wisdom used the loan to purchase assets being used in its operations and used in it working
capital (Note 16).

Directors and management’s benefits

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company and its subsidiaries had short-term
employee benefits of their directors and management totaling Baht 63 million (2016:
Baht 62 million) (Separate financial statements: Baht 59 million, 2016: Baht 59 million).
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7. Current investments

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2017 2016 2017 2016
Bank deposits 1,663 13,910 1,554 13,802
Investments in trading securities
at fair value
Unit trusts 1,730,737 1,029,104 1,523,500 900,049
Equity securities 2,600,000 - 2,600,000 -
Bank of Thailand bonds - 76,817 - 76,817
Financial institution debt securities - 7,957 - 7,957
Private sector debt securities - 107,856 - 107,856

4,330,737 1,221,734 4,123,500 1,092,679
Investments in available-for-sale

securities at fair value

Unit trust = 20,400 = 20,400

Total current investments 4,332,400 1 ,256,044 4,125,054 1 ,126,881

Investments in unit trusts of the Company and its subsidiaries amounting to Baht 1,731 million
(separate financial statement: Baht 1,524 million) are stated at fair value using inputs of Level
2 which is use of other observable inputs for such assets or liabilities, whether directly or
indirectly. Such fair value of investments in unit trusts has been determined by using the net

asset value.

Investment in equity securities of the Company amounting to Baht 2,600 million are stated at
fair value using inputs of Level 1 which is use of quoted market prices in an observable active

market for such assets or liabilities.

306 Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
Bl /Annual Report 2017



8. Trade and other receivable

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2017 2016 2017 2016
Trade receivables - unrelated parties
Aged on the basis of due dates
Not yet due 3,197,967 1,573,169 2,425,478 1,528,790
Past due
Up to 4 months 519,878 1,384,063 518,749 1,382,954
4 - 12 months 300,957 227,660 300,762 227,140
Over 12 months 577,847 266,980 542,686 230,714
Total 4,596,649 3,451,872 3,787,675 3,369,598
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (47,762) (47,171) (47,762) (47,171)

Total trade receivables - unrelated parties, net 4,548,887 3,404,701 3,739,913 3,322,427

Trade receivables - related parties (Note 6)

Aged on the basis of due dates

Not yet due 4,816 7,756 101,117 44,501
Past due
Up to 4 months - - 15,037 23,597
4 - 12 months - - 371 43,963
Over 12 months 32,734 32,734 101,350 56,536
Total 37,550 40,490 217,875 168,597
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (32,734) (32,734) (38,774) (38,774)
Total trade receivables - related parties, net 4,816 7,756 179,101 129,823
Total trade receivables - net 4,553,703 3,412,457 3,919,014 3,452,250

Other receivables

Advances - related parties (Note 6) 24,908 130 100,492 91,150
Total other receivables 24,908 130 100,492 91,150
Total trade and other receivables - net 4,578,611 3,412,587 4,019,506 3,543,400
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The Company has transferred the right of its claim over collections from certain construction
contracts to a bank. The Company can still withdraw from this claim as usual. As at
31 December 2017, the balance of the trade receivables under the right transfer agreement
was Baht 689 million (2016: Baht 735 million).

On 8 December 2016 the Company entered into a debt composition agreement in order to
settle a dispute with a customer that was in the arbitration process. It was agreed that the
customer would make settlement of construction charges totaling Baht 406 million (before the
present value adjustment of receivable) in 96 monthly installments of Baht 1.5 million
(installments 1 - 24) and Baht 5.1 million (from installment 25 onwards) each, beginning in
April 2017. The Company therefore presented the accounts current portion of the net
receivable balance, under the caption of “Trade and other receivables - current portion” and
the remainder under the caption of “Trade accounts receivable - net of current portion” in the

statement of financial position.
9. Short-term loans to other companies

The balances represent factoring receivables from an unrelated companies which are due for
repayment on the date as stipulated in the agreements. This loans carrying interest rate at

the rate from 10.5 - 12.0 percent per annum (2016: 7.0 - 13.5 percent per annum).
10. Other current assets

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2017 2016 2017 2016
Withholding income tax 502,086 215,820 467,321 188,646
Others 153,099 180,950 120,469 121,602

Total other current assets 655,185 396,770 587,790 310,248
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1.

12.

121

Investments in subsidiaries

Details of investments in subsidiaries as presented in separate financial statements are as

follows:
(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Company’s name Paid-up capital Cost
2017 2016 2017 2016
Million Baht Million Baht

HTR Corporation Limited 500 500 440,090 440,090
Nouvelle Property Company Limited 800 800 800,000 800,000
Wisdom Services Company Limited 2,211 2,211 12,726 12,726
STECON POWER Company Limited i 1 1,000 1,000
Total 1,253,816 1,253,816

On 3 May 2017, HTR Corporation Limited (HTR), a subsidiary of the Company increased its

investment in Kijpracha Tanee Company Limited (Kijpracha), a subsidiary of HTR, by Baht

460 million, so that Kijpracha could repay loans and interest payable and use it working

capital. As a result the registered capital of Kijpracha increased to Baht 520 million while

HTR’s interest in Kijpracha remained unchanged at 99.99 percent.

Investment in associate

The balances represent investment in DKK Sino-Thai Engineering Company Limited, which

is incorporated in Thailand and is engaged in the installation of telecommunication and

transmission line installation. The Company holds a 35 percent interest in this company.

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Statements of financial position:

Cost

Carrying amounts based on equity method

Income statements:
Share of profit from investment in associate

during the year

Dividend received during the year

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2017 2016 2017 2016

2,800 2,800 2,800 2,800
174,852 151,535 - -
31,716 25,744 - -
- - 8,399 6,999
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12.2 The below table summarised the financial information of DKK Sino-Thai Engineering

Company Limited.

Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Net assets

Shareholding percentage (%)

(Unit: Million Baht)

As at 31 December

Carrying amounts of associate based on equity method

Revenue
Profit

13. Other long-term investments

Consolidated financial statements

2017 2016

756 749

14 15
(249) (310)
(22) (21)
499 433

35 35

175 152

(Unit: Million Baht)

For the year ended

31 December

2017

810

88

2016

981

73

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Separate financial statements

Shareholding
percent
2017 2016
% %
Investments in available-for-sale securities
Cost
Add: Revaluation premium on changes in value
available-for-sale securities
Other investments
Absolute Clean Energy Company Limited 2.8 2.8
Oriental Residence Bangkok Company Limited 0.2 0.2
Eastern Bangkok Monorail Company Limited 15.0
Northern Bangkok Monorail Company Limited 15.0

Others
Less: Allowance for impairment of investments

Other long-term investments - net
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2,454,981

2,443,980

2017 2016 2017 2016
Cost Fair value Cost Fair value Cost Fair value Cost Fair value
890,275 903,980 890,275 1,117,350 880,275 892,980 880,275 1,107,150
13,705 227,075 12,705 226,875
903,980 1,117,350 892,980 1,107,150
500,000 500,000 500,000 500,000
1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000
525,000 525,000
525,000 525,000
33,305 33,305 33,253 33,253
1,584,305 534,305 1,584,253 534,253
(33,304) (33,304) (33,253) (33,253)
1,551,001 501,001 1,551,000 501,000
1,618,351 1,608,150



During the year 2017, the Company invested in 2 joint venture companies that are Eastern
Bangkok Monorail Company Limited and Northern Bangkok Monorail Company Limited in
total amount of Baht 1,050 million or 15 percent of the registered share capital of each
company. The investments are in accordance with the joint venture agreement of BSR joint
venture for the propose of concession contract with respect to the MRT Pink Line and the
MRT Yellow line with Mass Rapid Transit Authority of Thailand.

On 5 October 2017, the meeting of the Company’s Board of Directors passed a resolution
approving the Company to enter into an amendment agreement with respect to the joint
investment agreement for the MRT Pink Line and the MRT Yellow Line projects, whereby
certain provisions would be revised to reflect the actual circumstances, including increases
in the registered capital of Eastern Bangkok Monorail Company Limited and Northern
Bangkok Monorail Company Limited, from Baht 14,000 million to Baht 14,400 million each.
As a result, the Company has to increase its investment by 15 percent, or approximately Baht
120 million.

Joint venture - joint operations

During the year 2017, the Company entered into a contract with a local company to establish
CKST Joint Venture, jointly operate a construction project. The Company has an interest of

40 percent according to joint venture agreement.

Financial information of the Company only and the joint arrangements are presented

including in the separate financial statement as below.

(Unit: Million Baht)
As at 31 December 2017

Separate

The Company The joint Elimination Financial

only arrangements entries statement

Summarised information
about financial position:

Current assets 18,886 1,984 (3) 20,867
Non-current assets 9,634 84 - 9,718
Current liabilities 19,995 2,021 (3) 22,013
Non-current liabilities 536 1 - 581l

Unappropriated retained earnings 4,204 47 - 4,251
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(Unit: Million Baht)
For the year ended 31 December 2017

Separate
The Company The joint Elimination Financial
only arrangements entries statement
Summarised information
about profit or loss:
Total revenues 19,987 602 17) 20,572
Total expenses (21,097) (544) 17 (21,624)
Profit (loss) before finance cost
and income tax (1,110) 58 - (1,052)
Finance cost (21) - - (21)
Profit (loss) before income tax (1,131) 58 - (1,073)
Income tax 237 (11) - 226
Profit (loss) for the year (894) 47 - (847)

15. Investment properties

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

2017 2016

Condominium  Condominium Condominium  Condominium

Land for rent units Total Land for rent units Total

Balance at beginning of year 3,674,536 599,500 42,760 4,316,796 3,089,865 579,602 40,080 3,709,547
Transferred of land to investment

properties 27,000 - - 27,000 - - - -
Transferred of equipment to investment

properties - - - - - 11,219 - 11,219
Disposals (188,200) - - (188,200) - - - -
Gain from fair value adjustment 163,134 10,068 165 173,367 584,671 8,679 2,680 596,030
Balance at end of year 3,676,470 609,568 42,925 4,328,963 3,674,536 599,500 42,760 4,316,796
Basis of valuation Market Income Market Market Income Market

Approach Approach Approach Approach Approach Approach
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15.

Investment properties (continued)

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Separate financial statements

Land
2017 2016
Balance at beginning of year 2,839,036 2,264,408
Transferred of land to investment properties 27,000 -
Disposals (188,200) -
Gain from fair value adjustment 146,434 574,628
Balance at end of year 2,824,270 2,839,036
Basis of valuation Market Approach  Market Approach

On 19 July 2017, the meeting of the Company’s Board of Executive Directors passed
a resolution approving the Company’s sale of land to two unrelated companies at a price of
Baht 188 million. The Company has received full payment for the land of Baht 183 million

(net of selling expenses).
Key assumptions used in the valuation of condominium for rent are summarised below:

Result to fair value

Consolidated where as an increase in
financial statement assumption value
Occupancy rate (%) 85-95 Increase in fair value
Discount rate (%) 12 Decrease in fair value
Rental rate (Baht per square metre per month) 499 - 633 Increase in fair value

Land and condominium units is stated at fair value using input of Level 2 which is use of other

observable inputs for such assets, whether directly or indirectly.

Condominium for rent is stated at fair value using inputs of level 3 which is use of

unobservable inputs such as estimates of future cash flows.
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16.

Property, plant and equipment

Cost:

1 January 2016

Additions

Disposals

Transfers

Transferred of equipment to
investment properties

31 December 2016

Accumulated depreciation:

1 January 2016

Depreciation

Disposals

Transfers

Transferred of equipment to
investment properties

31 December 2016

Net book value:

31 December 2016

Depreciation for the year:

Cost:

1 January 2017

Additions

Disposals

Transfers

Transferred of land to
investment properties

31 December 2017

Accumulated depreciation:

1 January 2017

Depreciation

Disposals

31 December 2017

Net book value:

Consolidated financial statements

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Furniture,
Buildings and fixtures and
Land and land building Leasehold Machinery and office Assets under
improvements improvements improvements equipment equipment Motor vehicles construction Total
711,161 398,916 108,084 4,470,591 347,205 448,087 457,409 6,941,453
- 743 - 126,545 22,267 50,007 44,336 243,898
- - - (96,880) (8,140) (10,677) - (115,697)
105,084 265,638 562 16,394 - 13,033 (400,711) -
- - - - (12,109) - - (12,109)
816,245 665,297 108,646 4,516,650 349,223 500,450 101,034 7,057,545
- 178,562 55,409 2,932,294 247,552 331,066 - 3,744,883
- 24,239 6,140 408,598 35,788 45,704 - 520,469
- - - (75,153) (7,421) (10,661) - (93,235)
- - - (2,971) - 2,971 - -
R R R - (890) - - (890)
- 202,801 61,549 3,262,768 275,029 369,080 - 4,171,227
816,245 462,496 47,097 1,253,882 74,194 131,370 101,034 2,886,318
2016 (Baht 489 million included in cost, and the balance in administrative expenses) 520,469
(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Consolidated fi ol stat "
Furniture,
Buildings and fixtures and
Land and land building Leasehold Machinery and office Assets under
improvements improvements improvements equipment equipment Motor vehicles construction Total
816,245 665,297 108,646 4,516,650 349,223 500,450 101,034 7,057,545
- 26,050 210 490,574 63,024 213,868 284,536 1,078,262
- (1,868) - (212,100) (45,222) (32,494) - (291,684)
- 47,693 - 118,190 1,084 24,242 (191,209) -
(27,000) - - - - - - (27,000)
789,245 737,172 108,856 4,913,314 368,109 706,066 194,361 7,817,122
- 202,801 61,549 3,262,768 275,029 369,080 - 4,171,227
- 24,770 6,151 360,356 37,621 52,099 - 480,997
- (1,868) - (193,155) (41,908) (25,436) - (262,367)
- 225,703 67,700 3,429,969 270,742 395,743 - 4,389,856
789,245 511,469 41,156 1,483,345 97,367 310,323 194,361 3,427,266

31 December 2017

Depreciation for the year:

2017 (Baht 448 million included in cost, and the balance in administrative expenses)
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16. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Cost:

1 January 2016
Additions
Disposals
Transfers

31 December 2016
Accumulated depreciation:
1 January 2016
Depreciation
Disposals
Transfers

31 December 2016
Net book value:

31 December 2016

Depreciation for the year:

Separate financial statements

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

2016 (Baht 387 million included in cost, and the balance in administrative expenses)

Cost:
1 January 2017
Additions
Additions from subsidiary
(eliminated from the consolidated financial
statements)
Disposals
Disposals to subsidiary
(eliminated from the consolidated financial
statements)
Transfers

Transferred of land to investment properties
31 December 2017
Accumulated depreciation:
1 January 2017
Depreciation
Disposals
Disposals to subsidiary
(eliminated from the consolidated financial
statements)
31 December 2017
Net book value:
31 December 2017
Depreciation for the year:

Furniture,
Buildings and fixtures and
Land and land building Leasehold Machinery and office Assets under
improvements  improvements  improvements equipment equipment Motor vehicles construction Total
711,161 254,167 108,084 3,352,430 301,140 400,305 399,813 5,527,100
- 743 - 126,545 21,570 50,007 44,336 243,201
- - - (95,072) (8,126) (10,277) - (113,475)
105,084 265,638 562 16,394 - 13,033 (400,711) -
816,245 520,548 108,646 3,400,297 314,584 453,068 43,438 5,656,826
- 172,396 55,409 2,346,708 227,087 302,871 - 3,104,471
- 24,239 6,140 311,766 32,748 41,472 - 416,365
- - - (74,809) (7,409) (10,261) - (92,479)
- - - (2,971) - 2,971 - -
- 196,635 61,549 2,580,694 252,426 337,053 - 3,428,357
816,245 8231913} 47,097 819,603 62,158 116,015 43,438 2,228,469
416,365
(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Buildings and Furniture,
Land and land building Leasehold Machinery and fixtures and Assets under
improvements improvements improvements equipment office equipment Motor vehicles construction Total
816,245 520,548 108,646 3,400,297 314,584 453,068 43,438 5,656,826
- 26,050 210 327,812 62,957 126,297 241811 785,137
- - - 208,624 - 41,446 17,943 268,013
- (1,868) - (219,484) (45,168) (25,111) - (291,631)
- - - (92,228) - - - (92,228)
- 47,693 - 111,258 1,084 24,242 (184,277) -
(27,000) - - - - - - (27,000)
789,245 592,423 108,856 3,736,279 333,457 619,942 118,915 6,299,117
- 196,635 61,549 2,580,694 252,426 337,053 - 3,428,357
- 24,770 6,151 271,901 34,572 45,982 - 383,376
- (1,868) - (193,503) (41,868) (25,089) - (262,328)
- - - (28,898) - - - (28,898)
- 219,537 67,700 2,630,194 245130 357,946 - 3,520,507
789,245 372,886 41,156 1,106,085 88,327 261,996 118,915 2,778,610
383,376

2017 (Baht 353 million included in cost, and the balance in administrative expenses)
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During the year 2017, the Company sold its machinery and construction equipment to a
subsidiary company totaling Baht 64 million. The subsidiary already made a full payment for
the assets (Note 6).

And the Company bought machinery, construction equipment and other assets from a
subsidiary company, totaling Baht 268 million (Note 6), and also transferred liabilities totaling
Baht 55 million under the financial lease agreements for these assets from the subsidiary.
The Company already made full payment for the assets, net of the liabilities under the financial

lease agreements.

As at 31 December 2017, the Company and its subsidiaries certain plant and equipmentitems
had been fully depreciated but were still in use. The gross carrying amount before deducting
accumulated depreciation of those assets amounted to approximately Baht 2,374 million
(2016: Baht 1,959 million) (Separate financial statements: Baht 2,354 million, 2016:
Baht 1,940 million).

As at 31 December 2017, the Company and its subsidiaries had machinery, equipment and
vehicles acquired under hire purchase and financial lease agreements, with net book value
amounting to approximately Baht 487 million (2016: Baht 251 million) (Separate financial
statements: Baht 349 million, 2016: Baht 235 million).

17. Short-term loan from financial institution

As at 31 December 2017, the balance represents loan in the form of promissory notes of Baht
500 million (2016: Baht 500 million) from a local commercial bank which are repayable within

3 months and carry interest at 2.6 percent per annum.
18. Trade and other payables

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2017 2016 2017 2016
Trade payables - related parties (Note 6) 25,802 2,444 100,658 28,540
Trade payables - unrelated parties 4,777,072 4,105,348 4,701,583 4,015,931
Accrued expenses 83,592 107,503 64,442 64,509

Total trade and other payab|es 4,886,466 4,215,295 4,866,683 4,108,980
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Hire purchase creditors and financial lease payables

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2017 2016 2017 2016
Hire purchase creditors and
financial lease payables 756,668 184,739 615,430 181,984
Less: Deferred interest expenses (32,721) (9,017) (24,325) (8,968)
Total 723,947 175,722 591,105 173,016
Less: Portion due within one year (315,631) (74,728) (281,494) (72,022)
Hire purchase creditors and financial lease
payables - net of current portion 408,316 100,994 309,611 100,994

The Company and its subsidiaries has entered into the hire purchase and financial lease
agreements with leasing companies for rental of machinery, equipment and motor vehicles for
use in their operation, whereby they are committed to pay rental on a monthly basis. The terms

of the agreements are generally 4 years.
Future minimum lease payments required under the hire purchase and financial lease
agreements are as follows:

(Unit: Million Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

As at 31 December 2017

Less than
1 year 1-4 years Total
Future minimum lease payments 335 422 s
Deferred interest expenses (19) (14) (33)
Present value of future minimum lease payments 316 408 724

(Unit: Million Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

As at 31 December 2016

Less than
1 year 1-4 years Total
Future minimum lease payments 81 104 185
Deferred interest expenses (6) (3) (9)
Present value of future minimum lease payments 75 101 176
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(Unit: Million Baht)

Separate financial statements

As at 31 December 2017

Less than
1 year 1-4 years Total
Future minimum lease payments 296 319 615
Deferred interest expenses (15) (9) (24)
Present value of future minimum lease payments 281 310 591

(Unit: Million Baht)

Separate financial statements

As at 31 December 2016

Less than
1 year 1-4 years Total
Future minimum lease payments 78 104 182
Deferred interest expenses (6) (3) (9)
Present value of future minimum lease payments 72 101 173

20. Loan and interest payable

During the year 2017, a subsidiary fully repaid the outstanding loans and interest to its creditor.
Therefore, in June 2017, the creditor petitioned the court to cancel the seizure/ foreclosure of
all condominium units and cease legal execution (In the past, the subsidiary had unable to
comply with the terms of the loan agreement and the debt composition agreement. As a result,
the court ordered the Executing Officer to seize the collateral for sale at auction, and use the

proceeds to settle the debt).
21. Provision for loss of construction projects

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Consolidated/Separate

financial statements

Balance at 31 December 2016 400,311
Add: Recorded during the year 2,973,105
Less: Decrease in provision as project cost actually occurred in the year (1,661,352)
Balance at 31 December 2017 1,712,064
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22.

In current circumstances, whereby prices of construction materials and wages have risen

significantly, and because major construction contracts have been delayed due to problems

with delivery of construction areas belonging to the project owner, which are uncontrollable

external factors, the Company has had to perform a detailed review of its project costs.

As a result of the review, the Company noted that under current circumstances there would

be losses on long-term projects and recorded the full amounts of these losses in the income

statementin 2017. The Company believes that if circumstances do not significantly change,

the recorded provision for loss is adequate.

Provision for long-term employee benefits

Provision for long-term employee benefits which is compensations on employees’ retirement

and long service awards, are as follows:

Provision for long-term employee
benefits of beginning of year
Included in the income statements:
Current service cost
Interest cost

Included in other comprehensive income:

Actuarial (gain) loss arising from
Demographic assumptions changes
Financial assumptions changes
Experience adjustments

Benefits paid during the year
Provision for long-term employee

benefits at end of year

Consolidated financial statements

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Post-employment

Other long-term

benefits employee benefits Total

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
137,371 124,328 28,758 28,317 166,129 152,645
14,700 12,225 3,290 334 17,990 12,559

5,584 5,410 835 107 6,419 5,517

3,845 - 250 - 4,095 -
22,572 - (3,085) - 19,487 -

3,395 - (2,293) - 1,102 -
(3,842) (4,592) - - (3,842) (4,592)
183,625 137,371 27,755 28,758 211,380 166,129
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(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Separate financial statements

Post-employment Other long-term
benefits employee benefits Total
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Provision for long-term employee
benefits of beginning of year 134,330 121,579 28,370 27,899 162,700 149,478
Included in the income statements:
Current service cost 14,189 12,054 3,258 358 17,447 12,412
Interest cost 5,341 5,289 824 113 6,165 5,402
Included in other comprehensive income:
Actuarial (gain) loss arising from
Demographic assumptions changes 3,845 - 250 - 4,095 -
Financial assumptions changes 22,572 - (3,085) - 19,487 -
Experience adjustments 3,395 - (2,293) - 1,102 -
Benefits paid during the year (3,842)  (4,592) - - (3,842) (4,592)
Provision for long-term employee
benefits at end of year 179,830 134,330 27,324 28,370 207,154 162,700

Long-term employee benefit expenses included in the income statement are as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2017 2016 2017 2016
Cost of construction 17,909 12,858 17,909 12,857
Administrative expenses 6,500 5,218 5,703 4,957

Total expense recognised in the income statement 24,409 18,076 23,612 17,814

The Company and its subsidiaries expect to pay Baht 12 million (2016: Baht 4 million) of
long-term employee benefits during the next year (Separate financial statements: Baht 11
million, 2016: Baht 4 million).

As at 31 December 2017, the weighted average duration of the liabilities for long-term
employee benefit of the Company and its subsidiaries are 12 years (2016: 16 years)

(Separate financial statements: 12 years, 2016: 16 years).
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Principal actuarial assumptions at the valuation date are as follows:

Consolidated / Separate

financial statements

2017 2016
(% per annum) (% per annum)
Discount rate 3.2 4.4
Future salary increase rate (depending on age) 3.0-7.5 3.0-75
Staff turnover rate 2.0-18.0 2.0-18.0

The result of sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions that affect the present value of

the long-term employee benefit obligation as at 31 December 2017 and 2016 are summarised

below:
(Unit: Million Baht)
As at 31 December 2017
Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
Increase 1%  Decrease 1% Increase 1%  Decrease 1%
Discount rate (19) 22 (19) 22
Salary increase rate 21 (18) 21 (18)
Staff turnover rate (1) 1 (1) 1
(Unit: Million Baht)
As at 31 December 2016
Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
Increase 1%  Decrease 1% Increase 1%  Decrease 1%
Discount rate (15) 17 (15) 17
Salary increase rate 20 17) 19 (16)
Staff turnover rate (1) 1 (1) 1

Statutory reserve

Pursuant to Section 116 of the Public Limited Companies Act B.E. 2535, the Company is
required to set aside to a statutory reserve at least 5 percent of its net income after deducting
accumulated deficit brought forward (if any), until the reserve reaches 10 percent of the
registered capital. The statutory reserve is not available for dividend distribution. At present,

the statutory reserve has fully been set aside.
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24. Expenses by nature

Significant expenses by nature are as follows:

Salary and wages
Depreciation
Rental expenses from operating lease

agreements

Construction materials and subcontractors

25. Income tax

Consolidated

financial statements

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Separate

financial statements

3,019,984

2017 2016
2,826,814
480,997 520,469

580,518 659,694

15,195,415 11,728,997

2017 2016
3,007,130 2,818,149
383,376 416,365

576,964 659,694

14,718,631 11,883,553

Income tax for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 are made up as follows:

Current income tax:

Current income tax charge

Deferred tax:

Relating to origination and reversal of
temporary differences

Income tax reported in the statement

of income

Consolidated

financial statements

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Separate

financial statements

2017 2016

26,204 205,115

(220,323) 132,210

2017 2016

11,438 188,709

(237,936) 120,659

(194,119) 337,325

(226,498) 309,368

The amounts of income tax relating to each component in the statements of comprehensive

income for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

Deferred tax relating to:
Gain (loss) on change in value of
available-for-sale investments

Actuarial loss
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financial statements

2017 2016
(42,914) 45,695
(4,937) :

2017 2016
(42,914) 45,695
(4,937) -



Reconciliation between income tax and the product of accounting profit (loss) multiplied by

the applicable tax rates.

Accounting profit (loss) before tax

Applicable tax rate

Consolidated

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Separate

Accounting profit (loss) before tax multiplied by applicable

tax rate

Utilisation of pervious unrecognised tax losses as deferred

tax assets

Tax loss of subsidiaries which not recorded as deferred
tax assets

Recognised of deferred tax assets of previous years

Tax effect of income and expense that are not taxable
income or not deductible in determining taxable profit

Income tax reported in the statement of income

financial statements financial statements
2017 016 2017 016
(797,476) 1,733,308 (1,073,601) 1,575,917
20% 20% 20% 20%
(159,495) 346,662 (214,720) 315,183
(4,369) - - -
2,479 4,716 - R
(15,796) (22,613) - -
(16,938) 8,560 (11,778) (5,815)
(194,119) 337,325 (226,498) 309,368

The components of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities.

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Statements of financial position

Consolidated financial statements

Separate financial statements

2017 2016 2017 2016

Deferred tax assets

The present value adjustment of receivable 11,383 11,441 11,383 11,441
Impairment of investments 480 480 480 480
Provision for loss of projects 342,413 80,062 342,413 80,062
Provision for long-term employee benefits 42,100 33,174 41,254 32,540
Unused tax loss 168,776 27,824 152,980 -
Other 6,598 1,661 6,598 1,661
Total 571,750 154,642 555,108 126,184
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(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Statements of financial position

Consolidated financial statements ~ Separate financial statements

2017 2016 2017 2016

Deferred tax liabilities
Fair value of investment properties 545,461 511,938 386,303 358,975
Unrealised gain on change in value of investments 162,669 45,651 162,541 45,619
Difference depreciation between tax and

accounting purpose from assets under

finance lease agreements 35,187 36,823 26,128 27,270
Others 29 - 29 -
Total 743,346 594,412 575,001 431,864
Total deferred tax liabilities - net 171,596 439,770 19,893 305,680

As at 31 December 2016 a subsidiary had unused tax losses totaling Baht 101 million

and no deferred tax assets have been recognised on this amount.
26. Dividends

Dividend Dividend paid

Approved by Dividends per share in month

(Million Baht) ~ (Baht)

Dividends for 2015 Annual General Meeting of

the shareholders on 22 April 2016 503 0.33 May 2016
Total dividends for 2016 503
Dividends for 2016 Annual General Meeting of

the shareholders on 12 April 2017 336 0.22 May 2017

Total dividends for 2017 336

27. Contracts in progress

As at 31 December 2017, the Company and its subsidiaries had aggregate amount of
construction cost incurred and recognised profits or losses to date for contracts in progress
was approximately Baht 81,918 million (2016: Baht 67,298 million) (Separate financial
statements: Baht 80,327 million 2016: Baht 66,725 million) and had gross amounts due from
customers for contracts in progress was approximately Baht 7,881 million (2016: Baht 7,411
million) (Separate financial statements: Baht 7,500 million 2016: Baht 7,124 million).
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28. Segment information

Operating segment information is reported in a manner consistent with the internal reports
of the Company and its subsidiaries that are regularly reviewed by the Managing Director
who is the chief operating decision maker in order to make decisions about the allocation of

resources to the segment and assess its performance.

The operations of the Company and its subsidiaries principally involve construction
contracting, office building rental, machinery and construction equipment rental and property
development, and are mostly carried on in the single geographic area of Thailand. There
were no material activities pertaining to the office building rental, machinery and construction
equipment rental and property development segments. For this reason, financial information
has not been presented by industry segment. All of the revenues, operating profits and
assets as reflected in these financial statements pertain to the aforementioned reportable

operating segment and geographical area.
29. Provident fund

The Company, its subsidiaries and their employees have jointly established a provident fund
in accordance with the Provident Fund Act B.E. 2530. The Company, its subsidiaries and
employees contributed to the fund on a monthly basis at the rate of 3 - 5 percent of basic
salaries. The fund, which is managed by Tisco Asset Management Company Limited, will be
paid to employees upon termination in accordance with the fund rules. The contributions for
the year 2017 amounting to approximately Baht 25 million (2016: Baht 23 million) were

recognised as expenses.
30. Commitments and contingent liabilities
30.1 Operating lease commitments

The Company has entered into lease agreements in respect of the leases of motor vehicles.

The terms of the agreements are 1 - 5 years.

Future minimum lease payments required under these non-cancellable operating lease

contracts were as follows:

(Unit: Million Baht)

As at 31 December
2017 2016
Payable:
Inup to 1 year 56 28
In over 1 year and up to 5 years 166 78

Over 5 years - 1
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30.2 Project construction cost commitments

As at 31 December 2017, the Company and its subsidiary had commitments totaling Baht
12,540 million and Euro 6 million costs (Separate financial statements: Baht 12,526 million
and Euro 6 million) in respect of project construction costs, for which the Company and its
subsidiary had entered into agreements. In accordance with the agreements the Company
and its subsidiary will make payment of these commitments upon delivery of the relevant

goods or services.
30.3 Guarantees

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, there were outstanding bank guaranteesissued by banks

on behalf of the Company and its subsidiaries in respect of certain performance bonds as

detail below.
(Unit: Million Baht)
Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2017 2016 2017 2016
Performance bonds 15,794 9,991 14,790 9,586
Advance and retention bonds 17,089 8,731 16,049 8,356
Others 2,028 3,562 2,024 3,558
Total 34,911 22,284 32,863 21,500

30.4 Litigation

The Company was sued for compensation totaling approximately Baht 131 million
(2016: Baht 216 million). In most of such cases the Company is accused of breaches of hire
of work contracts. The cases are still being considered by the court. The Company’s
management and the Company’s legal advisors believe that the outcome of these cases will
be favorable to the Company and therefore no provision for liability has been set aside in the

accounts.
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31. Financial instruments
31.1 Financial risk management

The Company and its subsidiaries financial instruments, as defined under Thai Accounting
Standard No. 107 “Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentations”, principally comprise as

follow.

Financial assets Financial liabilities

Cash and cash equivalents - Trade and other payables

Current investments

Unbilled payables

Trade and other receivables

Hire purchase creditors and financial lease payables

Unbilled receivables Loans from

Retention receivables

Loans to

The financial risks associated with these financial instruments and how they are managed is

described below.
Credit risk

The Company and its subsidiaries are exposed to credit risk primarily with respect to
construction receivables and loans to. However, due to their prudent credit policy, most of
their customers being government agencies, and their close follow up of debt, analysing
financial position on an ongoing basis, the Company and its subsidiaries do not anticipate
material losses from their debt collection in excess of those for which provision has already

been set aside.
Interest rate risk

The Company and its subsidiaries’ exposure to interest rate risk relates primarily to its cash
at banks, loans to, loans, hire purchase creditors and financial lease payables. However,
since most of the Company and its subsidiaries’ financial assets and liabilities had fixed
interest rates which will be due within a short period, the interest rate risk is expected to be

minimal.
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As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, significant financial assets and liabilities classified by
type of interest rate are summarised in the table below, with those financial assets and
liabilities that carry fixed interest rates further classified based on the maturity date, or the

repricing date, (if this occures before the maturity date).

(Unit: Million Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

As at 31 December 2017

Fixed interest rates

Within Over Floating Non-interest
Interest rate 1 year 1 year interest rate bearing Total
% p.a.
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 0.13-1.45 50 - 2,311 2 2,363
Current investments 0.11 - - 1 4,331 4,332
Trade and other receivables - - - - 4,896 4,896
Unbilled receivables - - - - 6,552 6,552
Retention receivables - - - - [ES) 733
Short-term loans to other companies Note 9 21 - - - 21
71 - 2,312 16,514 18,897
Financial Liabilities
Short-term loan from financial institution Note 17 500 - - - 500
Trade and other payables - - - - 4,886 4,886
Unbilled payables - - - - 3,449 3,449
Hire purchase creditors and financial
lease payables 3.20 - 5.00 316 408 - - 724
816 408 - 8,335 O8559
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(Unit: Million Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

As at 31 December 2016

Fixed interest rates

Within Over Floating Non-interest
Interest rate 1 year 1 year interest rate bearing Total
% p.a.

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 0.13 -1.48 200 - 425 8 633
Current investments 0.38 -4.83 193 - 14 1,049 1,256
Trade and other receivables - - - - 3,748 3,748
Unbilled receivables - - - - 4,674 4,674
Retention receivables - - - - 704 704
Short-term loans to other companies Note 9 139 - - - 139
Short-term loans to related party Note 6 1 - - - il
Restricted bank deposits 0.38-0.85 s s 16 s 16

533 - 455 10,183 11,171
Financial Liabilities
Short-term loan from financial institution Note 17 500 = - - 500
Trade and other payables - - - - 4,215 4,215
Unbilled payables - - - - 4,186 4,186
Hire purchase creditors and financial

lease payables 3.25-5.13 75 101 - - 176

Loan and interest payable Note 20 - 72 - 5 72

575 173 = 8,401 9,149
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(Unit: Million Baht)

Separate financial statements

As at 31 December 2017

Fixed interest rates

Within Over Floating Non-interest
Interest rate 1 year 1 year interest rate bearing Total
% p.a.
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 0.13-1.45 50 - 2,192 2 2,244
Current investments 0.11 - - 1 4,124 4,125
Trade and other receivables - - - - 4,337 4,337
Unbilled receivables - - - - 6,453 6,453
Retention receivables = = = - 650 650
Loans to related parties Note 6 > 58 s s 58
50 58 2,193 15,566 17,867
Financial Liabilities
Short-term loan from financial institution Note 17 500 - - - 500
Trade and other payables - - - - 4,867 4,867
Unbilled payables - - - - 3,384 3,384
Hire purchase creditors and financial
lease payables 3.20 - 5.00 281 310 s = 591
781 310 - 8,251 9,342
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31.2

32.

33.

(Unit: Million Baht)

Separate financial statements

As at 31 December 2016

Fixed interest rates

Within Over Floating Non-interest
Interest rate 1 year 1 year interest rate bearing Total
% p.a.

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 0.13-1.48 200 - 388 8 596
Current investments 0.38-4.83 193 - 14 920 1,127
Trade and other receivables - - - - 3,879 3,879
Unbilled receivables - - - - 4,649 4,649
Retention receivables - - - - 680 680
Loans to related parties Note 6 - 318 - - 318
Restricted bank deposits 0.38-0.85 - - 16 - 16

393 318 418 10,136 11,265
Financial Liabilities
Short-term loan from financial institution Note 17 500 - - - 500
Trade and other payables - - - - 4,109 4,109
Unbilled payables - - - - 4,186 4,186
Hire purchase creditors and financial

lease payables 3.25-5.13 72 101 - - 173
572 101 - 8,295 8,968

Fair value of financial instruments

Since the majority of the Company and its subsidiaries’ financial instruments are short-term
in nature. Majority of loans given to and loans from which fixed interest rate are going to due
within 1 year. Fair value is not expected to be materially different from the amounts presented
in the statements of financial position.

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Company and its subsidiaries’ capital management is to ensure
that it has an appropriate financing structure and preserves the ability to continue its business
as a going concern.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group's debt-to-equity ratio was 2.51:1 (2016: 1.36:1) and the
Company's debt-to-equity ratio was 2.81:1 (2016: 1.48:1).

Approval of financial statements

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s authorised director
on 14 February 2018.
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Company

Nature of Business
Registration Number
Address

Registered Capital
Issued and
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Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
Construction

0107536001001 (Bor Mor Jor 174)

32/59-60, 29"-30"™ Floor, Sino-Thai Tower, Asoke Road,
Klongtoey-Nua, Wattana, Bangkok 10110

Tel: (+66) 0 2610-4900 Fax: (+66) 0 2260-1339
www.stecon.co.th

1,525,106,540 Baht

1,525,106,540 Baht (as at December 31, 2017)

Common Share (STEC) 1,525,106,540 shares
Investors can find more information in the Annual Report (56-1)

and on company websites
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